
 City of Black Hawk 
City Council 

211 Church Street 
March 26, 2014 

1:30 p.m. – 2:30 p.m. 
OPEN HOUSE – 301 Chase Street 

 

3:00 p.m. 
RINGING OF THE BELL: 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
3.         AGENDA CHANGES: 
 
4. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  (Council disclosures are on file w/City Clerk & Sec. Of State) 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT: Please limit comments to 5 minutes 
 (Notify the City Clerk if you wish to address Council on items not on the agenda) 

 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  March 12, 2014 
             
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 A.  Resolution 13 - 2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness  
  for Reconstruction of the Property at 201 Church Street (carried over from March 12, 2014) 
 B. Resolution 18 - 2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

the Site Work, Landscape for the Property at 301 Chase Street 
  
8. ACTION ITEMS:  
 C.  271 Church Street – Temporary Construction Easement 
 D.  121 Marchant Street – Historic Preservation Grant 
 E.  Resolution 19-2014, A Resolution Approving the License Agreement Between the City of 
 Black Hawk and Mardi Gras Casino 
 F. Retitling Current Staff Positions 
 
9.      CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
  
10.     CITY ATTORNEY: 
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
12.      ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the City of Black Hawk is to progressively provide cost effective programs and services of the 

highest quality to the community 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
FOR MARCH 12, 2014 



 1 

City of Black Hawk 
City Council Minutes 

March 12, 2014 
 
Mike Ikeler, Commander of VFW rang the bell. 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER: The regular meeting of the City Council was called to order  

by Mayor Spellman Wednesday, March 12, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL: Present were: Mayor Spellman, Aldermen Armbright, Bennett, 

Cales, Johnson, Moates, and Torres. 
  
 Staff present:  City Attorney Hoffmann, City Manager Lewis,  

City Clerk Magno, IT Director Young, Assistant to City Manager 
for Administration Greiner, Fire Chief Taylor, Finance Director 
Hillis, Public Works Director Isbester, and Police Chief Cole.  

  
      PLEDGE OF  
      ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Spellman led the meeting in the recitation of the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 
 
3.  AGENDA CHANGES: Mayor Spellman explained 8-G, Contribution to VFW and 

American Legion was added to the agenda.  
 
4.  CONFLICTS OF  
 INTEREST: City Attorney Hoffmann asked Council to declare any Conflicts of 

Interest on any issue appearing on the agenda this afternoon other 
than those previous disclosures and conflicts that have already 
been disclosed and are on file with the City Clerk and Secretary of 
State.  Council declared no conflicts. 
 
City Attorney Hoffmann asked the audience if there were any  
objections to any member of Council voting on any issue on the  
agenda this afternoon.  The audience had no objections.   

  
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  No one came forward to address Council. 
 
6.  APPROVAL OF 
     MINUTES for 
    February 26, 2014 
 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve the Minutes of the February 26, 2014 
meeting as presented. 
 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 
 

Draft 



 2 

7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 A. CB 6, An Ordinance 
  Amending Sections 
  16-392 and 16-401  
  of the Black Hawk 
  Municipal Code 
  Concerning  
  Modifications to 
  Commercial Mobile 
  Radio Facilities Mayor Spellman read the title. 
 
   City Attorney Hoffmann explained this ordinance attempts to 

eliminate confusion and pass regulations passed by the Legislature.  
This ordinance states the changes where the Legislature did not.  

    
 PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB 6, An 

Ordinance Amending Sections 16-392 and 16-401 of the Black 
Hawk Municipal Code Concerning Modifications to Commercial 
Mobile Radio Facilities open and invited anyone wanting to 
address the Board either “for” or “against” the proposed ordinance 
to come forward. 

 
No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 
Public Hearing closed. 

 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Torres to approve CB 6, An Ordinance Amending Sections 16-392 
and 16-401 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code Concerning 
Modifications to Commercial Mobile Radio Facilities. 
 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.  
 
B.  Resolution 13-2014,  
 A Resolution Conditionally 
 Approving a Certificate 
 of Appropriateness for 
 Reconstruction and 
 Site Improvements 
 for 201 Church 
 Street Moved to March 26, 2014 meeting. 
 

8.  ACTION ITEMS: 
 C. Resolution 14-2014, 
  A Resolution  
  Approving the  
  License Agreement 
  Between the City 
  of Black Hawk and 



 3 

  Smithloch, LLC Mayor Spellman read the title. 
 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve Resolution 14-2014, A Resolution Approving the 
License Agreement Between the City of Black Hawk and Smithloch, 
LLC. 

 
    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 

 D. Resolution 15-2014, 
  A Resolution 
  Approving the  
  License Agreement 
  Between the City 
  of Black Hawk and 
  Edward E. Smith, 
  Shirley J. Smith, 
  and Sherell J. 
  Kelly   Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Bennett to approve Resolution 15-2014, A Resolution Approving the 
License Agreement Between the City of Black Hawk and Edward E. 
Smith, Shirley J. Smith, and Sherell J. Kelly. 

 
    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 

E. Resolution 16-2014, 
 A Resolution Approving 
 the License Agreement 
 Between the City of 
 Black Hawk and JZ 
 Gaming, LLC dba 
 Z’s Casino   Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Moates 

to approve Resolution 16-2014, A Resolution Approving the License 
Agreement Between the City of Black Hawk and JZ Gaming, LLC dba 
Z’s Casino. 

 
    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 

F. Resolution 17-2014, 
 A Resolution Adopting 
 the Revised Community 
 Restoration and 



 4 

 Preservation Guide to 
 Programs, Dated 
 March, 2014  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman Johnson 

to approve Resolution 17-2014, A Resolution Adopting the Revised 
Community Restoration and Preservation Guide to Programs, Dated 
March, 2014. 

 
    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 

G. Contribution to VFW 
 and American Legion Mayor Spellman read the title. 
 
  Tito Dominquez, Commander American Legion, and Mike Ikeler, 

Commander VFW, went over the renovation of the Veterans 
Memorial at Gilpin County Justice Center.  There will be a brick 
wall finished for seating and new stepping stones. 

 
 MOTION TO  
 APPROVED  Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to donate $5,000 towards the renovation of the Veterans 
Memorial with a plaque with all the names of the City of Black 
Hawk veterans. 

 
 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 
9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
  There was no report. 
   

10. CITY ATTORNEY: City Attorney Hoffmann requested an Executive Session regarding 
potential litigation, legal issues on property rights, and potential 
legislation.   
 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION:    
 
 MOTION TO 
 ADJOURN Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to adjourn into Executive Session 3:30 p.m. to hold a 
conference with the City’s attorney to receive legal advice on 
specific legal questions pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(b). 

 
 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 
 MOTION TO 
 RECONVENE Alderman Cales MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Bennett at 4:10 p.m. 
 



 5 

 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
 
 MOTION TO 
 APPROVE Alderman Moates MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract for 
$220,000 for 281 Church Street. 

 
 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 
  
12. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Spellman declared the Regular Meeting of the City Council 

closed at 4:12 p.m.  
  
 
 
 
 
____________________________                               ___________________________ 
Jeanie M. Magno, CMC             David D. Spellman 
City Clerk                                Mayor 



RESOLUTION 13-2014, A 
RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 
APPROVING A 

CERTIFICATE OF 
APPROPRIATENESS FOR 
THE RECONSTRUCTION 

OF THE PROPERTY AT 201 
CHURCH STREET 



 

1 
 3/19/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\FORM-RES.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 
 COUNTY OF GILPIN 
 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 
 Resolution No. _13_-2014 
 
TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE 
PROPERTY AT 201 CHURCH STREET 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
Section 1.   The City Council hereby determines to conditionally approve a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the reconstruction of the property located at 201 Church Street on 
satisfaction of the following conditions:     
 

A. A plan is developed for the protection of cultural landscape or mining features 
uncovered during the demolition, including requiring that construction halts upon the 
discovery of any archaeological resources.  Any resources should be documented prior to 
continuing with construction; 
 
B. A non-freestanding sign is installed that identifies the building as a contemporary 
re-creation, with final placement and design to be approved by Community Planning and 
Development staff; and   
 
C. The final design of the flag pole area should be approved by Public Works and 
Community Planning and Development staff. 

 
RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 
 
 

_______________________________ 
David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jeanie M. Magno, CMC, City Clerk 



BLACK HAWK 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 	 March 26, 2014 

SUBJECT:  
Certificate of Appropriateness for Reconstruction of a Building, Rehabilitation of Stone 
Retaining Walls, Construction of New Parking, and Site Work 
The applicant, the City of Black Hawk, is requesting approval for the reconstruction of a new 
Information Technology (IT) facility building, rehabilitation of stone retaining walls, 
construction of new parking, and other site work at 201 Church Street. This section of Church 
Street was rezoned in May 2013 (Resolution No. 2013-29) as part of the new Historic 
Appreciation and Preservation district (HAP). The City's initial intent was to rehabilitate the 
original historic building at 201 Church to house the IT department. Investigations undertaken 
after acquiring the building, however, revealed that a large portion of the structure contained 
mold. Cleaning and mitigation efforts over the course of several months to contain the mold 
were unsuccessful. After careful deliberation, the City decided that demolition and 
reconstruction were the only viable alternatives. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 
Due to the extent of mold and the pathogenic/toxic nature of the mold, the City determined that 
demolition was the best alternative due to health, safety and welfare reasons. This was made 
only after the City made several attempts to encapsulate and remediate the mold conditions. The 
building was demolished in December 2013. Since rehabilitation was not feasible due to the 
extent and toxicity of the mold, a reconstruction following the Secretary of the Interior's 
Standards may mitigate the impact of the demolition. Furthermore, a reconstructed building 
would be compatible with the historic character of the district. Therefore, the City decided to 
reconstruct the exterior of the original building at 201 Church Street for housing the city's 
Information Technology department and equipment. Site work associated with the reconstructed 
building includes: 

• Widening and paving Church Street 
• Rehabilitation of stone retaining walls in front of the reconstructed building 
• Construction of three parking spaces 
• Construction of a new stone veneer retaining wall west of the parking spaces (See Pg. 8, 

Section 4.0 Topography and Grade of the Commercial Design Guidelines for additional 
information) 

• Installation of three flag poles 



RECOMMENDATION 
The Board of Aldermen should evaluate the application, comments in the report, and any 
testimony by staff and related consultants. The Board should discuss if there is sufficient 
evidence that the Certificate of Appropriateness application for demolition meets the intent of the 
criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, the Residential and 
Commercial Design Guidelines of the City of Black Hawk, as well as the Secretary of the 
Interior's Standards for Reconstruction. 

Staff recommends at the conclusion of its discussion, the Board of Aldermen 
CONDITIONALLY APPROVE the Certificate of Appropriateness application for 
reconstruction of the building at 201 Church Street and site development as submitted and 
included in this staff report when the following conditions are met: 

1. A plan is developed for the protection of cultural landscape or mining features 
uncovered during the demolition, including requiring that construction halts upon the 
discovery of any archaeological resources. Any resources should be documented 
prior to continuing with construction. 

2. A non-freestanding sign is installed that identifies the building as a contemporary re-
creation, with final placement and design to be approved by Community Planning and 
Development staff. 

3. The final design of the flag pole area should be approved by Public Works and 
Community Planning and Development staff 

RESOLUTION DATE: 	 March 26, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY:, 	 Community Planning and 
Development 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: 	 Cynthia L. Linker 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 	 Staff Report and Attachments A-F 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: 	 [ ] Yes [X] No [ ] N/A 
INITIALS 	 

SUBMITTED BY: 	 REVIEWED BY:  

03/19/14 
	 C==)krieSA.--1  

Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D 	 Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

1 

 
CITY OF BLACK HAWK    Date prepared:      March 13, 2014 
PLANNING / LAND USE    Meeting Date:  March 26, 2014 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
For:     Board of Aldermen 
Project: Certificate of Appropriateness for Reconstruction of a Building, 

Rehabilitation of Stone Retaining Walls, Construction of New Parking, 
and Site Work. 

Property Address: 201 Church Street 
Property Owner: City of Black Hawk 
Zoning:  Historic Appreciation and Preservation district (HAP) 
Prepared by:  Cynthia Linker, City of Black Hawk 
Approved by:  Cynthia Linker, City of Black Hawk 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The applicant, the City of Black Hawk, is requesting approval for the reconstruction of a new 
Information Technology (IT) facility building, rehabilitation of stone retaining walls, 
construction of new parking, and other site work at 201 Church Street.   This section of Church 
Street was rezoned in May 2013 (Resolution No. 2013-29) as part of the new Historic 
Appreciation and Preservation district (HAP). The City’s initial intent was to rehabilitate the 
original historic building at 201 Church to house the IT department.  Investigations undertaken 
after acquiring the building, however, revealed that a large portion of the structure contained 
mold.  Cleaning and mitigation efforts over the course of several months to contain the mold 
were unsuccessful. After careful deliberation, the City decided that demolition and 
reconstruction were the only viable alternatives.  
 
The original historic building was comprised of three portions, likely built at separate times.  The 
oldest section was in the front (facing Church Street) and dated from ca. 1870.  By the time the 
1886 Sanborn map was published, there were two rear additions.  The house initially was very 
plain, with little ornamentation and no porch.  However, sometime in the early twentieth century, 
a small hip roof porch was added to the front entry. By the 1940s, the house was in deteriorated 
condition, and the porch was no longer present (see photos in Attachment B).  By the late 1950s, 
it appears that new siding, windows, a porch portico, wood shutters, and a north deck was added.   
 
In 1991, when Black Hawk was added to an expanded National Historic Landmark district, 201 
Church Street was counted as a “contributing” building to the historic district.  The property was 
purchased by the City of Black Hawk in 2013 with the intent to rehabilitate it for use as the 
City’s Information Technology department.  In anticipation of the rehabilitation, the City hired 
Anthony & Associates to conduct a wood analysis in order to determine the age and condition of 
the siding and trim.  A complete environmental inspection was completed in May 2013 by 
Weecycle Environmental Consulting, Inc. as part of the planned rehabilitation.  However, the 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

2 

initial baseline inspection found unacceptable levels of mold throughout the building.  The house 
was subsequently cleaned, and a second reading taken in July 2013.  This also found 
unacceptable levels of mold.  The house was then gutted, cleaned, and the areas of mold were 
encapsulated, but mold was again found in samplings taken on August 1, 2013.  These processes 
were repeated two additional times.  After final collections on August 30, 2013, unacceptable 
levels of mold were again found throughout the building (the staff report dated November 3, 
2013 contains the summary of the mold investigation).   
 
Due to the extent of mold and the pathogenic/toxic nature of the mold, the City determined that 
demolition was the best alternative due to health, safety and welfare reasons.  This was made 
only after the City made several attempts to encapsulate and remediate the mold conditions.  The 
building was demolished in December 2013.  Since rehabilitation was not feasible due to the 
extent and toxicity of the mold, a reconstruction following the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards may mitigate the impact of the demolition.  Furthermore, a reconstructed building 
would be compatible with the historic character of the district.  Therefore, the City decided to 
reconstruct the exterior of the original building at 201 Church Street for housing the City’s 
Information Technology department and equipment.  Site work associated with the reconstructed 
building includes: 

 Widening and paving Church Street 
 Rehabilitation of stone retaining walls in front of the reconstructed building 
 Construction of three parking spaces 
 Construction of a new stone veneer retaining wall west of the parking spaces (See Pg. 8, 

Section 4.C Topography and Grade of the Commercial Design Guidelines for additional 
information) 

 Installation of three flag poles 
 
In accordance with the Black Hawk Municipal Code, all final plans for a Rehabilitation Grant 
must be reviewed by the Board of Aldermen.      
 
 
APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS   
Excerpt from: 

City of Black Hawk 
Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Fund 

Guide to Programs 
 
Section 1:  Program Overview, (e) General Program Information, (3) The City Council shall 
have the authority in its sole discretion to deny any application submitted for a grant or easement 
project, if in their opinion, the Property Owner has neglected to adequately maintain their 
property allowing it to become in a state of disrepair. 
 
 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

3 

Excerpt from: 
City of Black Hawk Zoning Code 

Chapter 16 
Section 16-368, City Council historic review process 

 
16-368: Anyone seeking to renovate the exterior of, add to or construct a new building shall be 
subject to the following procedures. Any such renovation construction or demolition shall be 
subject to the City’s design standards.    
 
f. Criteria for determining appropriateness of proposed erection, construction, reconstruction 
or alteration. In determining appropriateness of a proposed site plan or building permit for the 
erection, construction or alteration of a building, the HPC and the City Council shall consider 
the following: 

1. All plans, drawings and photographs as may be submitted by the applicant; 
Building plans, specifications and photographs showing existing conditions have been 
submitted and are acceptable for review (Attachments A - C). 

 
2. Information presented at a public hearing held concerning the proposed work; 

Findings will be presented to the Board of Aldermen at the Public Hearing scheduled for 
March 26, 2014.   

 
3. The purpose of this Chapter; 

Information received adequately describes the proposed work. 
 

4. Compliance with this Code and the payment of all fees required by this Code; 
The project complies with all regulations.   

 
5. The historical and architectural style, the general design, arrangement, texture, 
materials and color of the development, building or structure in question or its 
appurtenance fixtures; the relationship of such features to similar features of the other 
buildings within the City and the position of the building, structure, park or open space in 
relation to public rights-of-way and to other buildings and structures in the City; 

The main portion of the original building dated from at least the 1870s.  The one-and-a-
half story building was an example of an “I-house” form.  An “I-house” is defined by its 
layout:  one room deep and two rooms wide.  As noted in the web guide to Colorado’s 
Historic Architecture & Engineering, the I-house was “usually constructed with a 
multiple bay façade fronting the road in order to give the appearance of a larger house.”   
 
The reconstructed building will retain the original “I-house” form of the historic building 
on exterior, with sections on the rear built as “additions.”  The original house had 
additions that were present during the period of significance.   

 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

4 

6. The effects of the proposed work upon the protection, enhancement, perpetuation and 
use of the City which cause it to possess a special character or special historical or 
aesthetic interest or value; and 

The property was inventoried in the National Park Service’s 1986 survey, and was listed 
as “contributing” in the 1991 National Historic Landmark (NHL) designation.  Therefore, 
demolition of the original building might negatively affect the current number of 
contributing buildings remaining in the district.  However, the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties allows for reconstruction in very rare 
occasions.  In this instance, the severe mold contamination in the original building would 
have required complete replacement of nearly all building materials, both structural and 
decorative, leaving only structural framing elements on the second story.  
“Rehabilitation” of that building would have resulted in in essentially a reconstruction of 
the building.   

 
7. The design standards for the City. 

Permitted principal uses allowed in the Historic Appreciation and Preservation district 
(HAP) includes: 

a) Public office buildings; 
b) Public parking lots; and 
c) Other public facilities or facilities dedicated to a public use.  

Permitted accessory uses.  Uses which are customarily incidental to any of the principal 
uses and are located on the same lot. 
 
Sections 2. Site Design; 4. Paint, Paint Colors and Lead Paint Issues; and 8. New 
Residential Structures of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines apply to 
this application as the historic building was originally a residence.  However, some 
portions of Sections 4. Site Design and 5.  Building Design of the City of Black Hawk 
Commercial Design Guidelines also applies since this building now has a public use.  
Finally, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for Rehabilitation are 
also relevant.  Listed below are the applicable sections of these guidelines, and the 
consultant’s evaluation for compliance of the proposal for 201 Church Street. 
 

 
Excerpt from: 

 City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines 
2.  Site Design 

2.1  Site design 
2.2.1.  Respect historic settlement patterns and traditional patterns of building 
alignment and orientation 

 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

5 

2.2  Topography and Grade 
2.2.1 Existing topography should be maintained whenever possible. 
2.2.3. Minimize cut and fill that would alter the natural topography of the site. 
2.2.4.  Use terraces for sloped building sites. 
2.2.5.  All land that is visible from a public way shall be reclaimed in a manner 
described below.  

a.  Preferred reclamation methods are:  
 Plantings, as provided in the landscape standards 
 Natural rock, in a stable condition 
 Concrete retaining walls faced with native stone or appropriate wood cribbing. 

2.2.6.  Retain existing natural drainage patterns where possible; design new drainage 
systems to complement and follow the existing terrain. 
 a.  Design drainage systems and storm water detention basins as amenities. 

 
2.3  Fencing 

2.3.1.  Painted wood, wrought iron, picket, woven wire, rail or stone fences are 
appropriate in residential-type areas. 
 a.  Wrought iron fencing should be either black or rust colored. 
2.3.4.  Fences shall be similar to those seen historically. 

 
2.4  Retaining walls 

2.4.1.  Historic stone walls and other site features should be repaired or restored, 
replacing only those portions that are deteriorated beyond repair. 
2.4.3.  Retaining walls should be of dry stone or stone masonry and be compatible with 
other features onsite.   
2.4.5.  Use walls to prevent erosion and drainage issues. 

 
2.5.  Landscaping 

2.5.1.  Maintain established plantings on site. 
2.5.2.  Protect established vegetation near to any construction to avoid damage. 
2.5.3.   Incorporate plant materials in new landscape designs. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with Section 2 of the Residential Design Guidelines: 
The following elements of the proposal meet the residential design guidelines:  the original 
patterns of building alignment are maintained.  A retaining wall, located south of the new 
parking, will be used to prevent erosion issues.  This concrete retaining wall will be faced with 
stone, and the remaining stone walls will be repaired.  The established plantings on the 
remainder of the site will be maintained.  The following elements of the proposal do not meet the 
design guidelines:  the existing topography will not be maintained north of the new building and 
cut and fill in the new parking area is extensive.  



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

6 

 
 

City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines  
4.  Paint, Paint Colors and Lead Paint Issues 

4.1  Color 
4.1.1.  Use historic color schemes. 
4.1.2. Develop a color scheme for the entire building that coordinates all the façade 

elements. 
4.1.3.  Use muted colors for the base and brighter colors for accents. 
4.1.4.  Leave natural masonry finishes unpainted when feasible. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with Section 4 of the Residential Design Guidelines: 
The proposed paint colors for the building meet the design guidelines (see Attachment C).  The 
historic house was originally painted white for nearly a century, and the blue trim color is in the 
pre-approved palette of acceptable colors.    
 

 
City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines  

8.  New Residential Structures 
8.1 Distinction from Historic Structures 

8.1.1  New buildings that are contemporary but compatible are preferred. 
 

8.2 Site and Setting 
8.2.1.  Follow the design guidelines in Section 2 – Site Design when planning a new 

residence. 
2.  New houses should retain the proportion of built mass to open space found 

on surrounding historic properties. 
3.  Minimize effects upon historic resources in the area. 

a.  Identify all existing historic resources including rock walls, outbuildings and 
mining features. Minimize impact when planning new construction. 

 
8.3  Height, Mass and Scale 

A. Height 
8.3.A.1.  New construction should preserve the historic scale of the block and of the 

zone district. 
8.3.A.2.  Maintain the alignment that is created by the similar heights of primary 

roofs and porches. 
B.  Massing and Scale 
8.3.B.1.  Respect the typical scale and proportion established by historic structures 

within the relevant residential area. 
8.3.B.2.  Design new structures in lengths and widths that appear similar to those 

found historically in the zone district. 
8.3.B.3.  Design overall façade proportions to be similar to those of the historic 

buildings in the zone district. 
8.3.B.4.  Break a larger-sized new house into visual modules to compliment the 

smaller scale of historic dwellings. 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

7 

 
8.4 Exterior Materials: Wood Siding and Masonry 

8.4.1. Use materials that are similar in scale, proportion, texture and color to those 
found in Black Hawk’s residential areas. 

8.4.2. Imitation or synthetic materials such as aluminum or vinyl siding, made to 
look like wood siding are inappropriate.  

8.4.3.  Refer to section 4 – Paint, Paint Colors and Lead Issues for paint guidelines. 
 

8.5 Key Architectural Elements 
8.5.1.  Windows and doors should be compatible with the adjacent historic 

buildings. 
a.  Maintain the pattern of solid to void found on the facades of the adjoining 

buildings. 
b. Window and door materials should be similar to the surrounding buildings. 

8.5.2.  Use roof forms that are found in the district. 
8.5.3.  Porches should be similar in scale and details to historic porches in the 

district, and should also compliment the new building. 
 

Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with Section 8 of the Residential Design Guidelines: 
The following elements of the proposal are in compliance with “New Residential Structures” 
guidelines: The site and setting maintain the original settlement patterns.  The height, mass and 
scale of the new construction preserve the historic scale of similar buildings in the historic 
district.  The exterior materials are similar in scale, proportion, texture and color to those found 
in Black Hawk’s residential areas.  The key architectural elements are compatible with other 
residential buildings.  The following is not in compliance with the design guidelines:  the new 
building does not have a “contemporary” appearance.  Instead, it is a reconstruction; therefore 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Reconstruction are more applicable. 
 
Excerpt from: 

 City of Black Hawk Commercial Design Guidelines 
4.  Site Design 

 
A.  Historic Resources 

I.  Respect the character of historic site features, incorporating historic primary and 
secondary buildings, outbuildings, railroad beds, retaining walls and roads, in new 
development. 

II.  Do not remove or relocate historic resources. This diminishes their historic 
significance and their contribution to the character of Black Hawk. 

IV.  All construction activity including excavation, drilling or blasting must be planned 
to avoid damage to historic structures. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.A. of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The historic stone retaining walls on the upper west slope of the property will be retained.  A 
portion of the retaining wall along Church Street will be rehabilitated, but the section 
immediately north of the new building will be removed to provide new parking.  Details about 
construction activities have not been provided. 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

8 

 
 
C.  Topography and Grade 

I. Existing topography shall be maintained whenever possible. Retain existing 
natural slope patterns, follow existing terrain, and avoid rock outcroppings. 

II. Where natural rock remains in stable condition, retain it in its existing condition. 
IV.  Minimize cuts and fills that would alter the perceived natural topography of the 

site. 
VII.  On sloped sites, terracing land by backfilling a series of retaining walls is 

preferred. This technique was used historically in Black Hawk, and its use will 
visually connect new and historic development. 

IX.  Appropriate reclamation methods include plantings, concrete retaining walls 
faced with native stone or wood cribbing, and natural rock in stable condition. 

XII. Where any existing rock retaining walls are removed, an equal amount of rock 
wall shall be constructed as part of the project. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.C. of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
An extensive cut in the hillside immediately north of the house will be made in order to provide 
three parking spaces, which does not meet the design guidelines.  An equal amount of new 
concrete retaining wall faced with native stone is proposed for the slope west of the parking 
spaces.  However, excavation may reveal stable native rock outcropping that could effectively 
serve as a retaining wall.  In this event, the final design should be approved by Public Works and 
Community Planning and Development staff.   

 
D. Building Alignment, Orientation and Spacing 

III. Be particularly sensitive to adjacent residential and historic sites, especially in the 
location and design of utility enclosures and service areas. 

V.  Minimize negative physical and aesthetic impact on adjacent properties when 
planning transportation and circulation patterns. 

VII.Consider opportunities for cooperative site planning with adjacent landowners, 
especially to minimize land area devoted to driveways, parking and service areas. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.D of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The service area and utilities will not impact the adjacent historic building at 211 Church Street.  
Cooperative site planning with 211 Church did not occur however, as the parking and service 
area for 201 Church is separate from the parking at 211 Church.  
 
E.  Primary Buildings 

I.  Locate new buildings and structures to respect and accommodate any existing 
historic resources on the site. 

II.  Locate new buildings and structures to respect and accommodate existing site 
contours, significant vegetation, significant rock outcroppings, and any natural 
limitations of the site. 

III.  Locate all new buildings and structures in accordance with the setback guidelines 
for each given Zoning District. The guidelines reflect the variety of setback and 
spacing patterns seen historically in each District. 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

9 

IV.  Orient buildings toward the street, pedestrian ways and, if applicable, North Clear 
Creek, following the natural contours of the site. 
a) Clearly define primary building entrances, orienting them toward the street. 
b) The building façade shall be aligned with and oriented in the same direction as 

nearby historic buildings in the zoning district. 
c) The primary entrance of the building shall be oriented in the same direction as 

nearby historic buildings in the zoning district. 
d) Locate secondary entrances and exits for easy and clear access to streets, 

sidewalks, pedestrian ways, and parking areas. 
 

Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.E of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
Since the new building is a reconstruction, it will be built in its original location.  This respects 
the original orientation patterns, setback and spacing.  The primary entrance is oriented in the 
same direction.  The new secondary entrance has clear access to the street and parking area. 
 
G.  Parking and Parking Structures 

I.  Surface Parking Lots 
Refer to Chapter 16 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code for information and 
guidelines related to surface parking lots. 
a) Locate parking lots to align with existing site contours and avoid trees and rock 

outcroppings. 
b) Locate surface lots beside or behind buildings on the site. 
c) When located on sloped areas, surface lots shall run parallel to existing site 

contours. 
d) Surface lots shall be linearly shaped. 
e) Minimize the visual impact of surface parking lots as seen from the street. Screen 

parking lots from the street and pedestrian walkways with visually interesting 
landscaping including planting beds, stone walls or fences 

f) Six foot high screens of solid wood, brick or other natural materials shall be used 
to create a buffer between commercial parking lots and service areas and adjacent 
residential areas. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.G of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The surface parking is on one side the building, is linearly shaped, and is not visible from the 
adjacent building at 211 Church, which meets the design guidelines.  However, it is not aligned 
with existing site contours and can be seen from the street, which does not meet the design 
guidelines. 
 
 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

10 

H.  Landscaping 
I.  All development shall be sited to create pocket parks or green spaces that are 

accessible to the public and provide, at minimum, seating and landscaping. 
IV. Provide landscaping, such as hedges, fences and low rock walls, to screen service 

and storage areas located at grade, and to buffer the visual effects of hillside cuts 
and parking and service areas. 
a) Where parking lots abut a sidewalk or other pedestrian way, the edge shall be 

landscaped. 
IX.  Public art and furniture are acceptable and encouraged in areas where landscape 

materials may not survive due to site conditions. Proposed art, furniture and other 
site furnishings may be reviewed by CP&D. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.H of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The cut for the parking lot, as well as the parking lot edge, are not landscaped.  New retaining 
walls, paving, and three flag poles are proposed for the south edge of the property, adjacent to 
the historic building at 211 Church Street.  Final design of this area should be reviewed by the 
Public Works and Community Planning and Development staff. 
 
I. Free-standing signage.  Free-standing signage is discouraged in Black Hawk. 
 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.I of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
Signage has not been finalized.  A condition of approval should require non free-standing 
signage, with final approval by Community Planning and Development staff. 

 
J. Fencing 

I.  Fencing may be used to define property edges. 
II. Fences shall transition smoothly with the grade or wall on which they are located. 
III.Fences shall be similar to those seen historically in Black Hawk, having a modest, 

low-key appearance to support the sense of a natural setting. 
a) Chain link, metal mesh, plastic, fiberglass or plywood fencing materials are not 

acceptable.  Solid privacy or stockade-style fencing is not allowed. 
b) Wrought iron fencing in styles similar to those seen historically is acceptable.  

Wrought iron fencing shall be either black or rust-colored. 
IV. Fences shall not exceed 42 inches in height and shall not be less than 34 inches in 

height except variations which may occur at grade changes. The gap at the bottom 
of the fence shall be minimized, with no more than four inch gap recommended. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.J of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 

Fencing is used to define property edges.  The black wrought iron fencing is similar to those 
seen historically, although it was not present at 201 Church according to historic photographs.  
It is within the acceptable size allowances, and thus meets the design guidelines. 
 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

11 

K. Gates 
I.  Gates shall be of metal or wood, or of the same material and design as the fence of 

which they are part. 
II.  Access gates for mechanical equipment, trash enclosures and storage areas shall 

fully screen the equipment or area and be the same height as the enclosing wall, and 
comply with minimum width requirements of the Fire Code. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.K of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The fence gate is the same material and design as the fence.  The access gate for the mechanical 
equipment enclosure is the same height as the enclosing wall; these meet the design guidelines. 

 
L.  Retaining Walls 

I.  Use retaining walls to define property edges. 
II.  Use wall materials that are compatible with the primary building on the site, or with 

the streetscape and landscape of the site. 
a)  Retaining walls shall be of dry-stack stone or stone masonry, similar to those 

used historically. Un-faced concrete, Jersey Barriers and concrete block are not 
appropriate for use as retaining walls. Where necessary to avoid site erosion, 
portions of the site may be terraced using concrete retaining walls faced with 
native stone or appropriate wood cribbing. 

b)  Free-standing stone walls shall be similar in appearance to those seen 
historically, including finishing and joining. 

c)  Stone used in masonry walls shall reflect the scale and height of the wall. Tall 
and expansive walls should be constructed of larger stone, while short and low 
walls should be constructed of smaller stone. Face stone or dry-stack stone is 
appropriate in low walls. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.L of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
Retaining walls define property edges, and the native stone facings are similar to those used 
historically. 

 
P.  Paving Materials 

I.  Use paving that meets standards for ADA accessibility and all City standards as 
determined by the Department of Public Works. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.P of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The asphalt paving for Church Street and the parking lot meet the ADA accessibility and all City 
standards. 
 
Q. Utility Infrastructure 

I. All new utility lines shall be underground. 
 

Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.Q of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
All utilities will be located underground. 

 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

12 

R.  Service Equipment 
I. Minimize the appearance of utility service boxes, mechanical equipment, heating and 

ventilating systems, service equipment and transformers, or locate them out of 
public view. 

II. Locate utility meters and utility access fixtures, transformers and terminals away 
from pedestrian areas and main entrances. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 4.R of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
An area for new mechanical equipment is located on the north end of the new proposed parking, 
and will be visible to the public.  However, it will be screened, and is not located near pedestrian 
areas or the main entry.  Screening material will mimic the screening at 211/221 Church Street. 
 
 

City of Black Hawk Commercial Design Guidelines 
5.  Building Design 

 
C.  New Buildings 

I.  Adjacent Properties 
a)  Respect the scale, massing and design of neighboring and adjacent buildings in 

the project design. 
 Use traditional historic relationships with adjacent properties to site 

structures and develop building massing and footprint accordingly. 
f) Consider opportunities for cooperative site planning with adjacent landowners, 

especially to minimize land area devoted to driveways, parking and service 
areas. 

 
II. Building Form, Mass and Proportion 

a) Base the form, massing and proportions of new buildings on existing historic 
buildings within the district which can serve as models. 
 Historically, buildings in Black Hawk ranged in height from eighteen (18) to 

thirty-five (35) feet. New buildings shall convey this range of heights even 
when its overall height may exceed thirty-five (35) feet. 

 New buildings shall not appear appreciably larger in scale and volume than 
the existing buildings in the district. New buildings shall be subordinate or 
equal to historic buildings in their perceived dimensions, especially at the 
street edge, where buildings should appear to be similar in height to those 
seen historically. 

 The height of buildings adjacent to the historic core should not appear to 
overwhelm the historic buildings. 

f) Create a change in roof ridge heights to keep from lengths within the range 
found historically, increasing the height of buildings to the rear. 

g) Locate some floor area in basements and in roof dormers to minimize the height 
of buildings. 

 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

13 

Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with 5.C of the Commercial Design Guidelines: 
The new building respects the adjacent historic buildings and development of Church Street.  
The mass and form also respect those historic building models.  The need for additional space 
was accommodated by building a basement, as well as adding a second story to the rear.  This is 
not visible from the public right-of-way.  However, the new parking was not planned with 
cooperative site planning with the adjacent building at 211 Church Street. 
 
The light fixtures for the building at 201 Church Street are simple and compatible with the 
building design.  The lights on the parking lot are evenly distributed, and street lights are 
provided for Church Street.  While most of the light fixtures follow the principle of “Dark Sky”, 
Fixture C and O are an up-light (although frosted) and the flagpole lighting has the potential to 
create glare in night-time sky.  
 
The commercial design guidelines also have recommendations for roof form, roofing and 
skylights, exterior building design, foundations, exterior wall materials, exterior finishes and 
colors, entrances, stairs and ramps, porches, patios and arcades, doors, windows, and signage.  
These guidelines are geared more towards typical commercial buildings and casinos.  As this 
building is a reconstruction and is located on a street that was primarily residential during the 
period of significance, the following standards and guidelines from the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards are more appropriate. 

 
APPLICABLE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR STANDARDS   
The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties have four 
treatment approaches listed in hierarchical order:  Preservation, Rehabilitation, Restoration, and 
Reconstruction.  When selecting a treatment method, there are a number of considerations, 
including the building’s relative importance in history, its physical condition, its proposed use 
and mandated code requirements.   
 
The original historic building was contributing to a National Historic Landmark District, and was 
prominently located on the south side of Bates Hill, overlooking Black Hawk’s downtown.  
However, the original building had a severe and toxic mold problem that did not respond to 
several attempts at mitigation.  The recommended treatment for removing the mold was removal 
of nearly all the building’s existing materials, from siding to framing studs.   
 
The fourth treatment, reconstruction, was selected in order to mitigate the demolition of the 
original building.  It establishes limited opportunities to re-create a non-surviving building in all 
new materials.  It is defined “as the act or process of depicting, by means of new construction, 
the form, features, and detailing of a non-surviving site, landscape, building, structure, or object 
for the purpose of replicating its appearance at a specific period of time and in its historic 
location.”  The six standards for reconstruction are listed below. 
 
1.  Reconstruction will be used to depict vanished or non-surviving portions of a property 

when documentary and physical evidence is available to permit accurate reconstruction 
with minimal conjecture, and such reconstruction is essential to the public 
understanding of the property. 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

14 

2.  Reconstruction of a landscape, building, structure, or object in its historic location will 
be preceded by a thorough archeological investigation to identify and evaluate those 
features and artifacts which are essential to an accurate reconstruction. If such 
resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.  

3.  Reconstruction will include measures to preserve any remaining historic materials, 
features, and spatial relationships.  

4.  Reconstruction will be based on the accurate duplication of historic features and 
elements substantiated by documentary or physical evidence rather than on conjectural 
designs or the availability of different features from other historic properties. A 
reconstructed property will re-create the appearance of the non-surviving historic 
property in materials, design, color, and texture.  

5.  A reconstruction will be clearly identified as a contemporary re-creation.  

6.  Designs that were never executed historically will not be constructed.  
 
Documentation requirements are stringent for reconstruction, since in most cases, there is no 
physical evidence of the missing feature.  In this instance, however, there are numerous historic 
photographs and Sanborn maps.  Furthermore, the historic building was measured and 
photographed prior to its demolition due to mold.  Although the original building changed over 
time, only one period of significance can be selected.  In this case, the period of significance 
selected for the reconstruction is the same as the NHL district – 1859 to 1918.   
 
Code requirements must be met in reconstruction projects, since for code purposes, a 
reconstructed building is essentially new construction.   
 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with Sec. of the Interior’s Standards for 
Reconstruction: 
Building exterior: In order to physically substantiate the building’s appearance, a detailed 
investigation of the original building through site measurements and historic research was 
conducted prior to beginning reconstruction work.  The building’s roof shape, architectural 
detailing, windows, entry, and doors, as well as their spatial relationships and proportions, will 
be recreated on the three elevations visible to the public:  south, east and north. The narrow front 
(east) entry door will remain.  Another door on the south end of the east elevation will be visible 
on the exterior as per the original, but will remain closed on the interior. Code requirements for 
an accessible entry and door will be met by construction of a below-grade, basement level entry 
that will only be visible from the parking on the north side.   A new “addition” on the rear will 
provide additional square footage on the second story.  This will be set against the steep slope of 
Bates Hill.  Finally, the building will have a sign identifying the building as a contemporary re-
creation. 
 
Building interior:  Since 201 Church was not individually listed, but was instead a contributing 
building within a historic district; the interior is not reviewed by City Council.  The Secretary of 
Interior Guidelines for Reconstruction was not applied to the interior.  
 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

15 

Site & Setting:  The building will be sited in its original location, thus maintaining the historic 
spatial relationship between the building and historic site features.   The stone retaining wall in 
front of the building will be rehabilitated, and the remainder of the stone walls on the north and 
west will be retained.  A plan for protecting the remaining extant cultural landscape or mining 
features within the construction zone will be completed prior to new construction.   The new 
accessible parking spaces on the north will result in the demolition of the historic stone retaining 
wall in this area.  Photographic documentation and measurements of this feature will be 
completed prior to construction.  The remainder of the site, with its extant historic stone walls 
and landscape features, will not be disturbed. 
 
SUMMARY 
The National Park Service determined that 201 Church was a contributing building to the 
National Historic Landmark District. Thus the demolition of the building due to toxic mold has 
the potential to negatively affect the overall integrity of the NHL district as a whole.  However, a 
reconstruction following the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards may mitigate the impact of the 
demolition.   
 
The proposed reconstruction follows the Secretary of the Interior Standards and Guidelines for 
Reconstruction for the building’s exterior while still meeting current building codes.  The 
building and its features were documented prior to demolition.  Furthermore, there are numerous 
historic photographs which show the building as it appeared during the period of significance.  
The reconstruction is thus based on documentary evidence.  Requirements for additional space as 
well as accessibility are being accommodated by a new basement, and a rear addition that is not 
visible from the public right-of-way due to the steep terrain.   
 
A condition of approval for the demolition of the original building at 201 Church was that the 
City develops a plan for the protection of cultural landscape or mining features if uncovered 
during the demolition.  This is still a recommended approach.  Any site features disturbed during 
construction should be recorded. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Board of Aldermen should evaluate the application, comments in the report, and any 
testimony by staff and related consultants.  The Board should discuss if there is sufficient 
evidence that the Certificate of Appropriateness application for demolition meets the intent of the 
criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, the Residential and 
Commercial Design Guidelines of the City of Black Hawk, as well as the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for Reconstruction. 
 
Staff recommends at the conclusion of its discussion, the Board of Aldermen 
CONDITIONALLY APPROVE the Certificate of Appropriateness application for 
reconstruction of the building at 201 Church Street and site development as submitted and 
included in this staff report when the following conditions are met: 



S:\700 LU\2009\H P C\Projects\201 Church - City of Black Hawk\Council Packets\032614\COA_Reconstruction_201 Church 
Street_rev1.doc 

16 

 
 

1. A plan is developed for the protection of cultural landscape or mining features 
uncovered during the demolition, including requiring that construction halts upon the 
discovery of any archaeological resources.  Any resources should be documented 
prior to continuing with construction. 

2. A non-freestanding sign is installed that identifies the building as a contemporary re-
creation, with final placement and design to be approved by Community Planning and 
Development staff.   

3. The final design of the flag pole area should be approved by Public Works and 
Community Planning and Development staff. 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
A.  Plans:  IT Facility CD drawings by PEH 
B.  Specifications:  IT Facility by PEH (as noted in Attachment F) 
C.  Paint Color Scheme 
D.  Photographs & Sanborn Map – Historic and Existing Conditions 
E.  Notice of Public Hearing 
F.  Exterior Finishes 











303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com





























303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com

Seward Mechanical Systems



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com

Seward Mechanical Systems



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com

Seward Mechanical Systems



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com

Seward Mechanical Systems

1/2-11/2-11/2-11/2-11/2-1

C.  Piping Exposed to Freezing

11111

B.  Domestic Cold Water

1.51.51.51.01.0100105 and Greater

A.  Domestic and Service Hot Water Systems including recirculation

up
8 and 5 and 6

4
1/2 to -21/4 to 2-1

less
1 and Range (°F)

Temperature

Nominal Pipe Diameter (inches)
Temperature
Mean Rating 

Operating
Design
Fluid

Minimum Pipe Insulation (inches)

PIPE INSULATION SCHEDULE

Plumbing and Piping Specifications

HVAC Specifications

1. Provide an Operation and Maintenance Manual at the end of Construction
2. Provide a set of  redlined  drawings indicating all differences from the contract  documents.
3. Isolation valves for hydronic systems shall be full port ball valves.
4. Hydronic and plumbing piping shall be installed with hangers and thermal hanger shields. Piping 2" and smaller

shall be hung with hot dipped galvanized hangers.  2 1/2" and larger piping shall be hung with standard clevis
hangers.  Plumbers strap is not allowed.  Hanger shall be copper clad when touching copper pipe.

5. Support multiple pipe runs on trapeze hangers or with individual pipe hangers. Trapeze shall be Unistrut
P-1000. Hanger rods for trapeze supports shall be one size larger than specified for the largest pipe supported
by the trapeze. Determine hanger spacing based on the smallest pipe supported by the trapeze. Install additional
trapeze hanger rods at mid-span of trapeze which exceed 42 inches in width.

6. Provide unions and isolation valves at all equipment connections.
7. Install gas piping in accordance with NFPA Standard 54 and the International Fuel Gas Code.
8. Install piping so that it can be easily drained. Provide drain valves and drain lines from each piping low point,

between two block valves, between block valves and backflow preventer discharge check valves, and from each
item of equipment requiring drains.

9. Coordinate wiring responsibilities with Electrical Contractor and Temperature Controls Contractor.
10. Identify all piping accessible for maintenance in crawl spaces, tunnels, and above ceilings, and exposed piping

using pressure sensitive markers, or semi rigid plastic markers. Use arrow marker for piping content legend.
Point arrow away from the legend and in the direction of flow. Color and height of arrow to be same as content
legend lettering.

11. All piping and plumbing systems shall be pressure tested prior to concealment.
12. Provide access doors to all equipment, valves, etc. that will require service or adjustment.
13. Piping shall be insulated as follows:

19. Domestic water  piping shall be:
1.     Above grade:

a.     Type L  hard-drawn copper tube with wrought-copper fittings and low 
liquidus/solidus non-lead, non-antimony solder with a shear strength equal to or greater
than 10,000 psi.  All-State "Aquasafe" or approved equal.

2.     Below grade:
b.     2-1/2 inches and smaller:  Type K soft-drawn copper tube with wrought-copper 
fittings and silver brazed non-lead, non-antimony solder.

20. Interior Soil and Waste and Vent piping shall be:
1.     Above grade:

a.  Galvanized steel pipe with cast-iron drainage fittings
b.  Service weight cast-iron soil pipe with No-Hub fittings
c.  DWV copper pipe and fittings.
d.  Schedule 40 ASTM D2665 polyvinyl chloride (PVC) with ASTM D2564 solvent welded
socket fittings.

2.     Below grade:
Service  weight, cast-iron soil pipe with either hub-and-spigot fittings with neoprene
compression gaskets.

1. Provide an Operation and Maintenance Manual at the end of Construction.
2. Provide a set of redlined drawings indicating all differences from the contract documents.
3. Provide balancing report at the end of the project.
4. Install hinged access panels on ductwork and housing to provide access to all parts of every automatic

damper, fire damper, turning vanes, and all other items requiring maintenance or inspection.
5. Provide a spare set of belts for each piece of equipment that is driven with belt drives.
6. Do not operate units until ductwork is clean, filters are in place and bearings lubricated.
7. Provide condensate drain lines from all condensate pans in equipment. Route to approved location.
8. Ductwork installed in unconditioned spaces shall have a minimum R-value of 6.
9. Ductwork installed in the weather shall have a minimum R-value of 8.
10. All ducts and plenums shall be constructed in accordance with the applicable SMACNA duct manuals

including gauge of metal, type of joint, reinforcing, geometry of the fittings, and support and hanging of the
ductwork.

11. Round duct take-offs from rectangular ductwork shall utilize bell-mouth fittings with balancing damper.
12. Radius elbows with throat radius (measured at inside surface) equal to duct depth should be used wherever

possible. Rectangular elbows are discouraged. If rectangular elbows are needed, they shall have single-wall
turning vanes, with intermediate supports if the length of the vanes exceeds 36". Edges of the turning vanes
shall be parallel with the sides of the elbow.

13. Provide flexible connections on all vibrating or rotating equipment.
14. Provide dampers as necessary for proper adjustment and control of air distribution. All dampers shall have

rigid bearings and locking quadrants that allow no rattling. All damper rods shall be marked to indicate the
relative position of the damper blade with respect to the rod.

15. At all places where inside of duct (or other surfaces) will be visible through return air grilles, louvers,
registers, or diffusers, paint normally visible inside portion of duct (or other surfaces) with flat black paint.

16. Transitions in ductwork, for changing shapes and sizes, shall be made with angles not exceeding 15 degrees
per side wherever possible.

17. All ductwork shall be sealed with sealant per SMACNA Standards.
18. Provide two complete sets of medium efficiency filters for use during construction, testing, and balancing

periods. Provide a complete set of new spare filters after completion of testing and balancing.

21. Natural gas and LPG piping shall be:
1.   Interior, exposed or accessible:

a.  2 inches and smaller:
1)  Pipe:  Schedule 40, ASTM A120.
2)  Fittings:  Threaded, malleable iron.
3)  Joint Seal:  Rector seal or Teflon paste.
4)  Unions :  Black malleable iron, ground joint, bronze to iron seat, 150 pound

class, ANSI B2.1 and ASTM A197.
b.  2-1/2 inches and larger:

1)  Pipe:  Schedule 40, ASTM A53, type S, Grade B.
2)  Fittings:  Butt weld ASTM A234.
3)  Unions:  Forged steel, weld-neck flange,  150-pound class, ANSI B16.5 and

ASTM A105.
2.  Interior, concealed or in air plenums:  All pipe and fittings shall be welded type.
3.  Below grade and outside of building footprint:  Standard weight, black iron with all joints

welded and wrapped per code, or approved PE pipe.
22. Equipment drain   piping shall be:

1.   Type L copper with wrought copper fittings, 95/5 solder.
2.   Schedule 40 galvanized steel pipe with 150-pound malleable iron threaded fittings.
3.   Schedule 40 PVC pipe with solvent welded fittings.

23. Grade  waste and vent inside of building with a uniform grade of not less than piping 1/8-inch per
foot for all horizontal piping 4" in diameter or greater. All waste lines inside the building less than  4"
in diameter shall be graded to not less than 1/4" per foot.
23.   Provide cleanouts for sanitary and storm sewer systems.  Cleanouts shall be full size except that

maximum size shall be 4 inches.  Install cleanouts full size at base of all sewer mains, at changes
in direction of sewer mains, and at the ends of each horizontal run.  Install cleanouts in horizontal
piping for interior sewers at a maximum spacing of 50 feet for piping 3 inches or smaller and 100
feet for piping 4 inches or larger; and of a maximum spacing of 100 feet for exterior sewers.
Install cleanouts 6 inches above the highest trap on the floor in the main vent of each group of
fixtures and in vent stacks for isolated fixtures on each floor.

24.   Assemble lavatory and sink wastes and traps with slip joints with lock nuts and rubber gaskets or
with threaded joints on fixture side of trap.  Do not use slip joints on sewer side of traps.  Make
sewer side connections with screwed trap nipples, compression fittings or solder joints.

25. Provide a vacuum breaker at each hot and cold water service outlet to which a hose can be 
attached.

26. Provide approved wall carriers appropriate for the installation for wall mounted lavatories.  
Coordinate depth of carriers with wall thickness.

27. Mounting  Heights:
Water Closet:

a. Standard:  15 inches to top of bowl rim
b. Handicapped:  17 inches to 19 inches to top of seat
c. Handicapped  juvenile:  11-1/2 to 12 inches to top of seat



303-442-0408, fax: 303-447-1905
Boulder, CO 80302

1319 Spruce Street  Suite 207  

e-mail: peheinz@peharchitects.com

Seward Mechanical Systems



 
1.  PROVIDE ALL EQUIPMENT AN D SER VICES NEC ESSARY TO INSTALL THE 

COMPLETE SYSTEMS DESCRIBED  BY THE C ON TRAC T DOCUMENTS AND  
SPECIF IED BELOW .  THE DR AWINGS ILLU STRATE TH E GENER AL DESIGN AN D 
EXTENT OF  THE PERFOR MAN CE REQUIR ED.  ALL D IMENSIONS AND  
LOCATION S SHALL BE TAKEN FROM THE AR CHITECT URAL D RAW INGS. 

 
2.  COMPLY WITH ALL STATE AND LOCAL CODES, UTILITY COMPANY 

REGULATION S, FIR E D EPARTMENT R EQU IREMENTS AND  THE LATEST  
EDITIONS OF  TH E NFPA CODES. 

 
3.  EQUIPMENT AND MATER IALS SH ALL BE NEW , UL-LISTED FOR  THE USE 

IN TEND ED , BE FREE FROM D AMAGE OR  DEFEC T AND SHALL BE INSTALLED  
PER THE MAN UFAC TUR ER S IN STRUC TION S. 

 
4.  THE CONTRACTOR  SHALL BE R ESPONSIBLE FOR THE SUCC ESSF UL 

OPERATION OF THE ELEC TRICAL SYSTEMS FOR A PERIOD OF ON E YEAR  
FR OM THE D ATE OF FIN AL ACCEPTAN CE.  PR OVIDE OPERATING AND  
MAIN TENANC E INSTRUC TIONS FOR ALL ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS.  

 
5.  SUPPORT CON DUIT  AN D EQU IPMENT FR OM THE STRUC TU RE TO PREVENT 

SAGGING, POCKETING, SWAYING AN D VIBR ATIONS. 
 

6.  PROVIDE SLEEVES AND  IN SER TS FOR  ALL ELEC TRICAL CON DUIT , SEAL ALL 
COND UIT  PENETR ATIONS PASSING TH ROUGH FIRE RATED  BAR RIERS AND  
EXTERIOR W ALLS WITH AN APPR OVED MATER IAL TO MAINTAIN TH E FIRE 
RATED INTEGRITY. 

 
7.  PROVIDE COMPLETE SYSTEMS OF  C ON DUC TORS AN D R AC EWAYS U SING 

COND UIT  AN D/OR  C ABLE ASSEMBLIES APPR OPR IATE TO THE FU NCTION AN D 
LOCATION  AN D SPEC IFIC ALLY APPR OVED BY THE NEC.  C ONDUCTORS MUST 
BE DERATED  PER THE NEC.  LOAD BALANC E THE ENTIRE SYSTEM T O W ITHIN 
15% PER PHASE.  PROVID E A COMPLET E GROUND ING SYSTEM IN  
ACC OR DANCE WITH ARTICLE 250 OF THE N EC . 

 
8.  PROVIDE GALVANIZED STEEL OUTLET AND JUN CTION  BOXES, EXC EPT  

W HERE OTHER WISE IN DIC ATED.  BOXES SHALL BE A MINIMU M OF  4” SQUARE 
OR OCTAGONAL WITH DEPTH  AS REQUIRED.  PR OVIDE W EATH ER PROOF 
TYPE CAST BOXES W ITH GASKET  AND CAST  COVER PLATES FOR  ALL WET 
LOCATION S.  THR OU GH  THE W ALL BOXES AR E NOT PERMITTED .  PR OVIDE 
PLAST ER OR TILE RIN GS FOR ALL FLU SH  OU TLETS INSTALLED WH ERE 
REQUIRED. 

 
9.  ALL C ON DUC TORS SHALL BE COPPER, RATED  AT  600 VOLTS (STRANDED FOR 

NO. 8 AWG AN D LARGER), W ITH THE FOLLOW IN G INSULATION  RATIN GS: 
THHN, TH WN , XHHW .  THE CON DUCTORS SHALL BE APPLIED USIN G THE 75C  
RAT ING TABLE. 

 
 

10. DO NOT INSTALL EXPOSED COND UIT  IN AREAS OPEN  TO THE PUBLIC.
EXPOSED R ACEW AYS MU ST BE W IR EMOLD WH ERE REQUIRED AN D ONLY 
W HERE APPROVED BY THE ARC HITEC T.  RU N EXPOSED R AC EWAYS
PARALLEL TO AND  AT RIGHT ANGLES W ITH THE BUILDING LINES. 

 
11. USE FLEXIBLE METALLIC COND UIT  F OR  CONNEC TIONS TO MOTORS, 

FIXTURES AND OR OTHER  EQUIPMEN T WH ERE VIBR AT ION IS ENC OUNTER ED. 
 PR OVIDE SEALTITE FLEXIBLE METALLIC C ON DUIT IN W ET AREAS. 

 
12. PROVIDE A GROUND  W IR E IN NON-METALLIC CONDUIT , ROMEX AND FLEXIBLE 

COND UIT . 
 

13. PROVIDE C IRC UIT BR EAKER TYPE LOADCEN TERS AS SC HEDULED ON THE 
DR AWINGS.  BR EAKERS SHALL BE FULL WID TH, THERMAL MAGNETIC, PLUG-IN
TYPE.  PR OVIDE MULTI-POLE BREAKER S WITH C OMMON  TRIP AN D SINGLE 
OPERATIN G H AN DLE.  PROVIDE SEPAR ATE GR OU ND BUS.  PROVID E A TYPED 
DIRECTOR Y IN A DIRECTOR Y FRAME.  IN STALL TRIMS AND  DOOR S WITH THE 
PRIMER  COATS IN FIN ISHED AREAS.  PROVID E ONE SPARE ¾” CONDUIT U P OR 
DOW N TO AN  AC CESSILBE LOCATION FOR EACH  3 U NUSED POLES IN THE 
LOADCENTER.   LOADC EN TERS SH ALL BE SQU ARE D  OR EQUAL. 

 
14. PROVIDE BRANC H C IRC UITS, FEED ERS, JUN CTION  BOXES, DISC ONNECT 

SW ITC HES, ETC . AS REQUIR ED FOR A COMPLETE SYSTEM.  MAKE POW ER  
CONN ECTION S TO MOTOR S AN D CONTR OLS FOR HEAT ING, VENTILATION, AIR 
COND ITION ING, PLUMBING AN D OW NER  FU RNISHED EQU IPMENT AS 
REQUR IED. 

 
15. EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES, RACEW AYS, BALLASTS, EQUIPMEN T, ETC. 

SHALL BE W EATHERPR OOF AND  SU ITABLE FOR TEMPERATU RES D OWN  TO -
20F. 
 

16. TELEPHONE: PROVID E A C OMPLETE SYSTEM OF C ABLING. E.C. SHALL BE 
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL CAT5 VOICE/DATA W IRIN G AND  RG6U CABLING. FIELD
VERIFY ALL TELEPHONE OUTLET LOCATIONS W ITH  TH E ARC HITEC T OR  
OW NER INCLUD ING THE MOU NTING HEIGH T. 
 

17. SW ITC HES SH ALL BE INSTALLED A M INIMU M OF  5” CLEAR FROM DOOR JAMBS 
OR AS REQUIR ED  T O NOT INTERFERE WITH DOOR CASING. COOR DIN ATE 
W ITH  ARC HITECTU RAL DR AW IN GS. 
 

18. ALL JUNC TION BOXES SHALL BE METALLIC (NON-METALLIC NOT PERMITTED).
 

 

 





MOUNTING: VOLTAGE: 120/208V-3PH-4W
NEMA RATING: A.I.C. RATING: 10,000
SERVICE ENTRANCE RATED: 225 AMP
ISOLATED GROUND BUS: BUS SIZE: 225 AMP

LEFT PHASE LOAD RIGHT PHASE LOAD
A B C A B C

  R RECEPT-BASEMENT 20 1 1 720 520 2 20 1 L  
 R RECEPT-BASEMENT, EF-2 20 1 3 590 555 4 20 1 L  
 MR FURNACE F-1 20 1 5  1176 940 6 20 1 L  
 R RECEPT-BLDG EXTERIOR, EF-3 20 1 7 560 235 8 20 1 L  
 R RECEPT-FIRST FLOOR 20 1 9 1080  510 10 20 1 L  
 R RECEPT-FIRST FLOOR 20 1 11 720 720 12 20 1 R 1
 R RECEPT-FIRST FLOOR 20 1 13 720 - 14 20 1   
 R RECEPT-COFFEE 20 1 15 1000 - 16 20 1   
 R RECEPT-KITCHEN 20 1 17 360 - 18 20 1   
 R RECEPT-INSTAHOT, DISPOSAL 20 1 19 1100 - 20 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 21 - - 22 20 1   
 R RECEPT-HALL, RR, EF-1 20 1 23 797 - 24 20 1   
 R RECEPT-WORK AREA 20 1 25 720 - 26 20 1   
 R RECEPT-2ND FLOOR 20 1 27 540 - 28 20 1   
 R RECEPT-2ND FLOOR 20 1 29 540 2000 30 30  H  
 MI GEN. BATTERY CHARGER 20 1 31 500 2000 32  2 H  
 MI GEN BLOCK HEATER 20 1 33 500 2000 34 30  H  
 ML AC-1/CU-1 30  35 2080 2000 36  2 H  
 ML -----  2 37 2080 1567 38 60  MI  
 MR CU-2 20  39 1000 1567 40   MI  
 MR -----  2 41 1000 1567 42  3 MI  

 6400 4710 6673 4322 4632 7227
10722 9342 13900

33964
CD LOAD D.F. KVA AMPS
L LIGHTING 2760 VA 1.25 3.5
R RECEPTACLES (1ST 10000) 10000 VA 1.00 10.0
R RECEPTACLES (REMAINING) 167 VA 0.50 0.1

ML MOTOR (LARGEST) 4160 VA 1.25 5.2
MR MOTORS (REMAINING) 3176 VA 1.00 3.2
H ELECTRIC HEAT 8000 VA 1.25 10.0 1. PROVIDE GFI PROTECTED BREAKER.
MI ELECTRICAL MISC. 5701 VA 1.00 5.7 2

TOTAL ESTIMATED LOAD 33964 VA 37.6 104.5 3
ALL SINGLE PHASE SHARED NEUTRAL CIRCUITS SHALL BE SUPPLIED WITH BREAKER HANDLE TIES PER NEC 210.4

Total Connected V.A.
=Total Connected VA all Phases

CONNECTED

LIGHT/RECEPT-PEDSTRIAN POL
RECEPT-SOFFIT
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPACE ONLY
SPACE ONLY

N
O

TE
S

N
O

TE
S

N
O

TE
S

SNOW MELT CONTROL

SNOW MELT CONTROL
-----

CD DESCRIPTION SIZE P CIR. CIR. SIZE P CDDESCRIPTION

(NEW)

BRANCH BREAKERS
LOCATION:

PANEL "IT"
-----

LIGHT-BASMENT
LIGHTS-FIRST FLOOR
LIGHTS-2ND FLOOR
LIGHTS/REC-PARK'G, STEP, FLA

-----

-----

-----
UPS

MLO: 
1 3R

FLUSH SURFACE

MOUNTING: VOLTAGE: 120/208V-3PH-4W
NEMA RATING: A.I.C. RATING: 10,000
SERVICE ENTRANCE RATED: 100 AMP
ISOLATED GROUND BUS: BUS SIZE: 100 AMP

LEFT PHASE LOAD RIGHT PHASE LOAD
A B C A B C

  R RECEPT-SERVER ROOM 20 1 1 720 - 2 20 1   
 R RECEPT-SERVER ROOM 20 1 3 720 - 4 20 1   
 R RECEPT-SERVER ROOM 20 1 5  720 - 6 20 1   
 R RECEPT-SERVER ROOM 20 1 7 720 - 8 20 1   
 R RECEPT-SERVER ROOM 20 1 9 1080 - 10 20 1   
 R RECEPT-SERVER ROOM 20 1 11 720 - 12 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 13 - - 14 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 15 - - 16 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 17 - - 18 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 19 - - 20 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 21 - - 22 20 1   
  SPARE 20 1 23 - - 24 20 1   
  SPACE ONLY - - 25 - - 26 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 27 - - 28 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 29 - - 30 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 31 - - 32 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 33 - - 34 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 35 - - 36 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 37 - - 38 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 39 - - 40 - -   
  SPACE ONLY - - 41 - - 42 - -   

 1440 1800 1440 0 0 0
1440 1800 1440

4680
CD LOAD D.F. KVA AMPS
L LIGHTING 0 VA 1.25 0.0
R RECEPTACLES (1ST 10000) 4680 VA 1.00 4.7
R RECEPTACLES (REMAINING) 0 VA 0.50 0.0

ML MOTOR (LARGEST) 0 VA 1.25 0.0
MR MOTORS (REMAINING) 0 VA 1.00 0.0
H ELECTRIC HEAT 0 VA 1.25 0.0 1. PROVIDE NEW BREAKER IN EXISTING SPACE.
MI ELECTRICAL MISC. 0 VA 1.00 0.0 2. REPLACE EXISTING SPARE BREAKER WITH NEW BREAKER SHOWN.

TOTAL ESTIMATED LOAD 4680 VA 4.7 13.0 3. PROVIDE ARC-FAULT BREAKER.
ALL SINGLE PHASE SHARED NEUTRAL CIRCUITS SHALL BE SUPPLIED WITH BREAKER HANDLE TIES PER NEC 210.4

Total Connected V.A.
=Total Connected VA all Phases

CONNECTED

SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPACE ONLY
SPACE ONLY

N
O

TE
S

N
O

TE
S

N
O

TE
S

SPACE ONLY

SPACE ONLY
SPACE ONLY

CD DESCRIPTION SIZE P CIR. CIR. SIZE P CDDESCRIPTION

(NEW)

BRANCH BREAKERS
LOCATION: SERVER ROOM

PANEL "UPS"
-----

SPARE
SPARE
SPARE
SPARE

SPACE ONLY

SPACE ONLY

SPACE ONLY
SPACE ONLY

MLO: 
1 3R

FLUSH SURFACE

 FAULT CURRENT AMPS AVAILABLE AT ASSUME EXISTING
75 KVA TRANSFORMER (120/208V-3P-4W)   = 13,000 AMPS

FAULT #1  (LOCATION: AT MAIN DISC. SWITCH)

1.73 x 125 x
1 x 13,923 x

1
1 + 0.841

FAULT AVAILABLE = 13,000 x = 7,059 AMPS

 
FAULT #2  (LOCATION: AT NEW PANEL "A")

1.73 x 10 x
1 x 12,843 x

1
1 + 0.040

FAULT AVAILABLE = 7,059 x = 6,791 AMPS0.962

240

M =

f =

M =

= 0.040

0.543

7,059

0.962

=

13,000
240 = 0.841

0.543

FAULT CURRENT CALCULATIONS

f =

=

1

2

KEY LAMP(S) DESCRIPTION FINISH VOLT MOUNTING MFR CAT. NO.

M 8W LED 3000K
24" LED ADJUSTABLE UNDER CABINET LIGHT WITH INTEGRAL 
DRIVER WHITE 120 SURFACE CON-TECH ULED8-WW-XXX

L (1) 50 HPS
CITY OF BLACK HAWK STANDARD "GLOBE PEDESTRIAN 
LUMINARE" WITH INTEGRAL PHOTOCELL BLACK 120 GRADE

MOUNTAIN 
STATES LIGHTING

XCEL ENERGY CAT. ID 
211033

120 WALL OXYGEN APOLLO 3-5107-2-24

C 40W LED MED 
BASE 3500K DECORATIVE EXTERIOR FIXTURE WITH OPAL GLASS GLOBE

CLASSIC 
BLACK 120 WALL REJUVENATION

ALSEA A7107/   
GLOBE B5105

D 15W LED 3500K
DECORATIVE WALL SCONCE WITH MATTE WHITE ACRYLIC 
DIFFUSER AND INTEGRAL DRIVER

SATIN 
NICKEL

WALL OR 
CEILING

RECESSED IN 
GYP CREE

KR4-9L-35K-120-10V-
KR4T-SSGC-FF

G (1) 26W CF 
FURN. W/ UNIT 52" DIA. 5BLADE CEILING FAN WITH SINGLE LAMP - 120 PENDANT HUNTER 28724

F 850lm LED
4" DIA. LED DOWNLIGHT WITH 0-10V DIMMING DRIVER AND 
SOFT GLOW REFLECTOR WHITE 120

X1 FURNISHED 
WITH UNIT HUBBELL EVC-U-G-W-I-EVO

SURFACE KENALL
MR13LED-PP-DB-LED-

120

FIXTURE SCHEDULE

RECESSED IN 
GYP WILLIAMS

50F-S14-232-A12125-
EB2-120

B1 (4) 28W T8 
3500K

8' ARCHITECTURAL LINEAR FLUORESCENT PENDANT WITH 
FLAT ENDCAPS. DUAL CIRCUIT WHITE 120

FULLY ADJ. 
AIRCRAFT CABLE FINELITE

S16-8-DCO-4-2-DC-
91W-CCO-120-FA-FE-

CF

A (2) 28W T8 
3500K 2-LAMP FLUORESCENT TROFFER WITH SINGLE BALLAST WHITE 120

H 20W LED 3500K
13" DIA. EXTERIOR LED AREA LIGHT WITH POLYCARBONATE 
LENS

DARK 
BRONZE 120

LED SINGLE FACED EXIT SIGN WITH  REMOTE LED EXTERIOR 
UNIT, BATTERY AND SELF DIAGNOSTICS WHITE UNV

J 2W LED 5" DIA. DECORATIVE LED EXTERIOR STEP LIGHT
SHOT 

BLASTED 120

UNV WALL DUAL-LITE LZ-2IEM1 FURNISHED 
WITH UNIT

EMERGENCY EGRESS LIGHT WITH BATTERY AND SELF 
DIAGNOSTICS WHITE

SURFACE LUMASCAPES LS371LED-2W4-04-BR

K 35W LED 5000K LED FLAG POLE NARROW SPOT LIGHT
DARK 

BRONZE 120 GRADE KIM CFL6-27L5KUV-DB

B2 (6) 28W T8 
3500K

12' ARCHITECTURAL LINEAR FLUORESCENT PENDANT WITH 
FLAT ENDCAPS. DUAL CIRCUIT WHITE 120

FULLY ADJ. 
AIRCRAFT CABLE FINELITE

S16-12-DCO-4-2-DC-
91W-CCO-120-FA-FE-

CF

B3 (8) 28W T8 
3500K

16' ARCHITECTURAL LINEAR FLUORESCENT PENDANT WITH 
FLAT ENDCAPS. DUAL CIRCUIT WHITE 120

FULLY ADJ. 
AIRCRAFT CABLE FINELITE

S16-16-DCO-4-2-DC-
91W-CCO-120-FA-FE-

CF

O 75W LED MED 
BASE 3500K DECORATIVE EXTERIOR FIXTURE WITH OPAL GLASS GLOBE

CLASSIC 
BLACK 120 GRADE REJUVENATION

PORTLAND A4820/ 
GLOBE B9164



PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

	

2.1 	MATERIALS, GENERAL 

A. 	Lumber: DOC PS 20 and applicable grading rules of inspection agencies certified by ALSC's 
Board of Review. 

1. Factory mark each piece of lumber with grade stamp of inspection agency indicating 
grade, species, moisture content at time of surfacing, and mill. 

2. For exposed lumber, mark grade stamp on end or back of each piece. 

	

2.2 	WOOD-PRESERVATIVE-TREATED MATERIALS: Not used. 

	

2.3 	FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED MATERIALS: Not used. 

	

2.4 	STANDING AND RUNNING TRIM 

A. 	Lumber Trim for Painted Finish: 

1. Species and Grade: Western red cedar, Clear Vertical Grain, 5/4" Thickness 
2. Maximum Moisture Content: 7-12 percent 
3. Finger Jointing: Not allowed 
4. Face Surface: Rough Sawn 
5. Pre-prime all sides of trim prior to installation 
6. Install trim on furring strips as required so that trim stands proud of horizontal lap siding 

B. 	Corner Trim Capitols 

1. Species and Grade: Western red cedar, Clear Vertical Grain, thickness as required per 
plans — min 5/4" 

2. Maximum Moisture Content: 7-12 percent 
3. Finger Jointing: Not allowed 
4. Face Surface: rough sawn 
5. Pre-prime all sides of trim prior to installation 

C. Window Head Trim 

1. Species and Grade: Western red cedar, Clear Vertical Grain, 5/4" Thickness 
2. Maximum Moisture Content: 7-12 percent 
3. Finger Jointing: Not allowed 
4. Face Surface: Rough Sawn 
5. Pre-prime all sides of trim prior to installation 
6. Install trim on furring strips as required so that trim stands proud of horizontal lap siding 

2.5 	HORIZONTAL LUMBER SIDING 

A. 	Provide kiln-dried lumber siding complying with DOC PS 20. 

EXTERIOR FINISH CARPENTRY 	 06 20 13 - 3 



B. Species and Grade: Clear VG (Vertical Grain) Heart western red cedar; NLGA, WCLIB, or 
WWPA. 

C. Pattern: Bevel siding, S1S2E, actual overall dimensions of 8 by 1/2 inch at historic building, 6 
by 1/2 inch at 2nd  floor addition, measured on the face and thick edge at 12 percent moisture 
content. Refer to dwgs for locations. 

D. Pre-prime all sides of siding prior to installation. 

	

2.6 	PLYWOOD SIDING: Not used. 

	

2.7 	HARDBOARD SIDING: Not used. 

	

2.8 	PLYWOOD SOFFITS: Not used. 

	

2.9 	BEADBOARD SOFFITS 

A. 	Beadboard Soffits: Primed beadboard, complying with AHA A135.6, with manufacturer's 
standard exterior primer. 

1. Type: 1x4 douglas fir DVG Beaded ceiling, smooth 

2. Pre-prime prior to installation. 

3. Board to be installed parallel to eaves and perpendicular to gable ends. 

B. 	Colors, Textures, and Patterns: smooth, prime and paint according to Section 9: "Painting" 

	

2.10 	STAIRS AND RAILINGS: Not used. 

	

2.11 	ORNAMENTAL WOOD COLUMNS: Not used. 

2.12 MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS 

A. Fasteners for Exterior Finish Carpentry: Provide nails or screws, in sufficient length to 
penetrate not less than 1-1/2 inches into wood substrate. 

1. 	For face-fastening siding, provide ringed-shank siding nails unless hot-dip galvanized 
nails are used. Fasteners to be concealed by consecutive laps in siding. 

B. Wood Glue: Waterproof resorcinol glue recommended by manufacturer for exterior carpentry 
use. 

EXTERIOR FINISH CARPENTRY 	 06 20 13 - 4 



E. Sealed Insulating Glass Manufactures Association / Insulating Glass Certification Council (SIGMA / IGCC).  

F. American Architectural Manufacturers Association (AAMA): 2605: Voluntary Specification for High 
Performance Organic Coatings on Architectural Extrusions and Panels. 

G. National Fenestration Rating Council (NFRC): 101: Procedure for Determining Fenestration Product 
Thermal Properties. 

1.4 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

A. Design and Performance Requirements: 

1. Window units shall be designed to comply with ANSI / AAMA / N1NVVDA 101 / I.S.2-97 and 101 / I.S. 2/ 
NAFS-02 

a. Double Hung / Single Hung: (H-LC40 rating up to CN 3036, CN 4026) (H-LC30 Rating up to 
CN4036) 

b. Picture: (F-C40 rating up to CN 6878) 

2. Air leakage shall not exceed the following when tested at 1.57 according to ASTM E 283: s 0.30 cfm 
per square foot of frame. 

3. No water penetration shall occur when units are tested at the following pressure according to ASTM E 
547: (H-LC40 - 6.0) (H-LC30 - 4.5) (F-C40-6.0) (TR-C40-6.0) psf. 

4. Window assembly shall withstand the following positive or negative uniform static air pressure 
difference without damage when tested according to ASTM E 330: (H-LC40 — 60) (H-LC30 — 45) (F-
C40-60) (TR-C40-60) psf. 

1.5 SUBMITTALS 

A. Shop Drawings: Submit shop drawings under provisions of Section 01 33 00. 

B. Product Data: Submit catalog data under provisions of Section 01 33 00. 

C. Samples: Finish Color 

D. Quality Control Submittals: Certificates: Submit manufacture's certifications indicating compliance with 
specified performance and design requirements under provisions of Section 01 33 23. 

1.6 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Installer Qualifications: Minimum 3 years experience in work of this Section.  

B. Conform to applicable accessibility code for locating hardware. 

1.7 DELIVERY 

A. Deliver in original packaging and protect from weather. 

1.8 STORAGE AND HANDLING 

A. Prime or seal wood surfaces, including surface to be concealed by wall construction, if more than thirty (30) 
days will expire between delivery and installation. 

08 52 13 - 2 



Furnish manufacturer's warranty providing coverage against defects in materials and workmanship 
and warpage beyond specified amount. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 MANUFACTURERS 

A. 	Acceptable Manufacturers (Exterior & Interior Door): 
1. TruStile 
2. Classic Door & Milwork 
3. Simpson 
4. Substitutions in accordance w/ Sections 01 33 00 and 01 60 00 

2.2 Exterior Stile and Rail Wood Doors 

A. 	Exterior Stile and Rail Wood Doors: Exterior doors complying with AWI's "Architectural Woodwork 
Quality Standards," and with other requirements specified. 

1. 	Panel Designs: Indicated by Drawings. Do not modify intended aesthetic effects, as judged 
solely by Architect, except with Architect's approval. If modifications are proposed, submit 
comprehensive explanatory data to Architect for review. 

2. 	Grade: Paint. 
3. 	Finish: Opaque. 
4. 	Wood Species and Cut: Poplar, plain sawed/sliced, smooth. 
5. 	Door Construction: 

a. Stile and Rail Construction: Clear lumber; may be edge glued for width. Select lumber for 
similarity of grain and color, and arrange for optimum match between adjacent pieces. 

b. Stile and Rail Construction: Veneered, structural composite lumber core. Core to be 
laminated veneer lumber or parallel strand lumber. 

c. Flat-Panel Construction: Edge-glued, clear lumber; glued to both sides of a wood-based 
panel product. Select lumber for similarity of grain and color, and arrange for optimum 
match between adjacent pieces. 

d. Square edge sticking 
6. 	Stile and Rail Thickness: As specified on the door schedule. 

7. 	Stile and Rail Widths: 

a. Stiles, Top and Intermediate Vertical Stile: 5 inches. 
b. Intermediate Horizontal Rail: 10-1/2 inches. (Center at 36" above door bottom) 
c. Bottom Rails: 12 inches. 

8. 	Flat-Panel Thickness: 3/4 inches. 
9. 	Provide AVVI Quality Certification Labels or an AWI letter of licensing for Project indicating that 

doors comply with requirements of grades specified. 
10. 	Provide WI-Certified Compliance Certificate indicating that doors comply with requirements of 

grades specified. 
11. Mark, label, or otherwise identify stile and rail wood doors as complying with WDMA I.S.6A and 

grade specified. 

2.3 Interior Stile and Rail Wood Doors 

B. 	Interior Stile and Rail Wood Doors: Interior doors complying with AWI's "Architectural Woodwork 
Quality Standards," and with other requirements specified. 

08 14 33-2 
	

Stile and Rail Wood Doors 



SECTION 08 11 13  

HOLLOW METAL DOORS AND FRAMES 

Frames shall be pressed steel to profile indicated on the Drawings, 16-gauge 
(unless otherwise noted) cold rolled, pickled, annealed steel, unit type 
welded construction, with angles, modes, returns and miters neatly welded and 
weld beads ground smooth. 

All frames at exterior doors to be fully welded units. 

Prepare frames to receive mortised type hardware. 
• Spot-weld reinforcing plates to inner surface of jambs at hinge, lock, 

latch, and other hardware locations. Hinge reinforcements shall be 10-
gauge steel for lightweight core doors, 7-gauge steel for others. 

• All other hardware reinforcements shall conform to SDI-100. 
• Spot-weld 24-gauge galvanized steel plaster guards over hardware from 

templates furnished to frame manufacturer by hardware supplier. 
• Provide suitable reinforcements for surface applied hardware. 
• Punch door stops to receive rubber silencers as required. 

Provide frames with fixed insert anchors welded to face and flange returns 12" 
down from top, then 24" on center. 
• Provide frames with minimum 14-gauge floor clips welded to each jamb, 

face and flanges punched for anchoring to floor. 
• All anchors to be suitable for wall conditions. 
• At door openings wider than 42" and at multiple openings, reinforce head 

members full length with 12-gauge steel channel. 
• Brace door frames with temporary wood or metal spreaders to insure 

maintaining square and true shapes in shipping. 
• Frames or doors damaged in any way shall not be installed. 

Provide frames with UL labels as required or as indicated on the Drawings. 

2.2 PRIMING FOR FRAMES  

Frames to receive one shop coat of rust inhibitive primer. 

Primer shall be smooth surface, ready to receive finish coats at time of 
delivery and when installed. 
• No runs, overspray, dust or other defects will be allowed. 
• Primer shall be bonded to metal sufficiently that upon aging it will not 

chip or flake when scraped through. 

2.3 HOLLOW METAL DOORS: Not used 

2.4 PRIMING FOR DOORS 

Doors to be thoroughly cleaned, bonderized and primed with shop coat of light 
gray zinc chromate rust inhibitive primer, baked on. 

Primer shall be smooth surface, ready to receive finish coats at time of 
delivery and when installed. No runs, overspray, dust or other defects will be 
allowed. Primer shall be bonded to the metal sufficiently that upon aging it 
will not chip or flake when scraped through. 

2.5 STANDARD STEEL DOORS  

08 11 13-3 



SECTION 08 11 13  

HOLLOW METAL DOORS AND FRAMES  

General: Provide doors of design indicated, not less than thickness indicated; 
fabricated with smooth surfaces, without visible joints or seams on exposed 
faces. Comply with ANSI A250.8. 
• Core Construction: Manufacturer's standard, polystyrene, or 

polyurethane, core that produces doors complying with ANSI A250.8. 
• Vertical Edges for Single-Acting Doors: Square edge unless beveled edge 

is indicated. 
• Beveled Edge: 1/8 inch in 2 inches. 
• Top and Bottom Edges: Closed with flush or inverted 0.042-inch- thick 

end closures or channels of same material as face sheets. 

2.6 STANDARD STEEL FRAMES:  Not used. 

2.7 STOPS AND MOLDINGS 

Moldings for Glazed Lites in Doors: Minimum 0.032 inch thick, fabricated from 
same material as door face sheet in which they are installed. 

Fixed Frame Moldings: Formed integral with standard steel frames, minimum 5/8 
inch high, unless otherwise indicated. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.1 GENERAL 

Contractor shall install steel doors, frames, finish hardware and 
appurtenances provided by the Owner plumb, rigid, properly aligned, securely 
fastened in place, and as indicated on the Drawings, as specified herein, and 
in accordance with manufacturer's written instructions. 

At fire-protection-rated openings, install doors and frames according to NFPA 
80. 

Install smoke control doors in accordance with NFPA 105. 

Masonry Walls: Coordinate installation of frames to allow for solidly filling 
space between frames and masonry with mortar as specified in Division 4 
Section "Concrete Masonry Unit Assemblies." 

Concrete Walls: Solidly fill space between frames and concrete with grout. 
Install grout in lifts and take precautions, including bracing frames, to 
ensure that frames are not deformed or damaged by grout forces. 

3.2 FRAME INSTALLATION 

In concrete walls, provide adjustable T-strap type anchors, of not less than 
16-gauge steel or 0.156" diameter steel wire. 
• Provide a minimum of four anchors per jamb for frames up to 8'-0" in 

height. 
• Provide minimum of five anchors per jamb for frames up to 10 feet in 

height. 

Frames in drywall partitions shall be equipped with anchors for both 
attachments through studs. 
• Provide a minimum of 4 anchors at each jamb up to 9' height fabricated 

from 18-gauge steel. 

08 11 13-4 



SECTION 07 62 00  

SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

WORK INCLUDED  

Work in this section includes flashing, counterflashing, gutter, downspout, 
fabricated sheet metal items and sheet metal accessories. 

Comply with following: SMACNA- "Architectural Sheet Metal Manual", 6th edition 
and NRCA- "Roofing and Waterproofing Manual", 5th edition. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE  

Except as otherwise indicated, conform to requirements and recommendations of 
SMACNA "Architectural Sheet Metal Manual", as applicable and including joints, 
seams, details and accommodation of thermal movement. 

Sheet metal and flashing installations shall be designed to withstand 100 mph 
wind uplift. 

WARRANTY 

Sheet metal work shall be warranted for a period of 2 years from date of 
substantial completion. 

Warranty shall include replacement at Contractor's expense any defects which 
occur during the warranty period which, in the opinion of the 
Architect/Engineer, are due to defective materials, workmanship, or for 
failure to allow for expansion/contraction. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

MATERIALS  

• Galvanized Steel Sheet: Commercial quality carbon steel sheets with 
minimum of 0.20% copper content complying with ASTM A653/ A653M-09a; 
hotdip galvanized to comply with ASTM A653/ A653M-09a, G90, mill 
phosphatized if shown to receive paint finish, 24 gage except as 
otherwise indicated. 

▪ Manufacturer: Rutland Gutter Supply, Orlando, FL 32824, 877-859-1119 or 
equal. 
• Gutters: 4" Galvanized, "Single Bead" (no paint) 
• Gutter Hanger: 4" Galvanized, "Roof mount hanger w/ scroll" (no 

paint) 
• Downspouts: 3" Galvanized, "Round Fluted" (no paint) 
• Downspout Straps: 3" Galv. "Adjustible Pipestrap with Lag Screw" (no 

paint) 
• Conductor/Leader Heads: Aluminum, "LH001" (if required) 

ACCESSORIES  

• Solder: For use with steel, furnish lead-free solder complying with ASTM 
B32-08, with rosin flux. 

• Fasteners: Same metal as sheet metal flashing or other noncorrosive 
metal as recommended by sheet metal manufacturer. Match finish of 
exposed heads with material being fastened. 

• Mastic Sealant: Polyisobutylene; nonskinning, nondrying, nonmigrating 
sealant. 

ACCESSORIES Continued.  

• Metal Accessories: Provide sheet metal clips, strap anchoring devices, 
and similar accessory units as required for installation of work, 

07 62 00 - 1 



SECTION 07 62 00  

SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM  

matching or compatible with material being installed. Noncorrosive; 
Size and thickness required for performance. 

• Installation Accessories: Provide joint tape, adhesives, sealers, and 
fasterners as recommended by flashing manufacturer for indicated 
applications. 

• Bituminous Coating: Heavy bodied, sulfur-free, asphalt-based paint; 
FS TT-C-494. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

• Form sections true to shape, accurate in size, square, and free from 
distortion or defects. 

• Fabricate cleats of same material as sheet, interlocking with sheet. 
• Form pieces in longest possible lengths. 
• Hem exposed edges on underside ;I inch; miter and seam corners. 
• Form material with flat lock seams, except where otherwise indicated. 

At moving joints, use sealed lapped, bayonet-type or interlocking hooked 
seams. 

• Tin edges of sheet to be soldered. Solder shop formed metal joints. 
After soldering remove flux. Wipe and wash solder joints clean. 
Weather seal joints. 

• Fabricate gutters from same material and finish used for adjacent 
exposed flashing. 

• Fabricate downspouts from same material and finish used for adjacent 
exposed flashing. 

• Fabricate accessories in profile and size to suit gutters and 
downspouts. Anchorage devices- recommended by manufacturer. Gutter 
supports- Brackets space at 18 inches on center. Downspout Supports-
20 guage straps at each joint and at center of section. 

• Seal metal joints. 
• Expansion Provisions: Provide for thermal expansion of all exposed 

sheet metal work exceeding 15'-0" running length except as otherwise 
indicated. Conceal fasteners and expansion provisions wherever 
possible. 

• Flashing & Trim - 10'-0" maximum spacing, and located 2'-0" from corners 
and intersections. 

• Flashings: Insert flashings into reglets. Anchor by mechanical means, 
including driven wedges of lead or other compatible metal, spaced 2'-0". 
Seal the joint with sealant. Provide two-piece flashing wherever 
possible. Hem all exposed edges by fold-back on concealed side. 

END OF SECTION 

07 62 00 -- 2 



.144 UR.. ES..., 	PANEL"IT" 1.111•112. s, Mv 	 •ar. 
Immtrovenwnwf 	 p•••• 
INUOMM.111101. 	 1.1.0• Mo. 

EICEI I off 111 	 OliC EI m-a0r-c:dramora •A•=• m00..1.10Oigh 17007•∎011111 	Lid 	M.L.A 
M-11 OM l.-  1 	ILA 	 000 2 CI 
...11 	L.J 	aml 	OlIN0:° 0 1,-01.,-1,0 BS 	00 	lk, 010.0 	CI 00 L.-I 0 	0 0 Lilioi M 0 El 	lad0 	0.01Cil 	• 010 	01 0 010,L.U■0 II 0 	"010 02 	0 	00a0C.1.10 MI211■1100•.71 0 	0 !MO 0.1.■• MI CB:01•00aa•1010.111/ 	LS 	0 MOS 001■10 It vs -u1,Lu 	KAM 00 	0 	Ohl .1....11..0.■1 is 0,-2 10 ROM .02.1:,0■110. 00 1. -,0•711011 fi0 	laS 	L.1 

O
00:0 ---..:.2.112 0 	MOM a.. 2.-1 	OM) Cwoo■ 0 C1-0-.101.011 	0.:_, 	Lml 	m. •,,.-.. 	GI 0:31=11■01N 11,21,•■ 	t-t 	f3 Mt. =■ ES 13= 11■11Mil RJ 	1,11 	01.2 	C3 r1..■1,1 0011.7i. ICI.L1 ..111 l,1" 0 MU r=111= 11..1 es■:0■10=00110La 100001111111111111101110003101 21FeeZ10,0  011L00101•113 al ,.. V-1--,--0010O2lOB Cazsm•-ra0111110001202.2 =0101•2B 04001011d-.7122 SOLI 0 - 000001 

H  

❑. 
0 

sleaelfullielailla 

PANEL 'UPS" 
dam • ma. 

••• erma mah: 
111.7 1.••••• 

- 1:1C31 200,1: a ---imnr- 	ORS 	• a,. • 0 WM 020110.0■ 0 ,,,_ 00 

	

00 MLA 
ft,a :-xl: 0 	01 U.LY 	• 

. 	' ws ...1 ... 	asur.. 	0 am-m11G/0 	ma 	o 	101.1 00 o. 1.102 o 	0 	0 'hmh1.■00 0s.r■000 0 0 - - ilse ld = ., MM.M0 	MI Lh: ,-, MO • 	in.:-. 10: IdIme mmam Icm 	. mriE...._ 	EH. :  .......,... ......... 	.. t-, ammi 	Id-.-m•O■ di 0=000■0100011 0 	a= 01112r-■.7-. .hl■ 0 MUSEL=■01=1111 0 M=SMMI1 	0 _zoiM Oa t.m. d dd 	0 3 dic Um 0 .-...-m. MC.MLM■00i 	WM 	IN:•,.-- IKIN 0 . ...•-:.1:.•kl. ■■ 0 MU...R=001100 	0 	MR 01N 0 .-.:,1,•11■ 0 M=.1M■10100 10 	00. •-..e-s.:■ 0 MC05.:5■•=003 	o 	0 	0 0 L. ...::..000 01,1,LL,i1 10 0 	Mi 	M1 as ...--A. MEN■ M 
0=J11L-1000. 

1170=1.2670•=11=1 ..matEm 
4...i.,"-TN■=111/WILL11 cr -0101011010301001112.1 c2C••■-p-0-i11007110001 her.mhx00■10100.005 

Yr2allaC00110331.10 Itttgral=1111M 

*SEIM 

INESN1 

0501 
00.74 

DETAIL NOTES 

W
0 

 Mp. =•••/ft Mad 1011LIC• Kb m unrecd. tha Oar toe torde co o as d smn m rmma rarge 0 oho WM MY 

00 0 Oa 1001,00 

4.0 04 004,13 WS' 
amp ma comet 41 4, MCC 4•11• 

.14% PIP= 	L1 	 

PE H ARCHITECTS 
1210 $P.,0 Smut SlR•207  

esuldts, CO E0302 
303-147-0403, }us 303447.1606 

e-sudt salm/m4ushartSbess.**n 

IT Facility 
City of Black Hawk 

201 Church Street 
Bleck lid.. Colorado $0422 

FM VIZ 

ELECTRICAL ROOF PLANS, 
ONE-LINE AND SCHEDULES 
440 
tWi 	■141,41,• 0.114 44. 	1,1.   .E-202 

JCN Engineering Inc 

=a:  111.1.Nemnow .01.111 
WM= 

ad  0.• 
1:0011••• 

MAI 
opal. IIMIA11.114•••• 

O

▪ 

 0.1.• 
•■■••■■ 	 ••20.1,1.2•1120 

LANE LIMPACKY alms uti,wprn mil..., mr 
04.4171C11 

•••• 

11•81.1141•14 

•••••X••••11.141. 
rwomm.,)■mbmo. 

• 

%MINI 4.11LICA■LB Arommimame. 

Maga 

ca 31.7.1.114.4■•• 1.4■•■•••1 

...Tye [LIMIER ra.te 	0■41.01.414 .0•E 

OUM 

GIVCe 

RACE 

111.61 LED ksP, 1.■p roso P. woman/ imar..1.17 

.ararat.'. 
ReArVnalPF 

connernommrtn 0,1,7[1211 IALte.7410:4 

1,19•41. 

OL1,1/7[ 

,IxTURE SC 

cenrr 	111 

®  ROOF PLAN - LIGHTNING PROTECTION 

FAULT CURRENT CALCULATIONS 
flOciAPS47.0.5A.LtaLE AT /..E•511.0 

alWal.131 ammo. •  0.■ 

tat 1/1-  • 1,12.  

,f4,11,33.‘,10..111•Ir 

: 	 

÷-ar 
mAilLykoaiE 	DEO • VII MS at() 

1•L• •■.j 

®  ROOF PLAN- HEAT TRACE 
Slat 	• ,*4 

tai  YL 
ELECTRICAL ONE-LINE DIAGRAM 



• :i 	i ,'■-• • 	 • 
• •• 

3- 	• 	 • 	 • •i '34r 

 a. • 
Wf," • 

     

• • 7---'7.-77 	 '77 -77 -17 , 

- 

TRIM COLOR  
SHERWIN WILLIAMS 
SW7606 BLUE CRUISE 

WINDOW TRIM 
MARVIN 
STONE WHITE IP- 

 

SHINGLES  
OWENS CORNING OAKRIDGE SERIES 
DRIFTWOOD 

  

SIDING COLOR  
SHERWIN WILLIAMS 
SW7101 FUTON 

02/19/14 

201 CHURCH STREET 
BLACK HAWK • COLORADO ARCHITECTS 

BOULDER, COLORADO 



Attachment D:  Photographs & Sanborn Map (historic and current) 
 

  
1886 Sanborn Map 

 

 
c. 1870.  Note: no shutters, porch, or rear additions.  Also note mining feature on one side. 

  



 

c. 1880-1889. Rear addition & wood retaining wall. 
 

 
Between 1899 & 1910.  Multiple terraces, stairs (no porch) 

  



 
c. 1900 (?).  Porch portico added, stone wall extends to end of property line. 

 
 

 
Between 1940-1950.  Note deteriorated condition, no porch. 



 
1958.  New entry portico, siding, windows, shutters, second story deck & outbuilding. 

 

 
2013.  Looking northwest, at front elevation 



 
2013.  Looking north, at south & front elevation 

 

 
2013.  Looking west at front elevation  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013.  Second floor, interior, showing one of several attempts to encapsulate the mold. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014.  Looking north, at the south end of the property. 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014. Looking west from Church Street. 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 
the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for the proposed reconstruction and site improvements of 
201 Church Street. This property is described in Exhibit A below and is generally located 
at the end of Church Street.  
 
The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 
Wednesday, March 12, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 
hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk City Council Chambers located at 211 
Church Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event 
these hearings are adjourned. 
 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  
MAY ATTEND 

 
Jeanie Magno 
City Clerk 

 
Exhibit A 

 
201 Church Street –  
 
S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 024 Lot: 010 THRU Lot: 012 & IMPS 
 



Attachment F:  Exterior Finishes for 201 Church Street 
 
Siding & Trim (Specifications: section 06 20 13 – part 2.4 and part 2.5) also see attached 
example photo. 
·         Western red cedar, clear vertical grain 
·         6” exposure lap siding on the historic portions 
·         4” exposure lap siding on the 2nd floor addition 
·         Window trim elevation provided 5/A300 
  
Windows (Specifications: section 08 52 13 – part 2) also see attached cut sheets. 
·         Marvin Windows Aluminum Clad windows 
·         “Stone White” aluminum exterior cladding (painted wood interior) 
·         Simulated Divided light 5/8” width (“stone white” aluminum exterior grill, 

stainless steel between the glass grill, wood interior grill) 
·         Divided light patterns per elevations sheet A300 
  
Doors at First floor (Specifications: section 08 14 33 – part 2.2) also see attached cut 
sheets. 
·         Four panel wood door. Upper to panels to be glass at door #10 and #11 
 
Door to Basement in Tunnel (Specifications: section 08 11 13 – part 2.5) 
·         Insulated steel door – smooth flat slab (no panels, no glass) 
·         Wood bead board affixed to exterior face 
  
Gutters & Downspouts (Specifications: section 07 62 00 – part 2) also see attached cut 
sheets. 
·         4” Half-round galvanized gutters (no paint) – Same gutters as found on the 

Commercial Bldg. 
·         3” fluted round galvanized downspouts (no paint) - Same gutters as on the 

Commercial Bldg. 
  
Light Fixtures (Construction Documents: Fixture schedule on sheet E202) also s  ee 
attached cut sheets. 
·         Fixture C – building mounted exterior light – Globe will be a frosted smooth finish 

to match 211 and 221 Church.  NOT a frosted faceted globe as shown. 
·         Fixture H – ceiling mounted tunnel light 
·         Fixture J – recessed step lights 
·         Fixture K – flag lighting 
·         Fixture L – Street lamp post - 8’-0” ht. post w/ round globe 
·         Fixture O – Wall mounted parking light 
 



Nathan
Text Box
Smooth Bevel Lap Siding

Nathan
Text Box
Smooth Beaded Soffit

Nathan
Text Box
Rough Fascia

Nathan
Text Box
Rough Trim(Window & Corner)



Marvin Double Hung Windows for New Construction & Remodeling

http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/exterior/[4/11/2012 8:53:50 AM]

DOUBLE HUNG

Homeowner | Windows | Double Hung | Ultimate Double Hung | Exterior

INTERNATIONAL

FIND A DEALER SEARCH SITE

REQUEST INFORMATION

FOR PROFESSIONALS

Ultimate Insert Double

Hung

Tilt Pac Double Hung Sash

Replacement System

Ultimate Double Hung

Magnum

Specialty Double Hung

Windows

SIMILAR PRODUCTS
OPTIONS SIZES, PERFORMANCE AND SPECS PRODUCT DESIGNER PRODUCT REVIEWS

FEATURES AND BENEFITS

INTERIOR FINISH OPTIONS

EXTERIOR FINISH OPTIONS

Pine (Standard) Vertical Grain Douglas Fir Mahogany

Primed Wood

Wood Species

Wood is a  product  of nature and will vary  in  color,  texture and grain. The wood options shown above are

to demonstrate the approximate look of each species only.  The photos are not intended to reflect a

product’s interior or  exterior  profile.

Clad Color Options

Marvin's low maintenance, clad-wood products feature an extruded aluminum exterior finished in commercial-grade paint for superior

http://www.marvin.com/request-information/
http://www.marvin.com/request-enewsletter/
http://www.marvin.com/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/
http://www.marvin.com/international-distributors/
http://www.marvin.com/request-information/
http://pros.marvin.com/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/
http://www.marvin.com/patio-doors/
http://www.marvin.com/patio-doors/
http://www.marvin.com/benefits-features/
http://www.marvin.com/benefits-features/
http://www.marvin.com/new-construction-remodeling/
http://www.marvin.com/new-construction-remodeling/
http://www.marvin.com/window-door-ideas/
http://www.marvin.com/window-door-ideas/
http://www.marvin.com/windows-and-doors/
http://www.marvin.com/windows-and-doors/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/insert-double-hung-replacement-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/insert-double-hung-replacement-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/window-sash-replacement/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/window-sash-replacement/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/magnum-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/magnum-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/specialty-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/specialty-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/options/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/options/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/sizes-performance-and-specs/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/sizes-performance-and-specs/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/product-designer/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/product-designer/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/product-reviews/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/product-reviews/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/features-and-benefits/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/features-and-benefits/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/interior/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/interior/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/
http://www.marvin.com/window-door-ideas/window-pictures/windows-wood-double-hung-windows/


Marvin Double Hung Windows for New Construction & Remodeling

http://www.marvin.com/windows/wood-double-hung-windows/exterior/[4/11/2012 8:53:50 AM]

Bronze Stone White Evergreen Pebble Gray

Bahama Brown Arctic White Sierra White Coconut Cream

French Vanilla Cashmere Desert Beige Cumulus Gray

Cadet Gray Cascade Blue Cobalt Blue Hampton Sage

Sherwood Green Wineberry Ebony

resistance to fading and chalking.

Custom Colors Made for You

Create the colors that spring from your imagination. Custom colors are available from Marvin Windows and Doors.*

All standard, select and custom colors meet AAMA 2605-05.

Clad colors shown are approximate. Please visit a Marvin retailer near you to see color samples.

*Minimum quantities and additional lead-time are required. Up-front charges based on per-unit for windows and per panel for

doors, and a Custom color set-up charge is required.

Exterior Casing

Choose an exterior casing option to enhance the profile and architectural detail of your home. Exterior casing options are available in

wood or extruded aluminum factory-finished with a commercial-grade paint.

Clad-wood products come standard without exterior casing. If desired, a casing option can be specified at time of order.

All wood windows and doors come standard with wood Brick Mould Casing applied. If Flat Casing is desired, it must be

specified at time of order.

Add exterior clad casing to Marvin windows and doors to enhance your home’s architectural detail. These casings provide the look of

wood but are a durable, low maintenance alternative.

Nathan
Rectangle



Double Hung

Head Jamb and Sill

Single Hung

Head Jamb and Sill

Single Hung Jambs
Lower and upper sash

Double Hung Jambs
Lower and upper sash

NOTE:

Optional half screen shown.

DP50 Sill Liner

4 9/16"
(116)

1 19/32"
(40)

3 7/16"

(87)

11/16"
(17)

5 21/32"
(143)

1 3/32"
(28)

4 9/16"
(116)

3 7/32"

(82)
1 9/16"

(40)

2 13/32"

(61)

3 9/16"

(90)4 27/32"

(123)

D
a

yl
ig

h
t

O
p

e
n

in
g

1 3/4"

(44) 2 9/16"
(65)

D
a

yl
ig

h
t

O
p

e
n

in
g

F
ra

m
e

S
iz

e

3 9/16"

(90)
2 5/8"

(67)

1 11/32"

(34)

1 11/32"

(34)

5 21/32"

(144)

1 19/32"

(40)

3 7/32"

(82)

3 7/32"

(82)

Frame
Size

1 11/32″

(34)

1 11/32″

(34)

5 21/32″
(144)

4 9/16″
(116)

1 9/16″

(40)

1 9/16″

(40)

3 7/32″

(82)

3 7/32″

(82)

Frame
Size

5 21/32″
(144)

4 9/16″

(116)

11/16″

(17)

1 3/32″

(28)

1 3/4″

(44) 2 9/16″

(65)

3 9/16″

(90)4 27/32″

(123)

D
a

yl
ig

h
t

O
p

e
n

in
gF

ra
m

e
S

iz
e

2 13/32″

(61)

3 7/32″

(82)

D
a

yl
ig

h
t

O
p

e
n

in
g

1 9/16″

(40)

Daylight
Opening

Daylight
Opening

8.29
2012−02−27 11708324

Marvin Architectural Detail Manual

CLAD ULTIMATE DOUBLE HUNG
SECTION DETAILS: OPERATING ONLY
SCALE: 3� = 1� 0� (76 = 305)

Nathan
Rectangle



Divided Lite Options

Insulating Glass 3/4� Grille 1 1/8� GrilleAluminum
11/16� Contour GBG

3/4
(19)

11/16
(18)

1 1/8
(29)

5/8
(16)

7/8
(22)

1 1/8
(29)

5/8� SDL 7/8� SDL 1 1/8� SDL5/8� SDL
with Spacer Bar

5/8
(16)

7/8� SDL
with Spacer Bar

7/8
(22)

1 1/8� SDL
with Spacer Bar

1 1/8
(29)

8.35
2012−02−27 11708324

Marvin Architectural Detail Manual

CLAD ULTIMATE DOUBLE HUNG
SECTION DETAILS: DIVIDED LITE OPTIONS
NOT TO SCALE

Nathan
Rectangle



per plan



STILE 

4_5/8" 

"- 1 /2" 

JOB # 

COMPANY: LEGACY 

WOOD: POPLAR 

5" 

4-1/2" 

SQUARE/NONE 
STICKING 

EXT 
SIDE 

1 /2" 

5/8" LOW-E TEMP IGU 

PLEASE APPROVE SHOP bRAWING X-SECTION 

DATE: 



Doors of Distinction 



Choice and Quality 

Classic Poor 6- Millwork, Inc. 
creates doors of distinction for 

the entire home. We offer a wide 
variety of decorative entryways, 

including an array of options 
for cut and beveled art glass, 

matching sidelights, transoms, and 
a variety of wood species. All doors 

are handcrafted from premium 
materials and exceeds NWWPA 
manufacturing standards, with 
a conditional one year limited 

warranty. In custom and standard 
door designs our products 

display exceptional quality and 
workmanship, including extended 

height microlam cores and advance 
joinery techniques. Structurally 

and aesthetically, Classic's custom 
doors add a distinctive dimension 

to any home. 

2 



Custom Choices 

Pear Valued Dealer, 
CUSTOM CHOICES are what were all about. We are a wholesale manufacturer of custom 

hardwood stile and rail doors. We distribute only through wholesalers, lumber yards, home centers 
and door shops. All doors are sold in the unfinished raw wood state. Our production is divided into 
four areas. 

1. Our standard line of exterior wood and glass doors allows your customer to 
express their own personal tastes and life style by choosing from: 

a) A variety of popular door style designs and combinations 
b) Standard sizes ready for fabrication or retrofit 
c) At least 14 different wood species 
d) Custom glass designed to interchange within our door sidelight, and transom line, 

providing a great value 
el Custom glass designs made available through experienced quality craftsmen 

2. Our 20 Minute stile and rail fire doors were tested at Interteck-Warnok 
Hersey® in such a way to provide a very versatile choice of: 

a) Different stickings to match major manufacturers standard lines 
b) Attractive raised mouldings to compliment our standard line 
c) Different panel raise options 
d) Sizes up to 3/6 x 8/0 
e) Machined to your specs, including full mortise locks 
f) Panel configurations from 6" x 6" up to 32" x 51", including radius panels 
g) A variety of wood options with a certain specific gravity or above 

3. Our craftsmanship and abilities allow us to achieve distinctive doors which you 
and your customer desire: 

a) Any architectural design that is aesthetic and/or structurally feasible 
b) Historical reproductions 
c) Oversized and/or thicker doors that require engineered stiles 
di Unbalanced doors with different species on each face 
el Exotic wood species 
f) Arched, angled, or radius top doors and panels 
gl Custom carvings, distressed, wire brushed 

4. Our millworking ability allows us to make jambs, frames and trim to match 
your custom door wood species: 

a) Many varieties of wood species available 

13) Custom arched, radius or eliptical jambs or frames 

c) Exterior or interior trim to match many standard profiles 

We have over 2Z000 (and growing daily) prices in the computer to provide you with quick and 
accurate quotes. Prices are updated continuously and quotes are good for 30 days. Lead times vary, 
but our average time is from 6 to S weeks. Kush orders are available for a 20% up charge. All doors 
come with a standard One Year Limited Warranty unless specifically disclaimed in the warranty 
or at time of quote. Shipping and crating is charged separately and will be added to each invoice as 
needed. We look forward to showing you, with pride, that MAPE 114 AMERICA still means quality. 

3 



Handling, Storage, Finishing and Installation 

Handling, Storage, Finishing and Installation 
1. Do not walk on or drag doors across one another or 

across any other surface. 

2. Store doors flat on a level surface in a dry, well venti- 
lated building. 

3. Cover to keep clean, but allow air circulation. 

4. Do not expose doors to moisture, soiling, direct sunlight, 
sudden temperature extremes or dramatic changes in 
humidity. Doors should be conditioned for72 hours to the 
average prevailing humidity of the locality before hanging. 

5. If the doors are to be stored on the job site, all ends and 
edges must be sealed with an effective quality sealer in 
order to prevent undue moisture absorption. 

6. DO NOT DELIVER TO THE INSTALLATION SITE UNTIL 
AFTER THE PLASTER AND CEMENT ARE DRY. 

7. Doors may be trimmed up to 3/4" in width (3/8" maxi- 
mum from each side) or 2" in height (up to 1/2" from top 
and up to 11/2" from bottom) 

8. Allow adequate clearance of approximately 1/8" at each 
edge and top when fitting door. 

9. Use three hinges on all doors up to 7' in height and four 
hinges on doors over 7'. 

lo. Jambs and stops must be set square and plumb. 

11. Avoid impairing the strength of the door when fitting for 
locks or other hardware. 

12. Exterior doors must be protected by flashing and in- 
stalled under an overhang. 

13. Prior to exterior exposure, doors must be completely 
finished. 

14. Immediately after cutting and fitting but before hanging, 
remove all hardware and prepare the door for finishing. 
Do not finish doors during or immediately after high- 
moisture periods. 

15. Before applying stain, sealer and finish, a thorough, 
light, hand sanding with 180 grit paper is necessary to 
remove blemishes, fingerprints and handling marks. 

16. Clean door thoroughly after sanding with a cloth to 
remove all dust and foreign material. 

17 Use only Wgh-grade finishing materials in accordance 
with the paint/stain manufacturer's instructions. A UV 
inhibitor and or good grade Beta blacker is highly rec- 
ommended. 

18. Do not use lacquer-based toner or finish on an exterior 
doors under any circumstances. 

19. ALL SIX (6) SIDES OF THE DOOR INCLUDING THE TOP 
AND BOTTOM EDGES MUST BE COMPLETELY SEALED 
AND FINISHED WITH AT LEAST TWO TOP COATS. 

zo. Glass seal is warranted for 5 years by glass manufac- 
turer, provided breather tubes (if provided) are closed 
immediately upon arrival at the point of installation. 

Limitations and Exclusions 
I. Unsatisfactory service or appearance caused by 

failure to follow the "handling, storage, finishing and 
installation instructions." 

2. The appearance of field finished doors and or fai lure to 
maintain finish under extreme conditions. Doors which 
have an unbalanced finish, (i.e., paint outside / stain 
inside) 

3. Doors painted or stained dark and exposed to direct 
sunlight. 

4. Natural variations in the color or texture of wood. 

5. Doors which are improperly hung, do not swing 
freely, or have incompatible hardware. 

6. Normal wear and tear or panel shrinkage are not 
considered a defect covered by this warranty. 

7. All doors with panels over 26" in width are excluded 
from this warranty. 

8. Warp shall not be considered a defect unless it 
exceeds 1/4" on doors 7' or under or 3/8" on doors over 
7'. Warp is any distortion in the door itself and shall 
include bow, cup and twist. Measurement of the amount 
of warp in a door will be determined by placing a 
straight-edge on the suspected concave face of the door 
at any angle (i.e., horizontally, vertically, diagonally), 
with the door in an installed position. The measurement 
of bow, cup and twist shall be made at the point of 
maximum distance between the bottom of the straight-
edge and the face of the door. 

g. Warranty against warp shall exclude all doors that are 
an 13/8" thick and are wider than 3' or higher than 7', or 
used in an exterior application. 

10. Warranty against warp shall exclude all doors that are 
an 13/4" thick and are wider than 3'6" or higher than 8'. 

it Wood surface checks, miter joints and other wood joint 
shrinkage shall not be considered a defect unless such 
exceeds '/32" in width. 

12. Failure to double seal all six (6) edges (including 
hardware cuts), and provide adequate flashing and 
overhead protection prior to exterior exposure will 
result in this warranty being null and void. 



Limited Warranty 

All doors manufactured by Classic Door & Millwork 
are warranted (except those expressly excluded) for 
a period of one year from date of shipment to be of 
good material and workmanship and free of defects 
which render them unserviceable for ordinary 
recommended use. This warranty is extended to 
the original purchaser as well as all subsequent 
purchasers for the period of one year from date of 
shipment to the original purchaser. 

Inspections 

Upon arrival, all shipments must be inspected for 
shortages and or freight damage and noted on 
the shipping ticket. It is the responsibility of the 
consignee to file freight claims on all nonprepaid 
freight shipments. All visible defects must be 
reported within seven days and or before the door 
is fitted, beveled, bored, hung, sealed or finished. 
The manufacturer must be notified, in writing, 
within one year from date of shipment of any 
defects discovered or occurring after the door is 
hung. 

Warranty Provisions 

Upon receiving a timely claim, the manufacturer or 
manufacturer's representative must determine that 
all requirements for handling, storing, finishing, 
and installation have been or were met. And at this 
time, and solely at his option, the manufacturer 
'.vill exercise one of the following 3 options. (1) 
Repair the defective door(s) in the unfinished state. 
(2) Replace the defective door(s) without 
responsibility for cost of removal, hanging, 
or finishing of new and or temporary doors. 
(3) Refund the current owner an amount not to 
exceed the original purchase price paid to the 
manufacturer. 

General Provisions 

Except as specifically set forth herein, there are no 
other warranties expressed or implied, including 
merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, 
or any other such warranties. The manufacturer 
shall not be liable for consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages or for any amount in excess of 
the manufacturer's price for the door(s) involved, 
whether the claim is for breach of warranty or 
negligence. 

Limitations and Exclusions 

1. Unsatisfactory service or appearance caused 
by failure to follow the "handling, storage, 
finishing and installation instructions." 

2. The appearance of field finished doors and 
or failure to maintain finish under extreme 
conditions. Doors which have an unbalanced 
finish (i.e., paint outside / stain inside). 

3. Doors painted or stained dark and exposed to 
direct sunlight. 

4. Natural variations in the color or texture of 
wood. 

5. Doors which are improperly hung, do not swing 
freely or have incompatible hardware. 

6. Normal wear and tear or panel shrinkage 
are not considered a defect covered by this 
warranty. 

7. All doors with panels over 26" in width are 
excluded from this warranty. 

8. Warp shall not be considered a defect unless 
it exceeds 1/4" on doors 7' or under or 3,11" on 
doors over 7'. Warp is any distortion in the 
door itself and shall include bow, cup and 
twist. Measurement of the amount of warp in a 
door will be determined by placing a straight-
edge on the suspected concave face of the 
door at any angle (i.e., horizontally, vertically, 
diagonally) with the door in an installed 
position. The measurement of bow, cup and 
twist shall be made at the point of maximum 
distance between the bottom of the straight-
edge and the face of the door. 

9. Warranty against warp shall exclude all 
doors that are 1W thick and are wider than 
3' or higher than 7' or used in an exterior 
application. 

10. Warranty against warp shall exclude all doors 
that are a 1W thick and are wider than 3'6" or 
higher than 8'. 

11. Wood surface checks, miter joints and other 
wood joint shrinkage shall not be considered a 
defect unless such exceeds 1/42" in width. 

12. Failure to double seal all six edges (including 
hardware cuts) and provide adequate 
flashing and overhead protection prior to 
exterior exposure will result in this warranty 
being null and void. 

LASSIC 
DOOR 
54 Ni11.1.WOR K. INC. 

LIMITED WARRAN TY 

LoLIONtiON.MiteWai.,soiAl.,01i 

(C 

(E. 

( 

al 



11111 RUTLAND GUTTER SUPPLY LLC 
rutlandguttersupply 

HALF ROUND 
@yahoo.com  Ph: 407-859-1119 

GUTTER W/ BEAD 

A 

D 

INSIDE 
Fax: 407-859-1123 

SIZES 

C 

-- 
B  

I 

Ali 

A BCD 
5n 22n 3n in 

6n 3n 32n in 

7n 32n 4n in 

8n 4n 4in 1n 

911  4311 5n 1n 

10n 5n 52n 1n 

11n 52n 6n 1n 

12n 6n 6211  1n 

Company: Item: 
Invoice: Material: 
PO#: Notes: 
Architect: 
Contractor: 
Date: 
Approved by: 
Signature: 

CUSTOM ORDERS CAN NOT BE RETURNED 



Downspouts - Rain Downspout - Down Spouts - Gutter Drain Pipe - Seamless Round Downspouts - Diverters Downspout Adaptor

Downspouts
Downspouts or

rain gutter down
spout drain pipe

are available in
your choice of

aluminum,
galvanized steel,

galvalume,

stainless steel,
zinc and copper

rain downspout
materials. These

downspouts may
be ordered as

round downspout
gutter drain pipe,
smooth square

rain downspout,
round fluted or

decorative
downspout and
corrugated pipe

downspout.

Welded smooth
seamless

downpipe 3" and
4" downspouts
are available.

Select Downpipe
Downspout Parts:

DownSpout
Elbows - Offset

Downspout
Brackets 

Down Spout

Pipe Straps

Downspout

Accessories

Downspout
Rain Diverter

Downspout
Gooseneck

Downspout 
Paint Colors

Rain Spouts 

Gutter Spout 
Roof Scupper

Down Spout 
Pipe Cleanout

"Large Picture"

Downspouts - Rain Gutter Drain Pipe - Decorative Down Spout

Rutland Gutter Supply manufactures the largest selection of downspouts - rain gutter drain down pipe in the USA.
Rutland makes many different styles and sizes of downspouts, fabricated in aluminum, copper, galvanized steel,
galvalume, stainless steel, lead coated copper or zinc. Rutland can take plain downpipe and transform it into an
attractive decorative downspout to accent your rain gutter system. Downspouts can be formed into round downspout
pipe, square smooth downspout, corrugated downspouts, round fluted downspouts or gutter leaders to coordinate
with decorative custom enhancements like leader heads and decorative downspout brackets - down pipe straps if
desired, for that final elegant touch on your rain gutter system. Rutland also has the in-house capability to produce a

welded 2.5 inch, 3 inch or 4 inch seamless copper downspout - downpipe for that ultra refined smooth seamless look and

increased strength from welded down spout pipe! Note: Aluminum downspouts available in mill finish, regular painted or
Kynar premium paint. Galvanized steel downspouts available in mill finish, paint grip steel and painted. Zinc or lead coated
copper downspouts are provided in natural gray tones in all sizes of the round, square, fluted and corrugated downspout
styles. Downspout extensions, adaptors, rain spouts or roof scuppers can be custom manufactured to your specifications.

   

  
Round Downspout

Gutter Drain Pipe

  

SIZES MATERIALS

2.5" copper seamless

3" aluminum

3" copper

3" copper seamless

3" galvalume

3" galvanized

3" zinc

4" aluminum

4" copper

4" copper seamless

4" galvalume

4" galvanized

4" stainless steel

4" zinc

5" aluminum

5" copper

5" galvalume

5" galvanized

6" aluminum

6" copper

6" galvalume

6" galvanized

6" zinc

Other sizes available. 
Call for current pricing.

   

  
Corrugated Rain

Downspout

 SIZES MATERIALS

3x4" aluminum

3x4" copper

3x4" galvalume

3x4" galvanized

3x4" stainless steel

Downspout Cleanout Box 

 Cleanout Box Drawing

Downspout WYE Adaptor

 WYE Adaptor Drawing

  

  Square Downspout

 

 SIZES MATERIALS

3" aluminum

4" aluminum

3" copper

4" copper

3" galvalume

4" galvalume

3" galvanized

4" galvanized

3" stainless steel

4" stainless steel

3" zinc

4" zinc

Also smooth pipe 2x3",
3x4" and 4x5" sizes. 
Call for current pricing.

   

  

Round Fluted

Downspouts

 

 SIZES MATERIALS

4" aluminum

4" copper

4" galvalume

4" galvanized

4" stainless steel

4" zinc

5" aluminum

5" copper

5" galvalume

5" galvanized

5" zinc

Also 3" and other sizes.
Call for current pricing.

   

  
DownSpout Pipe

Architectural
Copper Work

Copper Accents 
Balls - Sculpture

Casting Designs

Decorative

Chimney Caps 
Chimney Pots

Cupolas Roof

Dome Roof
Gazebo - Turret

Finials Roof Top

Copper Home

Copper Hoods

Copper Kitchen

Copper Sinks

DownSpouts

Downspout 
Brackets - Straps

Downspouts 
Copper

Downspout 
Diverter

Downspout 
Elbows

Downspout 
Machines

Fasteners
Screws - Rivets

Fish Spout
Gargoyle Spout

Gutters - Rain 

Guttering

Gutter Parts 

Accessories

Gutter Hangers 
Gutter Brackets

Gutters Copper

Gutter End Caps

Gutter Machines

Gutter Mitres 
Miters - Joints

Gutter Supplies

Leader Heads 
Conductor Head

Rain Chains

Range Hoods 

Island Hoods

Roll Forming

Machines

Roof Vents 
Soffit - Wall

Special Offers 

Deals - Sales

Chimney 

Caps - Pots

Copper

Decoration

Cupolas

Roof-top

Dome

Roof

Downspout

Systems

Finials

Roof

Gutter

Supplies

Gutter

Systems

Kitchen

Copperwork

Rollforming

Machines

Vents

Roof - Wall

http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Elbows/Elbows.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Pipe%20Straps/PipeStraps.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Accessories.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/downspout-diverter-rain.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Elbows/Elbow_GooseNeck.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutter-colors.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/rain-spout-gutter-spouts.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper%20pipe/CopperPipe_CleanOuts.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/PDFs/downspout_cleanout_box.pdf
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/PDFs/downspout_cleanout_box.pdf
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/PDFs/downspout_wye_adaptor_custom.pdf
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/PDFs/downspout_wye_adaptor_custom.pdf
http://www.addthis.com/bookmark.php?v=20
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/architectural-copper-work.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/CopperBalls.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/castings/Castings.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Chimney%20Caps/ChimneyCaps.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Cupolas.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-dome.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/finials/Finials.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-home.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-range-hoods.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-kitchen.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-sinks.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/downspout.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Pipe%20Straps/PipeStraps.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-downspouts.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/downspout-diverter-rain.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Elbows/Elbows.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/downspout-machines-pipe.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/rain-gutter-fasteners-screws-downspout-copper-rivets.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/rain-spout-gutter-spouts.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutters.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Accessories.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/hangers/Hangers.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-gutters.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/end%20caps/EndCaps.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutter-machines.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Mitres.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutter-supplies.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/leader%20heads/LeaderHeads.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/RainChains.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/range%20hoods/RangeHoods.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutter%20machines/Machine_Rollforming.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/SoffitVents.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/special-offers-deals-sales.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Chimney%20Caps/ChimneyCaps.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/CopperBalls.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/Cupolas.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-dome.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/downspout.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/finials/Finials.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutter-supplies.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutters.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/copper-kitchen.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/gutter-machines.asp
http://www.rutlandguttersupply.com/SoffitVents.asp
Nathan
Rectangle



KEY LAMP(S) DESCRIPTION FINISH VOLT MOUNTING MFR CAT. NO.

M 8W LED 3000K
24" LED ADJUSTABLE UNDER CABINET LIGHT WITH INTEGRAL 
DRIVER WHITE 120 SURFACE CON-TECH ULED8-WW-XXX

L (1) 50 HPS
CITY OF BLACK HAWK STANDARD "GLOBE PEDESTRIAN 
LUMINARE" WITH INTEGRAL PHOTOCELL BLACK 120 GRADE

MOUNTAIN 
STATES LIGHTING

XCEL ENERGY CAT. ID 
211033

120 WALL OXYGEN APOLLO 3-5107-2-24

C 40W LED MED 
BASE 3500K DECORATIVE EXTERIOR FIXTURE WITH OPAL GLASS GLOBE

CLASSIC 
BLACK 120 WALL REJUVENATION

ALSEA A7107/   
GLOBE B5105

D 15W LED 3500K
DECORATIVE WALL SCONCE WITH MATTE WHITE ACRYLIC 
DIFFUSER AND INTEGRAL DRIVER

SATIN 
NICKEL

WALL OR 
CEILING

RECESSED IN 
GYP CREE

KR4-9L-35K-120-10V-
KR4T-SSGC-FF

G (1) 26W CF 
FURN. W/ UNIT 52" DIA. 5BLADE CEILING FAN WITH SINGLE LAMP - 120 PENDANT HUNTER 28724

F 850lm LED
4" DIA. LED DOWNLIGHT WITH 0-10V DIMMING DRIVER AND 
SOFT GLOW REFLECTOR WHITE 120

X1 FURNISHED 
WITH UNIT HUBBELL EVC-U-G-W-I-EVO

SURFACE KENALL
MR13LED-PP-DB-LED-

120

FIXTURE SCHEDULE

RECESSED IN 
GYP WILLIAMS

50F-S14-232-A12125-
EB2-120

B1 (4) 28W T8 
3500K

8' ARCHITECTURAL LINEAR FLUORESCENT PENDANT WITH 
FLAT ENDCAPS. DUAL CIRCUIT WHITE 120

FULLY ADJ. 
AIRCRAFT CABLE FINELITE

S16-8-DCO-4-2-DC-
91W-CCO-120-FA-FE-

CF

A (2) 28W T8 
3500K 2-LAMP FLUORESCENT TROFFER WITH SINGLE BALLAST WHITE 120

H 20W LED 3500K
13" DIA. EXTERIOR LED AREA LIGHT WITH POLYCARBONATE 
LENS

DARK 
BRONZE 120

LED SINGLE FACED EXIT SIGN WITH  REMOTE LED EXTERIOR 
UNIT, BATTERY AND SELF DIAGNOSTICS WHITE UNV

J 2W LED 5" DIA. DECORATIVE LED EXTERIOR STEP LIGHT
SHOT 

BLASTED 120

UNV WALL DUAL-LITE LZ-2IEM1 FURNISHED 
WITH UNIT

EMERGENCY EGRESS LIGHT WITH BATTERY AND SELF 
DIAGNOSTICS WHITE

SURFACE LUMASCAPES LS371LED-2W4-04-BR

K 35W LED 5000K LED FLAG POLE NARROW SPOT LIGHT
DARK 

BRONZE 120 GRADE KIM CFL6-27L5KUV-DB

B2 (6) 28W T8 
3500K

12' ARCHITECTURAL LINEAR FLUORESCENT PENDANT WITH 
FLAT ENDCAPS. DUAL CIRCUIT WHITE 120

FULLY ADJ. 
AIRCRAFT CABLE FINELITE

S16-12-DCO-4-2-DC-
91W-CCO-120-FA-FE-

CF

B3 (8) 28W T8 
3500K

16' ARCHITECTURAL LINEAR FLUORESCENT PENDANT WITH 
FLAT ENDCAPS. DUAL CIRCUIT WHITE 120

FULLY ADJ. 
AIRCRAFT CABLE FINELITE

S16-16-DCO-4-2-DC-
91W-CCO-120-FA-FE-

CF

O 75W LED MED 
BASE 3500K DECORATIVE EXTERIOR FIXTURE WITH OPAL GLASS GLOBE

CLASSIC 
BLACK 120 GRADE REJUVENATION

PORTLAND A4820/ 
GLOBE B9164

FROSTED FACETED



Specification Detail
Item # A7107

Finish Black Enamel

Socket Incandescent

Shade(s) Chosen B0486

Maximum fixture wattage per socket 60W

UL Listing UL Listed Wet

Canopy width 4.56"

Overall fixture width 5.86"

Overall fixture depth 7.66"

Overall fixture length 11.55"

Shade height 6"

Canopy Size 4-1/2"

Depth 4-3/4"

Fitter Outside Diameter 3-3/4"

Height 6-3/8"

Width 4-1/2"

Alsea Item #A7107

http://www.rejuvenation.com/s/338o

Base price: $110.00  

Selected options total: $30.00  

Total price as shown: $140.00  

Fixture C



PRODUCT FEATURES:
 » Surface mount – ceiling or wall; 
13"Dia.×3"D (MR13FFL), 17"Dia.×4"D (MR17FFL)

 » Peace of Mind Guarantee® against breakage available

 » Dust and water protected to IP64 standards

 » Full cut-off for IDA-Approved™ Dark Sky installations

 » ADA compliant

SPECIFICATIONS:

BASEPLATE: Marine grade die-cast aluminum. Integral heat sinks. Baseplate flange interlocks and wraps around lens base producing maximum moisture deflection and resistance to prying. 
Baseplate provided with four-point mounting holes, one wireway hole and temporary junction box mounting breakouts. Standard black or white exterior TGIC polyester powder coat – 5-step pre-
treatment. Dark bronze optional finish.

REFLECTOR: Full reflector/wire cover – 92% reflectivity. 

LENS: UV-stabilized, high impact resistant, virgin injection molded polycarbonate. Close tolerance push/turn/lock-in-place mating of injection molded lens and lens base. Lens and lens base secured 
with one concealed captive Torx® with center pin fastener.

LENS BASE: Lens base shields lamp from viewing angles. High impact resistant, injection molded opaque black, bronze or white polycarbonate. 

GASKETING: Die-cut, closed cell neoprene self adhesive gasket seals baseplate to mounting surface. Closed cell, silicone “O” ring gaskets positioned and friction secured in gasket channels of lens 
base, baseplate and optional surface adapter.

HARDWARE: One stainless steel Torx® with center pin fastener. 

ELECTRICAL: Fluorescent magnetic ballasts – 120V/277V power factor corrected, fluorescent electronic 120/277/347 and dual voltage ballasts high power factor (<10%THD).  
Replaceable high-brightness ANSI 3500K (80 CRI min.), 4000K (70 CRI min.), or 5000K  
(70 CRI min.) white LED array. 120-277VAC, high power factor electronic driver. See options  
for higher CRI lamp availability.

WARRANTY: One (1) year warranty against defects in materials and workmanship.  
Five (5) year warranty on LED lamps and driver for defects resulting in a fixture lumen depreciation of 30% or greater.

LISTINGS: Luminaire is certified to UL Standards by either Underwriters Laboratory or Intertek Testing Laboratory for wet location. (listing includes Emergency Battery Pack “EL” option). UL certified 
IP64 per IEC 60598. IESNA-designated full cut-off. IDA-Approved™ Dark-Sky Friendly Fixture. All Kenall SSL Luminaires are tested to the IESNA LM-79-08 standard requiring spectroradiometric 
measurements for CRI and CCT as well as goniophotometric measurements for lighting distributions and total luminous flux.

Model
MR13FFL 13"Dia.
MR17FFL 17"Dia.

Lens Type
PP Pearlescent Polycarbonate

Finish
MB Matte Black 
MW Matte White 
DB Dark Bronze

Lamp Type (Qty/Ballast/Volt./Starting Temp)
20L35K 20 Watt 3500K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR13FFL only
20L40K 20 Watt 4000K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR13FFL only 
20L50K 20 Watt 5000K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR13FFL only 
40L35K 40 Watt 3500K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR17FFL only
40L40K 40 Watt 4000K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR17FFL only 
40L50K 40 Watt 5000K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR17FFL only
40L57K 40 Watt 5700K LED  (1/SCC/120-277V/-22°F) MR17FFL only 
 

MR_FFL-110713

Options
EL*  One-Lamp WL Emergency Pack (32°F) with 

Die-Cast Surface Adapter (SA)- Non ADA
EL/SR*‡  One-Lamp WL Emergency Pack (32°F) with 

Recessed Backbox – ADA Compliant  
(n/a with 347V & LED) 

LEL  LED Emergency Battery Backup with Die-cast 
Surface Adapter (SA)- Non ADA

BPC  Photo Control – Shielded Button Type 
(Requires Surface Adapter) 
Adapter (SA) – Non ADA (120-277V only)

FS Single Fuse & Holder 
NAT Natatorium Environment Option
R80 Minimum 80 CRI (4000K LED only)
RMP‡  Retrofit Mounting Plate (See Tech Sheet) 
WMR‡ Wiremold 500 Ready (See Tech Sheet)

Accessories
SA  Die-Cast Surface Adapter
9500  Torx® Screwdriver

*  Max. 14 total system watts for MR13FFL or  
36 total system watts for MR17FFL

  277 volts surface adapter required
‡  n/a with Surface Adapter

n/a with BPC

When you see this image, you will know the Kenall product shown or described is designed and manufactured in the USA with components purchased from US suppliers, 
and meets the Buy American requirements under the ARRA. Kenall has not determined the origin of its domestically purchased components or the subcomponents thereof. 
Content of specification sheets is subject to change; please consult www.kenall.com for current product details. © 2013 Kenall Mfg. Co. All rights reserved.

 www.kenall.com P: 800-4-Kenall            F: 847-360-1781           1020 Lakeside Drive Gurnee, Illinois 60031    

Lamp Type (Qty/Ballast/Voltage/Starting Temp)
7  7 Watt Twin (1,2/MB/120,277/0°F)
13   13 Watt Twin (1,2/MB/120,32°F)
  (277V requires a diecast surface adapter)
13Q   13 Watt Quad (1,2/RS/120,277,347/0°F) 

(MR17FFL only)
18Q   18 Watt Quad (1,2/RS/120,277,347/0°F) 

(MR17FFL only)
26Q   26 Watt Quad (1,2/RS/120,277,347/0°F) 

(MR17FFL only)

Lamp Quantity
1   One Lamp
2  Two Lamps

Voltage
120  120 Volts
277  277 Volts
347   347 Volts
DV   120-277 Volts, electronic ballasts & LED driver only

MILLENIUM EDGE™

MR13/MR17 SERIES – FLAT FACE LOW PROFILE

ADAIP64
C

Model Lamp Type Lamp Qty Voltage OptionsLens Type Finish Accessories

ORDERING INFORMATION (Ex: MR13FFD-PP-DB-20L50K-1-DV)

PP

PROJECT INFORMATION

Job Name

Fixture Type

Catalog Number

Approved by

LED

Fixture H



DIMENSIONAL DATA

MILLENIUM EDGE™

MR13/MR17 SERIES – FLAT FACE LOW PROFILE HOUSING

For additional photometry, go to www.kenall.com

MR_FFL-110713

When you see this image, you will know the Kenall product shown or described is designed and manufactured in the USA with components purchased from US suppliers, 
and meets the Buy American requirements under the ARRA. Kenall has not determined the origin of its domestically purchased components or the subcomponents thereof. 
Content of specification sheets is subject to change; please consult www.kenall.com for current product details. © 2013 Kenall Mfg. Co. All rights reserved.

 www.kenall.com P: 800-4-Kenall            F: 847-360-1781           1020 Lakeside Drive Gurnee, Illinois 60031    

FRONT & SIDE VIEW BACK VIEW SURFACE ADAPTER (SA) SIDE & BACKVIEW

 13.20" (13)
17.64" (17) 2.71" (13)

3.89" (17)
5.00" (13)
7.75" (17)

5.00" (13)
7.75" (17)

5.31" (13)
6.50" (17)

8.00" (13)
10.00" (17)

5.00" (13)
7.00" (17)

(4) 1/2" NPT - 4 sides (Plugged) (13)
(4) 3/4" NPT - 4 sides (Plugged) (17)

(1) 3/4" NPT (Not Plugged) (13 & 17)



2.5” (64 mm)

Ø
5.

0”
 (1

27
 m

m
)

IP67

Wallmount LS371LED Boulevard

LS371LED Boulevard

The LS371LED is a surface-mounted, high strength step light with excellent light 
distribution properties. Offering both line voltage and low voltage input options, 
including dimmability with new Lumascape d5 driver technology, the Boulevard offers 
exceptional performance characteristics. Impressively, the 2 W LED light engine 
generates virtually the same horizontal illuminance as a 20 W halogen, making the LED 
a true performance based alternative at only 1/10th the power.

Specifications

Lamp Source 2 W LED
 White (4 300 K typical)
 Warm white (3 000 K typical)
 Blue (470 nm)

Other colors by request

Approved Use Suitable for wet locations

Control Options 0-10 V (current sourcing)
PWM
On-site or factory-programmable brightness

IP Rating IP67

Construction Die-cast copper alloy

Remote Transformers / 
Power Supplies
Order separately

Refer to Technical Data section
for application specific options

Ambient Operating 
Temperature 

-4 °F to 122 °F (-20 °C to +50 °C)

Photometrics Refer to www.lumascape.com

Any luminaire can become hot - take care with appropriate use and placement

FINISH
Description Code

Shot blasted standard BR
Black, powder coated CB
White, powder coated CW
Silver, powder coated CS
Brass, polished PB
Superchrome, powder coated CA

INPUT VOLTAGE
Description Code

120 V 60 Hz 04
12-15 V, 60 Hz or 12-24 V DC 13(1)

0-10 V or PWM Dimmable Driver, 
12-15 V, 60 Hz or 12-24 V DC 13-DIM(1)

(1) Requires appropriate transformer.

LAMP
Description Wattage Color Code

LED 2 W White (4 300 K typ.) 2W4
Warm white (3 000 K typ.) 2H6
Blue (470 nm) 2B4

LS371LED

Dimmable Wiring Diagram Reference

Input Voltage LED Color Control Type Wiring Diagram

13-DIM Single Color PWM 2,3,4

OPTIONAL

1300 Industrial Road, Unit #19
San Carlos, CA 94070
FREE CALL 1-866-695-5862 US & Canada
info@lumascape.com

www.lumascape.com C1839US 6 Sep 2013

Fixture J



Wallmount

Photometrics
Photometric data is based on test results from a NIST traceable testing lab. IES data is available at www.lumascape.com.
Note: No depreciation factor is applied to the data shown.

LS371LED
4 300 K

(1)

Power Input 3.1

Lumens 86

Efficacy 28 Lm/W

Polar Candela Distribution Illuminance at Distance

ft Center Beam fc

3 5.7

5 2

10 0.5

15 0.2

25 0.9

30 0.7

40 0.4

51

26

39

13

C 0° C 15° C 30° C 45° C 60° C 75° C 90°

0° 51 51 51 51 51 51 51

10° 49 49 49 49 49 50 50

20° 45 45 45 45 46 46 46

30° 38 38 38 39 39 40 45

40° 29 30 30 31 31 32 33

50° 20 20 21 22 23 24 24

60° 11 11 12 13 14 15 16

70° 3 3 4 5 6 7 8

80° 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

90° 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
C-0º C-90º

LS371LED-2W4 at 3' mounting height

2'

1'

1'

2'

0'

4'0' 2'2' 3'1' 1'3'4'

fc

1.0

2.0

4.0

1.4

(1) To approximate warm white 
data, multiply by 0.84. Refer 
web site for IES files for all 
color temperatures.

 LS371LED Photometrics

www.lumascape.com C1839US 6 Sep 2013



Technical Data Wiring Diagrams

NOTE: The above diagrams are intended to show electrical pathways between luminaires and ancillary devices. These diagrams are not intended to show type or 
color of cord/wire, wire gauge or approved use of the cord/wire supplied with luminaires. 
Consult the luminaire-specific cutsheet or the factory for detailed specifications.

LSLED-24V96W277
Power Supply

0-10 V 

120-277 V

0-10 V +

24 V DC +

24 V DC 

Current Sourcing
0-10 V Control Module

(by others)

OR

PWM 

PWM +

PWM +

PWM Pulse Width Modulated 
(PWM) Control Device

(by others)

Note: Check maximum current output of the current sourcing module. 
DO NOT exceed. Assume 2 mA per luminaire on control circuit.

NOTE: Reversed dimming signal polarity connection at 
the PWM Control device is correct. Observe correct 
polarity connections in all other locations

Diagram 2 - 0-10 V Dimming Via Current Sourcing Module, or Pulse Width Modulated Dimming (PWM) 
 - Low Voltage LED Luminaire with d5 Driver on 24 V DC Circuit

Use compatibility table to determine 
maximum number of luminaires 
the power supply can support.

PWM 

0-10 V
wall box
dimmer

120 V

120-277 V

Other
0-10 V signal

OR

PWM +

PWM +

PWM 

0-10 V 

0-10 V +

12-15 V AC

(suitable NEMA enclosure required - by others)

LSLED-24V12W277
Power Supply

LS6133
0-10 V to PWM 

Dimming Signal Converter

LS-TWM
Remote Magnetic 

Transformer

NOTE: Reversed dimming signal polarity connection 
at the LS6133 is correct. Observe correct polarity 
connections in all other locations

Diagram 3 - 0-10 V Dimming - Low Voltage LED Luminaire with d5 Driver on 12-15 V AC Circuit

Use compatibility table to determine 
maximum number of luminaires 
the power supply can support.

www.lumascape.com



Technical Data Wiring Diagrams

NOTE: The above diagrams are intended to show electrical pathways between luminaires and ancillary devices. These diagrams are not intended to show type or 
color of cord/wire, wire gauge or approved use of the cord/wire supplied with luminaires. 
Consult the luminaire-specific cutsheet or the factory for detailed specifications.

LSLED-24V96W277
Power Supply

PWM 

120-277 V

0-10 V
wall box
dimmer

OR

PWM +

PWM +

PWM 

24 V DC +

24 V DC 

(suitable NEMA enclosure required - by others)

Other
0-10 V signal

LS6133
0-10 V to PWM 

Dimming Signal Converter

Diagram 4 - 0-10 V Dimming - Low Voltage LED Luminaire with d5 Driver on 24 V DC Circuit

NOTE: Reversed dimming signal polarity connection 
at the LS6133 is correct. Observe correct polarity 
connections in all other locations

Use compatibility table to determine 
maximum number of luminaires 
the power supply can support.

www.lumascape.com



Technical Data

Wall Mounted Landscape Lighting Transformers Wall Mounted Transformers
Class 2 Power 

Supply
Direct Burial 
Transformer

LS-TWM-1-300 LS-TWM-2-600 LS-TWM-3-900 LS-TWM-50 LS-TWM-100 LS-TWM-150 LS-TWM-250 LSLED-24V96W277 LS-TDB1-300

Input Voltage 120 V, 60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz 120-277 V, 50/60 Hz 120 V, 60 Hz

Output Voltage 12/13/14/15 V 60 Hz 12/13/14/15 V 60 Hz 12/13/14/15 V 60 Hz 12 V, 60 Hz 12 V, 60 Hz 12 V, 60 Hz 12 V, 60 Hz 24 V DC 12.5 V, 60 Hz

Wattage 1 x 300 W circuit 2 x 300 W circuits 3 x 300 W circuits 50 W 100 W 150 W 250 W 96 W 300 W

LS371LED 54 108 162 9 18 27 45 30 54

Transformers and Power Supplies for Low Voltage LED Luminaires

The following list of transformers and power supplies are for use with luminaires specifically described as being compatible with either 12 V AC (wirewound only) 
transformers or with 12-24 V DC power supplies. Compatibility will be noted in the ordering code of the luminaire concerned, and will typically be referenced by Voltage 
Code '13' or '13-DIM'. In the case of '13-DIM' additional components may be required. Refer to the applicable wiring diagram/s.

Compatibility with each transformer or power supply is indicated by the value mentioned, representing the maximum number of luminaires that may be powered 
from each transformer or power supply. Please note, this does not take into consideration voltage drop or ampacity limits of the branch circuit. For assistance, please 
contact factory.

 Transformers and Power Supply Compatibility

www.lumascape.com



Technical Data Transformer Specifications

LS-TWM-1-300
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V
Rating 300 W
Output 12/13/14/15 V
Output Circuits 1
Protection Electrostatic shield, magnetic breaker
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Stainless steel
Dimensions H 17.6" (447 mm) W 6.8" (173 mm) D 6.19" (157 mm)
Weight 27 lb (12.3 kg)

LS-TWM-3-900
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V
Rating 900 W
Output 12/13/14/15 V
Output Circuits 3
Protection Electrostatic shield, magnetic breaker
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Stainless steel
Dimensions H 18.6" (472 mm) W 7.8" (198 mm) D 6.19" (157 mm)
Weight 34 lb (15.5 kg)

LS-TWM-2-600
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V
Rating 600 W
Output 12/13/14/15 V
Output Circuits 2
Protection Electrostatic shield, magnetic breaker
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Stainless steel
Dimensions H 17.6" (447 mm) W 6.8" (173 mm) D 6.19" (157 mm)
Weight 29 lb (13.2 kg)

Transformers for Landscape Lighting Applications

LS-TDB1-300
Magnetic transformer - direct burial

Input 120 V
Rating 300 W
Output 12.5 V
Output Circuits 1
Protection Circuit breaker
Approvals ETL (US and Canada)
NEMA Rating 12
Construction Reinforced composite
Dimensions H 9" (229 mm) W 9" (229 mm) D 7" (178 mm)
Weight 8 lb (3.6 kg)

LS-TWM-50
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V or 240 V
Rating 50 W
Output 12 V or 24 V
Output Circuits 1
Protection Isolation type transformer
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Powder coated steel
Dimensions H 8.03" (204 mm) W 3.31" (84 mm) D 3.08" (78 mm)
Weight 4.4 lb (2 kg)

LS-TWM-100
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V or 240 V
Rating 100 W
Output 12 V or 24 V
Output Circuits 1
Protection Isolation type transformer
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Powder coated steel
Dimensions H 8.03" (204 mm) W 3.31" (84 mm) D 3.08" (78 mm)
Weight 4.8 lb (2.2 kg)

LS-TWM-150
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V or 240 V
Rating 150 W
Output 12 V or 24 V
Output Circuits 1
Protection Isolation type transformer
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Powder coated steel
Dimensions H 8.03" (204 mm) W 3.31" (84 mm) D 3.08" (78 mm) 
Weight 5.6 lb (2.5 kg)

LS-TWM-250
Magnetic transformer - wall mounted

Input 120 V or 240 V
Rating 250 W
Output 12 V or 24 V
Output Circuits 1
Protection Isolation type transformer
Approvals UL, CUL
NEMA Rating 3R
Construction Powder coated steel
Dimensions H 8.03" (204 mm) W 3.31" (84 mm) D 3.08" (78 mm)
Weight 6.7 lb (3 kg)

Wall Mounted Transformers

www.lumascape.com



Technical DataPower Supply and Control Specifications

LSLED-24V96W277
Electronic DC power supply - wall mounted

Input 120-277 V, 50/60 Hz 
Rating 96 W / 4 A
Output 24 V DC
Output Circuits 1
Approvals CSA, CSA-US
Location Wet location
Dimensions H 12.32" (313 mm) W 2.54" (65 mm) D 1.67" (42 mm)
Weight 2 lb (0.9 kg)

LSLED-24V12W277
Electronic DC power supply - NEMA enclosure required (by others)

Input 120-277 V, 50/60 Hz 
Rating 12 W / 0.5 A
Output 24 V DC
Output Circuits 1
Approvals UL, CUL Recognized, Class 2
IP rating IP66
Location Wet location
Dimensions H 3.35" (85 mm) W 1.42" (36 mm) D 0.91" (23 mm)
Weight 0.282 lb (0.1 kg)

Class 2 LED Power Supplies

LS6133
0-10 V to PWM translator - NEMA enclosure required (by others)

Input 24 V DC
Rating 96 W max
Output 4 A max
Output Circuits 1
Approvals UL, CUL Recognized, Class 2
IP Rating IP66
Dimensions H 5.2" (132 mm) W 1.3" (33 mm) D 1" (25 mm)
Weight 0.2 lb (0.1 kg)

LS67100
DMX to PWM translator - dry location only

Input 24 V DC
Rating 4 x 60 W max
Output 4 x 2.5 A max
Output Circuits 4
Approvals UL, CUL
IP Rating N/A
Dimensions H 11.25" (286 mm) W 4.6" (117 mm) D 3.2 (82 mm)
Weight 0.5 lb (0.2 kg)

Control Related Equipment

www.lumascape.com



Housing: One-piece die-cast, low copper (<0.6% Cu) aluminum
in a cylindrical shape with integral cooling fins over the entire
length, and .100" minimum wall thickness. One-piece silicone
gasket between housing and lens frame.
Lens Frame: One-piece die-cast, low copper (<0.6% Cu)
aluminum with integral cooling fins, .100" minimum wall
thickness, mates with housing to create a continuous cylindrical
shape. 5/32" thick clear tempered glass lens is sealed to the lens
frame by a one-piece stamped silicone gasket. Lens frame secures
to housing by two stainless steel recessed captive allen-head
screws.
Swivel: Die-cast aluminum with integral locking teeth providing
6° adjustment intervals and K" NPSM plus solid brass locknut for
mounting. Clear anodized prior to titanated zirconium conversion
coating for added corrosion resistance.
Fasteners: Stainless steel, recessed captive allen-head screws.
Reflector: Specular Alzak® aluminum optical components
mounted to aluminum frame. 
Socket: 4KV porcelain medium base (T-10 Incandescent and
HID); T-4 Mini-can base (Halogen); 13w GX23-2 2-pin base, 42W
GX24q-3 4-pin base (Fluorescent). 
Ballast: All electrical components are UL and CSA recognized
with leads extending out of the swivel splice compartment.
Normal power factor ballast rated -32°F starting (13 watt Twin
Tube Fluorescent); High power factor ballast rated 0°F starting 
(42 watt Triple Tube Fluorescent); Reactor - High power factor with
starting temperature of -20°F. for PMH lamp modes. For PMH/120
volt, a step-up transformer is provided.
LED: Three 9 LED modules with a total of 27 LEDs configured in
a rectangular array comprised together as one module. Available
in 4000K, 5000K and 580 nm Amber. Emitters are directly
attached to the electronic driver.
LED Driver: Universal voltage, 120 through 277V 
electronic driver.  -40ºF. starting temperature.  All drivers are
Underwriters Laboratories recognized.
Finish: TGIC thermoset polyester powder coat paint, 2.5 mil
nominal thickness, applied over a titanated zirconium conversion
coating; 2500 hour salt spray test endurance rating. Standard colors
are Black, Dark Bronze, Light Gray, Stealth Gray, Platinum Silver,
or White. Custom colors are available.
CAUTION: Fixtures must be grounded in accordance with
national, state, and/or local electrical codes. Failure to do so may
result in serious personal injury.

Specifications

CFL
Compact Floodlights

revision 3/4/13 • kl_cfl_spec.pdf

Approvals:Type:
Job:
Fixture Catalog number:

Date:
Page: 1 of 6

/ /
Fixture Electrical Module Finish

See page 2

FRONT SIDE

2N" 2J" 

30°

145°

K"            

NPSM 

6" 

5B" 10K" 

0° Vertical

AIMING RANGE

(193.7 mm) 
(152.4 mm) 

(266.7 mm) 

(12.7 mm
(65.1 mm) 

(57.2 mm) 

back tilt 

9" Max. (228.6 mm) 
5    " 64 9 at max. (130.6 mm) 

7D" 

(130.2 mm) 

© 2013 KIM LIGHTING INC. • P.O. BOX 60080, CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0080 • TEL: 626/968-5666 • FAX: 626/369-2695

Fixture Options:

Ordered Separately from Fixture
See pages 3

Mounting Options:

Ordered Separately from Fixture
See pages 4-6

Listings and Ratings
UL cUL 15981 CE IP66 Rated 25C Ambient

1Suitable for wet locations.
KIM LIGHTING RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CHANGE SPECIFICATIONS WITHOUT NOTICE.

Dimensions
CFL Models
50 to 70 watt HID
Medium Base Lamps
13 to 42 watt Compact Fluorescent
60 watt Incandescent
150 watt Halogen
27 LED

Maximum weight: 13lb

K"             

NPSM

10K"
(266.7 mm)

(12.7 mm)

LED Assembly

Fixture K



Fixture
Cat. No. designates CFL
fixture and beam pattern. 

Single fixture EPA:
0.3 (45° tilt)
0.5 (Face on)

Electrical Module
PMH = Pulse Start 

Metal Halide
INC = Incandescent

HAL = Halogen
PL = Compact

Fluorescent
LED = Light Emitting 

Diodes

Finish
Super TGIC powder 
coat paint over a titanated
zirconium conversion
coating.

Cat. Nos. for Electrical Modules available:

Page: 2 of 6
Type:
Job:

Standard Features

CFL
Compact Floodlights

revision 3/4/13 • kl_cfl_spec.pdf

© 2013 KIM LIGHTING INC. • P.O. BOX 60080, CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0080 • TEL: 626/968-5666 • FAX: 626/369-2695

Pulse Start Metal Halide

� 50PMH120 � 70PMH120
� 50PMH277 � 70PMH277

Lamp E-17, Clear E-17, Clear
Socket Medium Base Medium Base

ANSI Ballast M-110 M-98

Compact Fluorescent LED

� 13PL1201 � 42PL1201 � 27L2KUV1,2,3 (32.4W)
� 13PL2771 � 42PL2081 � 27L3KUV1,2,3 (32.4W)

� 42PL2401 � 27L5KUV1,2,3 (32.4W)
� 42PL2771

Lamp Twin Tube, Coated Triple Tube, Coated LED
Socket Gx23-2 2-pin Base Gx24q-3 4-pin Base N/A

Incandescent Halogen

� 60INC120 � 150HAL120
Lamp T-10, Coated T-4, Clear

Socket Medium Base Mini-can Base

2Custom colors subject to additional charges, minimum quantities and extended lead times.
Consult representative. Custom color description:

1For CFL1 only. 
227L = 27 LEDs, 2K = 580 nm Amber, 3K = 3000 Kelvin,   5K = 5000 Kelvin,  
UV = Universal voltage 120 through 277V electronic driver 
3For 32.4W, Max Amps. are .027 for 120V, .016 for 208V, .014 for 240V, .012 for 277V.

42PL operates 26, 32, and 42 watt lamps at 120 thru 277 volts (50-60 Hz). 

Lamp Lamp Line
Watts Type Volts

50 PMH 277

Beam Pattern: Wide Flood Narrow Spot
Cat. No.: � CFL1 � CFL6

Color: Black Dark Bronze Light Gray Stealth Gray™ Platinum Silver White Custom Color2

Cat. No.: � BL � DB � LG � SG � PS � WH � CC



Page: 3 of 6
Type:
Job:

Fixture Options
Ordered Separately from Fixture

Extruded aluminum, fully adjustable doors with 
anti-reflection baffles. Individually swiveled and secured on
a stainless steel frame. Easily attaches to pre-drilled holes 
in the lens frame with stainless steel screws. Provides beam
and glare control.
CAUTION: Not recommended for ground mounted fixtures
in vandal prone areas.
Cat. No.
� BD-CFL/BL Black
� BD-CFL/DB Dark Bronze
� BD-CFL/LG Light Gray
� BD-CFL/SG Stealth Gray™

� BD-CFL/PS Platinum Silver
� BD-CFL/WH White

Formed .062 thick aluminum. Easily attaches to pre-drilled
holes in the lens frame with stainless steel screws. Provides
moderate shielding for glare control.
Cat. No.
� FH-CFL/BL Black
� FH-CFL/DB Dark Bronze
� FH-CFL/LG Light Gray
� FH-CFL/SG Stealth Gray™

� FH-CFL/PS Platinum Silver
� FH-CFL/WH White

Barn Doors
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

Fixed Hood
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

Full Shield
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

CFL
Compact Floodlights

revision 3/4/13 • kl_cfl_spec.pdf

3" (76.2 mm)

TYPICAL

© 2013 KIM LIGHTING INC. • P.O. BOX 60080, CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0080 • TEL: 626/968-5666 • FAX: 626/369-2695

10G"
3K"

4C"

(265.1 mm)
(88.9 mm)

(111.1 mm)

Formed .062 thick aluminum. Easily attaches to pre-drilled
holes in the lens frame with stainless steel screws. Provides
complete shielding for glare control.
CAUTION: Do not use in locations where leaves and trash
can collect inside shield.

Cat. No.
� FS-CFL/BL Black
� FS-CFL/DB Dark Bronze
� FS-CFL/LG Light Gray
� FS-CFL/SG Stealth Gray™

� FS-CFL/PS Platinum Silver
� FS-CFL/WH White

  10G"
3K"

4C"

(265.1 mm)
(88.9 mm)

(111.1 mm)



Optional
Concrete
(by others)

3L" DIA.

  K" (12.7 mm)

     NPSM
Fixture Mount

    3" 
(76.2 mm)

 K" 
(12.7 mm)

(95.3 mm)

   

Page: 4 of 6
Type:
Job:

Mounting Options
Ordered Separately from Fixture

CFL
Compact Floodlights

revision 3/4/13 • kl_cfl_spec.pdf

19C"
(492.1 mm)

18D"
(473.1 mm)

3K"
(88.9 mm)

3L" DIA.
(95.3 mm)

1"
(25.4 mm)

K" (12.7 mm)

NPSM
Fixture
Mount

© 2013 KIM LIGHTING INC. • P.O. BOX 60080, CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0080 • TEL: 626/968-5666 • FAX: 626/369-2695

Die-cast brass with K" NPSM fixture mount and die-cast cover.
Internal set screw provided for locking position. 21 cu in.
internal volume.
� JBR-2 (2) K" NPT in bottom
� JBR-3 (2) L" NPT in bottom
� JBR-21 (2) K" NPT in sides, (2) K" NPT in bottom
� JBR-24 (4) K" NPT in sides, (2) K" NPT in bottom
NOTE: All side taps provided with plugs.
Application Notes
• Creates a flush-mounted appearance.
• May be cast in concrete for increased stability.
CAUTION: Fixture stem and swivel must not contact soil or
standing water. Provide drainage away from junction box.

Brass In-Grade 
Architectural Junction
Box
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

JBR30
BRASS IN-GRADE STAKED JUNCTION BOX 
Die-cast brass with K" NPSM fixture mount and 
die-cast cover. Internal set screw provided for locking
position. 21 cu in. internal volume.
(2) K" NPT in bottom with (2) 19" long brass stakes
NOTE: May also be used to hard mount low voltage fixtures.

JBR32
BRASS IN-GRADE STAKED JUNCTION BOX WITH CORD
Die-cast brass with K" NPSM fixture mount and 
die-cast cover. Internal set screw provided for locking
position. 21 cu in. internal volume. 9' (SJTW-A) 3 wire 
cord and plug.
(2) 19" long brass stakes with 9' cord
Application Notes
• Creates a flush-mounted appearance.
• May be cast in concrete for increased stability.
CAUTION: Fixture stem and swivel must not contact soil or
standing water. Provide drainage away from junction box.

Brass In-grade Staked
Junction Box
Cat. No.
� JBR30
� No Option

Brass In-grade Staked
Junction Box with Cord
Cat. No.
� JBR32
� No Option



Page: 5 of 6
Type:
Job:

CFL
Compact Floodlights

revision 3/4/13 • kl_cfl_spec.pdf

Mounting Options
Ordered Separately from Fixture

© 2013 KIM LIGHTING INC. • P.O. BOX 60080, CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0080 • TEL: 626/968-5666 • FAX: 626/369-2695

Die-cast, low copper (<0.6% Cu) aluminum with K" NPSM
fixture mount. Internal set screw provided for locking
position. Canopy attaches to stainless steel wall plate for
mounting to any standard electrical outlet box.
Cat. No.
� JW/BL Black
� JW/DB Dark Bronze
� JW/LG Light Gray
� JW/SG Stealth Gray™.

� JW/PS Platinum Silver
� JW/WH White

5" DIA.

K"

NPSM Fixture
Mount

(127.0 mm)

(12.7 mm)

K"

NPSM Fixture
Mount

K"

NPSM Conduit
Entry

2F"

4K"

1L"(12.7 mm)

(12.7 mm)

(55.6 mm)

(44.5 mm)

(114.3 mm)

Cast low copper (<0.6% Cu) aluminum with mounting ears
for wood screw attachment to tree or wood structure. 5.5 cu
in. splice compartment with gasketed cover. K" NPSM
fixture mount and K" NPSM conduit or cord seal entry. 
NOTE: Surface mount can be connected to conduit or
outdoor cord with a waterproof cord seal (by others).
Cat. No.
� J-27N/BL Black
� J-27N/DB Dark Bronze
� J-27N/LG Light Gray
� J-27N/LG Stealth Gray™

� J-27N/PS Platinum Silver
� J-27N/WH White

Surface Mount
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

Architectural Wall Mount
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

18"

6" MIN.

12" MAX.

3" DIA.

K"

NPSM
Fixture
Mount

(76.2 mm)

(12.7 mm)

(152.4 mm)

(304.8 mm)

(457.2 mm)

3" O.D. by .188" wall cast low copper (<0.6% Cu) aluminum
with K" NPSM fixture mount and hand hole with flush cover.
Internal set screw fixture lock accessible through hand hole.
Internal ground lug supplied with installed lead.
Cat. No.
� SM18/BL Black
� SM18/DB Dark Bronze
� SM18/LG Light Gray
� SM18/SG Stealth Gray™

� SM18/PS Platinum Silver
� SM18/WH White

Stanchion Mount
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option



Page: 6 of 6
Type:
Job:

CFL
Compact Floodlights

revision 3/4/13 • kl_cfl_spec.pdf

Mounting Options
Ordered Separately from Fixture

© 2013 KIM LIGHTING INC. • P.O. BOX 60080, CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0080 • TEL: 626/968-5666 • FAX: 626/369-2695

Cast iron with K" NPSM fixture mount. Hot dip galvanized
finish. 5.5 cu in. splice compartment. 9' (SJTW-A) 3 wire 
cord and plug.
NOTE: For use with incandescent, halogen, and fluorescent
fixtures only.

K" (12.7 mm)

NPSM Fixture
Mount 2J" 

(57.2 mm)

6E" 
(174.6 mm)

3K" DIA.
(88.9 mm)

 

Die-cast, low copper (<0.6% Cu) anodized aluminum
cylindrical body and matching cover with K" NPSM fixture
mount. Internal set screw provided for locking position. Two
K" NPSM in bottom, 17 cu in. internal volume.
CAUTION: Junction box must be installed high enough to
avoid contact with soil or standing water.
Cat. No.
� JB1/BL Black
� JB1/DB Dark Bronze
� JB1/LG Light Gray
� JB1/SG Stealth Gray™.

� JB1/PS Platinum Silver
� JB1/WH White

3" DIA.

K"

NPSM Fixture
Mount

(2) K" (12.7 mm)

     NPSM

Cover

4L"

(76.2 mm)

(12.7 mm)

(120.7 mm)

Portable Spear Mount
Cat. No. � J-25N

� No Option

Architectural Junction
Box
Cat. No. (see right)

� No Option

PowerPost™ by
Engineered Products Co.
Cat. No. � EP17

� No Option

PVC fixture molded in black with K" NPT mount is corrosion
free and UV resistant. Replaces EMT, conduit connectors and
weatherproof boxes. 100% shatter resistant against denting
and cracking. Angled bottom to eliminate cable congestion.
NOTE: Should be used with a UL listed fixture and
grounding means (i.e., third wire) suitable for use in 
wet locations.

3J" DIA.

17K"

3K"

1"

5"

(82.6 mm)

K"

NPSM Fixture
Mount

(12.7 mm)

(25.4 mm)

(444.5 mm)

(88.9 mm)

(127.0 mm)



Fixture L



• Pottery Barn
•  | 
• pottery barn kids
•  | 
• PBteen
•  | 
• Williams–Sonoma
•  | 
• WS Home
•  | 
• west elm
•  | 
• Mark and Graham

Click to enlarge

Live Chat
Print Tear Sheet
Share By Email

Description

Originals of this stately outdoor light are commonly found flanking the entries to grand early-20th-century public buildings, homes, and apartment houses. It is certainly a beacon with remarkable presence.

For this fixture, we use lightweight, weather-resistant cast-aluminum parts to achieve the traditional look of cast iron without the heft or rust, and top it off with a classic Black Enamel finish.

Product Specifications

Socket Incandescent
Maximum fixture wattage per socket 100W

UL Listing UL Listed Wet
Canopy width 8"

Overall fixture width 9.6"
Overall fixture length 20.09"
Overall fixture depth 12.91"

Shade height 9"

Notes

• Powder-coated Black Enamel stands up to the elements
• Wet rated for outdoor use
• Compatible with 4” fitter shades 
• Choose standard incandescent or energy-efficient GU24 sockets
• The scale of this fixture is quite substantial, so be sure to pick a shade that can hold its own in such sizable company

Need Help? Contact Us!

For Handcrafted Solutions:

• Call customer service at 888-401-1900
• Use live chat
• Email us at customerservice@rejuvenation.com

Customer Service Hours

Monday - Friday:
6am - 6pm PST

Saturday:
7am - 5pm PST

Sunday:
9am - 3pm PST

Additional Information

• Shipping Information
• How to Order
• Returns & Exchanges
• Download installation instructions
• About Rejuvenation

Related Products

Rejuvenation

2

Page 1 of 2Portland | Rejuvenation

3/5/2014http://www.rejuvenation.com/catalog/products/portland

Fixture O



 

RESOLUTION 18-2014, A 
RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 
APPROVING A 

CERTIFICATE OF 
APPROPRIATENESS FOR 

THE SITE WORK, 
LANDSCAPE FOR THE 

PROPERTY AT 301 CHASE 
STREET 

 

 



 

1 
 3/19/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\FORM-RES.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 
 COUNTY OF GILPIN 
 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 
 Resolution No. _18__-2014 
 
TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR SITE WORK AND LANDSCAPING FOR THE 
PROPERTY AT 301 CHASE STREET 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
Section 1.   The City Council hereby determines to conditionally approve a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for site work and landscaping for the property located at 301 Chase Street on 
satisfaction of the following condition:     
 

Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three Gables 
Preservation and Consilium Partners.   

 
RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 
 
 

_______________________________ 
David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jeanie M. Magno, CMC, City Clerk 



Ihre  
BLACK HAWK 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 
	

March 26, 2014 

SUBJECT:  
Certificate of Appropriateness for Site Work and Landscaping 
The applicant, Larry Linker, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for site work and landscaping at 301 Chase Street. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
The applicant, Larry Linker, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for site work and landscaping at 301 Chase Street. 

The estimated date of construction for the house at 301 Chase is 1890. It was first evaluated in 
1986 when the National Park Service conducted a survey of historic resources in the 
communities of Black Hawk, Central City, and Nevadaville. In 1991, when Black Hawk was 
added to an expanded National Historic Landmark district, 301 Chase Street was counted as a 
"contributing" building to the historic district, meaning it had retained sufficient integrity to 
contribute to the historic character of the district. In 2010-2011, a re-survey and evaluation of 
the historic district found that the residence still retained its historic integrity, and was a 
"contributing" building in the National Historic Landmark district. 

The proposed site work and greenhouse are located on parcels that were historically separate 
from the house at 301 Chase Street. Historic photographs show that a one-and-a-half story 
residence with a one-story side wing was located east of the present house. This building was 
demolished prior to the 1986 survey and 1991 NHL district (likely in the 1930s), and the parcel 
has been vacant for decades. While the property has received previous City grants for 
rehabilitation, this project is not grant-funded. 

The applicant is requesting approval of the following work, which requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness: 

• Construct five planting berms in side yard. 
• Install small native grass area and xeriscape planting with drip irrigation used until plants 

are established (see Attachment B. "Planting Plan.") 



REVIEWED BY  

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends to the Board of Aldermen CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the Certificate of 
Appropriateness for site work and landscaping for the property at 301 Chase Street based on the 
criteria set forth in the staff report dated March 19, 2014. The Certificate of Appropriateness 
application for 301 Chase Street meets the intent of the criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the 
Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Section 2 of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design 
Guidelines with the following condition: 

1. Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three 
Gables Preservation and Consilium Partners. 

RESOLUTION DATE: 	 February 26, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: 	 Community Planning and 
Development 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:  

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:  

Cynthia L. Linker 

Staff Report and Attachments A-D 

[ ] Yes [X] No [ ] N/A 
INITIALS 

Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

SUBMITTED BY:  

Qietx:.—`1. 
03/19/14 

Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D 



 1 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK HPC Meeting Date:   March 4, 2014 
PLANNING / LAND USE  Report Updated:       March 19, 2014 
 Council Meeting Date:  March 26, 2014 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
For:     City Council 
Project: Certificate of Appropriateness for Site Work and Landscaping  
Property Address: 301 Chase Street 
Property Owner: Larry Linker 
Zoning:  Historic Residential (HR) 
Prepared by:  Deon Wolfenbarger, Historic Preservation Consultant 
Approved by:  Cynthia Linker, City of Black Hawk, CP&D 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant, Larry Linker, is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for site work and landscaping at 301 Chase Street.   
 
The estimated date of construction for the house at 301 Chase is 1890.  It was first evaluated in 
1986 when the National Park Service conducted a survey of historic resources in the 
communities of Black Hawk, Central City, and Nevadaville.  In 1991, when Black Hawk was 
added to an expanded National Historic Landmark district, 301 Chase Street was counted as a 
“contributing” building to the historic district, meaning it had retained sufficient integrity to 
contribute to the historic character of the district.  In 2010-2011, a re-survey and evaluation of 
the historic district found that the residence still retained its historic integrity, and was a 
“contributing” building in the National Historic Landmark district.   
 
The proposed site work and landscaping is located on parcels that were historically separate from 
the house at 301 Chase Street.  Historic photographs show that a one-and-a-half story residence 
with a one-story side wing was located east of the present house.  This building was demolished 
prior to the 1986 survey and 1991 NHL district (likely in the 1930s), and the parcel has been 
vacant for decades.  While the property has received previous City grants for rehabilitation, this 
project is not grant-funded.   
 
The applicant is requesting approval of the following work, which requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness: 

 Construct five planting berms in side yard. 
 Install small native grass area and xeriscape planting with drip irrigation used until plants 

are established (see Attachment C “Planting Plan.”)   
 
 



 2 

  APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS   
Excerpt from: 

City of Black Hawk Zoning Code 
Chapter 16 

Section 16-368, City Council historic review process 
 

16-368: Anyone seeking to renovate the exterior of, add to or construct a new building 
shall be subject to the following procedures. Any such renovation construction 
or demolition shall be subject to the City’s design standards.   

  
f.   Criteria for determining appropriateness of proposed erection, construction,  
  reconstruction or alteration. In determining the appropriateness of a proposed  
  site plan or building permit for the erection, construction or alteration of a  
  building, the HPC and the City Council shall consider the following: 

 
1. All plans, drawings and photographs as may be submitted by the applicant; 

The photographs and scope of work submitted by the applicant adequately describes the 
proposed alterations.  (See Attachments B - D). 
 

2. Information presented at a public hearing held concerning the proposed work; 
Findings and recommendation from Historic Preservation Commission will be presented 
to the Board of Aldermen at the Public Hearing scheduled for March 26, 2014.   
 

3. The purpose of this Chapter; 
The information received adequately describes the proposed work in order to determine 
the appropriateness of the proposed rehabilitation. 

 
4. Compliance with the Black Hawk Municipal Code and the payment of all fees required 

by the Black Hawk Municipal Code; 
The project complies with all regulations of the Municipal Code.   
 

5. The historical and architectural style, the general design, arrangement, texture, 
materials, and color of the development, building or structure in question or its 
appurtenance fixtures; the relationship of such features to similar features of the other 
buildings within the City and the position of the building, structure, park or open space 
in relation to public right-of-way and to other buildings and structures in the City; 
The proposed work will be located on a parcel that has been vacant for decades and 
would not affect the district in any manner.     



 3 

 
 

6. The effects of the proposed work upon the protection, enhancement, perpetuation and 
use of the City which cause it to possess a special character or special historical or 
aesthetic interest or value; and 
The house at 301 Chase Street was re-evaluated in 2010-2011 and determined 
“contributing” to the National Historic Landmark historic district. Nonetheless, HPC 
should review the proposed alterations and evaluate their effect for their potential impact 
on the overall historic character of the district.   

 
7. The design standards for the City. 

Sections 2. Site Design of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines adopted 
in 2011 applies to this application.  Listed below is the applicable section, and the 
consultant’s evaluation for compliance of the proposed alterations for 301 Chase Street. 
 

 
Excerpt from: 

 City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines 
2.  Site Design 

2.2   Topography and Grade 
 2.2.1  Existing topography should be maintained whenever possible. 
 2.2.3.  Minimize cut and fill that would alter the natural topography of the site. 

              b.  use earth berms, rock forms, or stone retaining walls to minimize the  
   visual impacts of cuts. 

 2.2.5.   All land that is visible from a public way shall be reclaimed in a manner  
  described below.  

 a.   Preferred reclamation methods are:  
 Plantings, as provided in the landscape standards. 
 Natural rock, in a stable condition. 
 Concrete retaining walls faced with native stone or appropriate 

wood cribbing. 
2.5.  Landscaping 

 2.5.1.   Maintain established plantings on site. 
 2.5.2.   Protect established vegetation near to any construction to avoid damage. 
 2.5.3.   Incorporate plant materials in new landscape designs. 

 
Evaluation of proposal’s compliance with Section 2: 
The following element of the site plan meets the design guidelines:  Earth berms are used to 
minimize the visual impacts of cuts.  The publicly visible land is reclaimed with plantings.  Plant 
materials are incorporated into a new landscape design.  The drip irrigation system is temporary; 
to be used only until the plants are established.   The proposed plant selection may change based 
on availability.  However, the design guidelines do not specify preferences for individual plant 
species, thus any changes that may occur would likely meet the intent of the design guidelines. 

 
 

 



 4 

CONSULTANT COMMENTS 
The following work requires a Certificate of Appropriateness: 

 Construct five planting berms in side yard. 
 Install small native grass area and xeriscape planting with drip irrigation used until plants 

are established (see Attachment C “Planting Plan.”)   
 
The consultant’s evaluation of the proposal finds that all elements of the proposed work are in 
accordance with the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines. 
 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
The Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) evaluated the application, the comments in the 
report, and testimony by staff, consultants, and the applicant.  HPC also reviewed the proposed 
alterations and evaluated their effect and potential impact on the overall historic character of the 
district.   
 
Additionally, the Commission used the following general criteria in their evaluation discussion: 

1. The project will substantially improve the visual appearance of the neighborhood, 
streetscape, or this individual property. 

2. The project will contribute to and enhance the overall character of the City of Black 
Hawk. 

3. The project produces visible results. 
4. Portions of the work will be on highly visible portions of the property. 
5. The application is well presented with a detailed scope of work. 
6. The proposed work would or would not appropriately promote preservation of the 

historic character of the City. 
 
At the conclusion of their discussion, the Historic Preservation Commission recommended to the 
Board of Aldermen CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the Certificate of Appropriateness for site 
work and landscaping for the property at 301 Chase Street based on the criteria set forth in the 
staff report dated March 19, 2014.  The Certificate of Appropriateness application for 301 Chase 
Street met the intent of the criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal 
Code, and Section 2 of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design Guidelines with the following 
condition: 
 

1.   Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three  
 Gables Preservation and Consilium Partners.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends to the Board of Aldermen CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the Certificate of 
Appropriateness for site work and landscaping for the property at 301 Chase Street based on the 
criteria set forth in the staff report dated March 19, 2014.  The Certificate of Appropriateness 
application for 301 Chase Street meets the intent of the criteria outlined in Section 16-368 of the 
Black Hawk Municipal Code, and Section 2 of the City of Black Hawk Residential Design 
Guidelines with the following condition: 
 



 5 

1.   Final plant selection (based on availability) and location to be approved by Three  
 Gables Preservation and Consilium Partners.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 A:  Cultural Resource Evaluation Form 
 B:  Photographs - Existing Conditions 
 C:  Plantings Plan  
 D:  Nursery Cut Sheets - Proposed Plants 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 
the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for Exterior Landscaping Improvements for 301 Chase 
Street. This property is described in Exhibit A below and is generally located at 301 
Chase Street. 
 
The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 
Wednesday, March 26, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 
hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 
Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 
hearings are adjourned. 
 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  
MAY ATTEND 

 
Jeanie Magno 
City Clerk 

 
Exhibit A 

 
301 Chase Street –  
 
   
S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 016 Lot: 006, Subd: BLACK HAWK 
Block: 015 Lot: 001 AND:- Lot: 002 & IMPS (PT OF LOT 6 AS DESC IN 
BOUNDARY AGREEMENT #148950 & LOT 2 #149919) 



Vernacular 

PROPERTY TYPE: 

PRESENT USE 

Residential 

ASSOCIATED BUILDINGS 

Shed 

CENTRAL CITY - BLACK HAWK HISTORIC DISTRICT 
GILPIN COUNTY, COLORADO 

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION 

1890 
STYLE 

BUILDING NAME BLOCK NUMBER 

16 

LOT NUMBER 

6 

E ACADEMIC RESIDENTIAL 

El COMMERCIAL. 

ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS 

CONDITION 

Good 

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION 

This 1-story square wood frame house has a low stone foundation, horizontal siding, asphalt 
shingle hip roof, box cornice , corner boards and a central brick chimney. The windows are 
wood, ractangular 4-over-4 light single-hung sash and a fixed pane window with 15 lights. The 
primary door is single, wood, panelled with a wood screen and 1 light in the door panel. 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

301 Chase Gulch 
Black Hawk 



SITE DESCRIPTION 

This southeast facing house sits on a steep lot with a very steep hill behind the house. The 
house is very close to the road. The lot has been terraced. It is at the junction of Chase 
and Dubois. A coursed rubble retaining wall runs along the road with a metal pole fence atop 
the wall. 

COMMENTS 

REFERENCES 

Gilpin County Tax Assessor Records. 

PREPARED BY: 
Julie Corona NPS-RMR0 

DATE 

November, 1986 

   



 BLACK HAWK CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY     

 Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form    

 (page 1 of 2) 
 
 

1. Current Address:  301 Chase 
 

2. Resource Number:  5GL.7.443                                                                 3.  NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
 
4. Resource Name:                                                                                         
5. Purpose of this current site visit (check as many as apply) 

         Site is within a current project area 

   X    Resurvey 

   X    Update of previous site form(s) 
         Surface collection 
          Testing to determine eligibility 
         Excavation 
         Other 

  

6. Previous Recordings:  

   X     1986 National Park Service Survey    X    Photograph 

   X     1991 National Historic Landmark Nomination      No Photographs                    X    Contributing  

   X      1998 Re-survey    X    Photograph 

   X      2004 Photo survey    X    Photograph   

            Other:            Photograph 

  

7. Exterior alterations since 1986:   1996 – Historic preservation, permit valuation $16,212.69, included new 
deck balustrade.  2008 - Rock wall demolished.   

 

8. Additional historical background:  Sanborn maps do not cover this far west on Chase Street.  This house is 
visible in historic photographs purportedly from ca. 1910, which show a small shed attached on the SE 
corner of the house.  Deed research may reveal a more accurate construction date. 

 

 

 

    Ca. 1890    Construction date     X      Estimate from 1986 NPS Survey          New estimate 

Sources of information: Digital Image Collection, Western History & Genealogy, Denver Public Library; 
The Gilpin Railroad Era (Abbot) 

 Sanborn Maps 

        1886   

        1890 

        1895 

        1900



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                     (page 2 of 2) 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 

     

9. Changes to Location or Size Information: None. 

 

10. Revised National Historic Landmark District- Contributing Building Eligibility Assessment:  

 Contributing   X         Non contributing              Need data    

 

11. National Register - Individual Eligibility Assessment: 

 Eligible            Not eligible    X          Need data   

 

12.  Is there National Register district potential?  Yes  X         No              

 Discuss: This would be a contributing building to a potential district 

 

13. Local Designation - Individual Eligibility Assessment:  

 Eligible   X         Not eligible              Need data       

 

14.  Is there Local district potential?  Yes   X       No              

 Discuss: This would be a contributing building to a potential district 

 

15. Photograph Types and Numbers: Digital, <.jpg> format.  301 Chase-1.JPG, 301 Chase-2.JPG 
 
16. Report Title: Black Hawk Historic Resource Resurvey:  2009-2010 

 

17. Recorder(s):  Deon Wolfenbarger 18. Date(s): May 17, 2010 

 

19. Recorder Affiliation: Three Gables Preservation 

 

20. Attachments                     21. Official determination  
 (check as many as apply)             (OAHP USE ONLY) 
   X   Photographs         Determined Eligible 
        Site sketch map         Determined Not Eligible 
        U.S.G.S. map photocopy         Need Data 

   X   Other                                 Nominated 
        Other                                 Listed 
             Contributing to N.R. District 
             Not Contributing to N.R. Dist 



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
Current Photographs 

Date:  05/13/2009 & 1/21/2010 
 

 
 

 



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
 

2004 Photograph 
 

 
 

 
 



Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 

 
1998 Resurvey Photograph 

 

 
 

 
1986 Survey Photograph 

 

 



 

Current Address:  301 Chase                                                  Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.443   

NHL Resource Number: B16-2 
 

Gilpin Assessor’s Photographs 

  
 

 
 

Historic photograph 

 
Ca. 1910 



Attachment B:  301 Chase Street Photographs 
Historic photograph 

 
Ca. 1910 

 
Existing conditions 

 
Looking NE from Chase Street 

 



 

 
Looking NE from SE corner of house  

 

 
 

Looking east.  
 



LIQK 
, 	P-6tvef=7. 

N6r-f ujiir tZ:1) 	OLAIS ik„,1 

(I) 61  PAV-? 

6.0vtretwepsio. 

rtylltbkik-Def- 

1-4F-g-Aph3 cJ 

- 
SpizAJe.o. 

(7) 0- (. GI7CAW,L 

(-5)4.5 MAtZ_Lk 	 

1,.0*t onczt,.-A- 

(2,- 1  

b\-22- 41.eut,4F 

(at)41.
1-/oa. L.-CAC-160-4 1 

tvil4*t 
13Lue. F°4..ki 

frirno g...AA) 
6DAd:e.. 

I .  

Ca 

_ 	t*r /4kA910=e-- 

-161,.311 1 \1 L - 

-t-t x)(J- 

= tOr---ef )0" 



Member Log In 

User Name: 

13 Remember User Name 

Password: 

   

 

Forgot Password? 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

• 

17•P.o u 

Ajuga reptans 'Atropurpurea' 

 

Carpet Bugle, Bronze 

   

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

Lrrru VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 The Rerery Maxim" %motor" 

13022 E. 136th Ave. Brighton CO 80601 (303) 659.6708 WM 222-3241 Fax (303) 659-6886 

Home Map Plant Info Availability 

NlalurC 116011: 4-6" 
	

∎■■ alcr RequireuicHIS: Medium 
	

How el. caifir: Blue 

vialpre Spread: 12-15" 
	

posii re: Adaptable 
	 Flower Scamur Late Spring 

Hardy to: 8,000' 

Short stalks are covered by small violet blue flowers above a dense carpet of reddish-purple foliage turtling to bronze in fall 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lvwn.corniview  slide_show.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 6:00:58 PM] 



Member Log In 
User Name: 

0 Remember User Name 

Password: 

 

L 

 

Forgot  Password? 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

• 

'ID little Ile/4-p-  Wholesele Alta-seo 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LrrnE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ike Rocky filouslairt Sksulded'" 

13022 E. 1361A Ave. 811ttfr toil CO 80601 (303) 659-6708 1800) 221.3241 Fax (303) 659-6986 

Home 

 

Plant Info 

  

Map Availability 
	A 

     

Coreopsis lanceolata 
	

Coreopsis, Lance-leaf 

NIniure I lei2h1: 18-24" 
	

mer Requirements: LOW 
	

['lower Color: Yellow 
Niailire 'spread: 18-24" 

	
sposure: Sun 
	

Ilimer Season: Early to Mid- 

Summer 
I lardy To: 8.500' 

A broad clump of slender, shiny green leaves giving rise to daisy-like bright yellow flowers. Creates a wonderful mass Cut flower 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lywn.com/view  slide_show.php?uid=276&name—Linker+-Residenee[1/2/2014 5:45:50 PM] 



Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Pro Re* Mamie& Shindad." 

13022 E. 13(0, Ave. hiolthirm CO 80601 13031 659.6708 1$5O) 221-3241 Fax (3031 659-6886 

Member Log In 
User Name: 	 Password: 

0 Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

   

Forgot Password? 

Home Map Plant Info Availability 

   

119 

p' --;•':,,..=, 	0 4%- • Y 	....■ 	. 

Aquilegia alpina 	 Columbine, Alpine 

Niato•t. 11cight: 
	 \\;d, it,00l. r,0000s: medium 	 rs'ir,11 Nue 

!Nto or(' soremi: 12- I kj" 
	

fZ•iltered Srlafle 	 loiN% 	 iv s 
Shade. 

To ,̀D,C)00' 

NOCidir10 	14)WQrS With StliDii LIAirS Dre prOdUCed 0r :-;ierOjer S1 11;: 7",irio:o-1a 3 roll ;.nound of ioundof. ;In ,Dreen foilage, 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lywn.com/viewslideshow.php?uid=276&name—Linker-FResidence[1/2/2014 5:57:03 PM] 



Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ma Roci►y iflouniain !landau!'" 

13022 E 136th Ave. Brigh ton CO 80601 0031 659-6708 (8601 221-3241 Fax 0031 659-68136 

   

Member Log In 

    

 

User Name: 

0 Remember User Name 

Password: 

     

   

Forgot Password?' 

 

  

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

    

        

        

        

Plant Info Availability 

sr 
'IP  

Papaver nudicaule 
	

Poppy, Iceland 

Nialure Wight: 1-2' 
	

". '"Cr R"iiiireMen": Medium 
	

1,101%ei odor: Mixed 

NImore Spread: 12-18" 
	

ENplitilire: Sun 
	

rIONN 	Season: Early Summer to 

Fall 

Ila•d■ I o: 10,000' 

A mounding tuft of spoon-like pale bluish-_vreen leaves casting wiry stems topped by large, saucer-like flowers in a wide array of 

colors 

Slide Comment 

https://www.lywn.com/viewslide_show.php?uid=276&name—Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 5:51:15 PM] 



t, Password: 

Forgot Password? 

User Name: 

0 Remember User Name 

Availability Map IPlant Info 

4 

%Naha- Requiremeols: Medium 

Exposure: Sun 

Populus tremuioides Clump (Nursery Grown) 

%lore height: 20-50' 

llature Spread: 20-30' 
Hard.] o: 10,000' 

Slender, twiggy branches create an open oval tree that often suckers to develop dense colonies. Waxy. white to greenish bark is 
smooth becoming brownish-black as it matures. Green, triangular leaves quiver in the breeze, turning golden in fall. Clump form. 

Slide Comment 

Aspen, Clump Quaking 

Flower Color: Silvery Gray 
Catkin 

Flower Season: Early Spring 

Home 

Member Log In 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LIME VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ike Rocky Ittosuflain Slandenr" 

13022 E. 13615 Ave. Er igh !OP CO 80601 (3031 659.6708 (13001 221-3241 Fax 0031 659-6886 

https://www.lywn.corn/viewslideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker-FResidence[1/2/2014  5:52:16 PM] 



iv mi■ - W.. 	v Ai 	!=, 
artii. 	s 	• 

	

IF or 2 	E. 

	

" •• -- ' 	 /6.' '  sue.  it ..a. ,,,, .4. -* 

	

9  -411 	•   

	

la. 1  .  I 	 le"•  a  'IN. 	• 	4,  ■I,  	4  N .- o , 	4 15.; 
4" : - r,* -- 1'  --ir  4,  -4,1  

'NI, 	,... 	
• -1  ge,  gp 010  

• P'. 1.  e • ' .'i V • 
l 

r 
iir 

.iph‘aqkz4„  

.. 	• 	11' 	AA Ab. 

	

i.  1PP 6 	‘, • . 
AI ••••• 	

.,.  • 	•  
pl 1. 4. •  

:1117 411' 2_.  • 

A e• 	s  •  Pt ' „L.-, ' 	• 	•• Os - 	'5.• 	1 
tiliP  • 	

,.."0-41  loft.  , 	..e. 	1", • 	0  . a7 7 

• 4';441:11t  A- =,-ti.0:''''r . 	
. , ,..,-. 	. ,.... _ - . 	,,,„ 4,.. .L. 	• 

- .. 	.  .... 
i 

31-. ,  . • Ev c!:, -, 
	• ....   

°

~  • • •"  e geztV -  44.2mso'n* 
, 	90 

-  4
,  1.1 	• 

0 .,  

1  

	

_ ._.......  di ..• 	 0"I'.t• ';'. _Sed.V  

Potentilla fruticosa 'Jackmannir 

   

Potentilla, Jackman 

     

Nialti re I I og h : 	- 	 \\ ART 	 1..cwv 	 111111 • Yellow 

\ I a rt. Si eem : 
	 Movkl1 SCAMPI': H•-jr• iy 	Le:11e, 

Hard ∎  .1.1: 10.000' 

'clw-& unrioht rounded shrub with slender, 	 ancl 	- ,zneeri, lobed :ei.TiveS, PriiciuceS !:irs t3r1.1riciariCc C. Single, !inch; 

yelimN tiower;: from .nriv it) :t--,itt; Surnmez. 

Slide Comment 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 i 	Password: 

0 Remember User Name 
	 Forgot Password? 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Home [Map 	Plant Info Availability 

  

   

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

4 LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ike RaIry ifloinfain Paruterti- 

13022 E. 196th Ave. Brighten CO 80601 (3031 659-6708 (800) 221.3241 Fax (303)659-6986 

t ■1 1  

https://www.lvwn.com/viewslide_show.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014  5:42:34 PM] 



Availability 

\\ ;tier 	 Ovv 

posiire.  jail 
Ahluro 

Nircad. t7-6" 
HA•d:. '1Q: 5.50e,  

SrAsoit: IVII(C-3urrirner 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 Password: 

El Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

Plant Info-1 Home Map 

Grass. Festuca glauca 'Elijah Blue' 	 Grass Elijah Blue Fescue 

povvdery blue roliacjo Ferri-is .striking clurnp,,... Tan seed 'ne;lids•  appear in S,Ilr•y 	/An 1::!xceileili contrast plant when used with 

pererwiialc.. 

Slide Comment 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ma Rs* illoosishe Vanded- 

13022 E. 136th Aro. Elpigh an CO 84631 1301 09-6708 (SOW 221-3241 Far 1303) 659-6886 

https://www.hiwn.com/viewslideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/20l4  5:38:00 PM] 



Availability 

4- 

Flosser Color: Blue 
Flower Season: Mid to Late 

Summer 

%Nate'.  Requirements: Very Low 

lAposure: Sun 
Nlaiure Height: 3-4' 

Mature Spread: 3-4' 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 f 	Password: 

❑ Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

Home Map Plant Info 

   

Perovskia atriplicifolia 	 Sage, Russian 

Hardy To: 8,500' 

Small, rich blue flowers circle branched spikes rising during mid to late summer on erect slender, downy white stems bearing fragrant, 

finely cut, grayish-green leaves. Forms an open rounded shrub. 

Slide Comment 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 Ihe Rocky itioaniaim Skoktant- 

13022 E 136th Ave. $11911013 CO 80601 OOP 659-6708 MO 221-3241 Fax (303) 659-6886 

https://www.lmn.corniview_slideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 5:36:45 PM] 



Home Map 	Plant Info Availability 

4 

N Louie IICI2IIL 
Mahiri,  

t'olor: Blue 
er Season: Mici 

Stu time; 

\k;i1 cr Ru(iim'cluents: LOvv 
1,,vposarc: Sun 

Caryopteris x clandonensis 'Blue Mist' 	 Spirea, Blue Mist 

I la ril■ 	I 	: 

Narrow, orayish-;oenn eve Gflstrf: slender stems, lont s tightly roundect shrub. Custer ,, o Tonalif blue flowers bloom in he :ezif cdxiiG 

&irinQ ink; to late Summer. Cr) 	Cu t had,  to the Crown bc,forE,  $prinu growth AnIerrie:-.:. 

Slide Comment 

Member Log In 

User Name: 	 Password: 

0 Remember User Name 
Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

+ Lin. VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 the Reeky Nankin Skuutad- 

73021 E. Moth Aro. Ekkfilon CO 80601 r3o.) 6594708 ‘3001 221-3241 Fax (3031659.6886 

https://www.lywn.com/yiewslideshow.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014  5:54:53 PM] 



Member Log In 

Availability 

Yarrow, Moonshine Achillea 'Moonshine' 

Flower Color: Light Yellow 
Flower Season: Summer 

lliilurc ileighi: 24-30" 
Mature spread: 18-24" 

!brill', o: 9,000' 

suer Requirements: Low 
Exposure: Sun 

Not yet a member? Sign Up Now 

Forgot Password? 

User Name: 
	

Password: 

❑ Remember User Name 

Flat-topped clusters of sulfur yellow flowers stand above finely dissected, grayish-green Foliage throughout the summer. 

Slide Common 

Log 

Little Valley Wholesale Nursery - View Slide Show 

LITTLE VALLEY WHOLESALE NURSERY 
	 As Rocky "bundle Vended"' 

13022E. 13641r Afro. Brighton CO 80601 (303) 659-6708 (800) 221-3241 Fax (303) 659-6886 

https://www.lvwn.com/yiewslide  show.php?uid=276&name=Linker+Residence[1/2/2014 5:50:52 PM] 



271 CHURCH STREET – 
TEMPORARY 

CONSTRUCTION 
EASEMENT 



03/19/14 
Cynthia Linker, CP&D Administrator 

REVIEWED BY:  

ea..) I: 
Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 	 March 26, 2014 

SUBJECT:  Approval of a Temporary Construction Easement for the rehabilitation of 271 
Church Street between the City of Black Hawk and Jeannie Larkins, property owner of 271 
Church Street. 

SUMMARY 
The City of Black Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Fund Guide to 
Programs; 
Section 3 — Historic Preservation Easement Program; 

a. Guidelines for the City of Black Hawk Historic Preservation Easement Program, 
10. Property Owner shall grant to the City a Historic Preservation Easement, and agree to 

encumber the property with the Easement, and the Property Owner shall further 
grant to the City the associated Temporary Construction Easements on the property 
that is the subject of the Project. Please note the Historic Preservation Easement is 
transferrable to any new Property Owner in perpetuity. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
City staff recommends the Board of Aldermen approve the Temporary Construction Easement 
for 271 Church Street between the City of Black Hawk and Jeannie Larkins. 

RESOLUTION DATE:, 
ORIGINATED BY:  

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:  

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:  

SUBMITTED BY:  

March 26, 2014 
Community Planning & 
Development 
Cynthia Linker, CP&D Administrator 
Temporary Construction Easement, 
Exhibit A 
[X ] Yes []No [ ]N/A 
INITIALS 



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Jeannie Larkins, who is the property 
owner of 271 Church Street ("Grantor"), in consideration of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00), receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, and other good and valuable consideration, does hereby grant, 
bargain, sell and convey to CITY OF BLACK HAWK, whose address is 201 Selak Street, Black 
Hawk, Colorado 80422, ("Grantee"), a Temporary Construction Easement for the rehabilitation of 
271 Church Street, together with all rights and privileges as are necessary or incidental to the 
reasonable and proper use of such easement in and to, over, under and across the tract of land 
described as follows: 

See Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
the "Temporary Easement Property". 

1. Said Temporary Easement shall expire and be of no further force or effect one (1) year 
after the date of notice by the Grantee of the commencement of said temporary construction 
easement. More specifically, this Temporary Easement shall not commence until the Grantee 
provides a written notice to Grantor of the commencement of the Temporary Easement, which must 
be provided within one (1) year of the date of execution of this Agreement. The Grantor also grants 
to the Grantee the option to extend this Temporary Easement for a period not to exceed six (6) 
months from the date of expiration hereof. 

3. During the term of this Temporary Easement, Grantor shall not erect or construct, or 
allow to be erected or constructed, any building or other structure, which may interfere with 
Grantee's full enjoyment of the rights hereunder. 

4. The parties hereto agree that neither has made nor authorized any agreement with respect 
to the subject matter of this instrument other than expressly set forth herein, and no oral 
representation, promise or consideration different from the terms herein contained shall be binding 
on either party, or its agents or employees hereto. 

5. Grantor warrants that he has full and lawful authority to make the grant hereinabove 
contained, and promises and agrees to defend Grantee in the exercise of its rights hereunder against 
any defect in Grantor's title to the land involved or Grantor's rights to make the grant hereinabove 
contained. 

6. Whenever used herein, the singular number shall include the plural, the plural the 
singular; and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders. All of the covenants herein 
contained shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their respective heirs, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns. 

C:1UserslkillianDropboxICurrent ProjectslCity of Blackhawk1Single Family RehabsI271 Church S115. Permitting & Entillements1Local - 
CoBillEasements1Tempormy Construction1130904 271 Church St - Owner Temp Const Easement.docx 



WITNESS our hand(s) and seal(s) this  /A  day of  /4J an_c_ 

 

, -201-3-. 	0/ 

 

    

BY: 	  

TITLE:  /to ow N Oz 	 TITLE: 	  

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF  C7i l p Lr) 	) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this /t7 day of  March   , 20 ltby 
Je.ahnie. L. 1,2r- kilr,  	, as  Aorrie wre_v- 	for 

2.q -1 Church St% Slack14a )k- C-e> 5c,  z zz.  

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My Commission Expires:   ogiclzoi  

   

Notary Public 
Address:PP/50c 

.000c Na kok.._ Co b0422_ 

 

TAMI L. ARCHER 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF COLORADO 
NOTARY ID 19934011261 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES SEPT. 09.2017 

 

GRANTEE: CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

By: 	 Date: 	  
DAVID D. SPELLMAN, MAYOR 

Attest: 
Jeanie Magno, City Clerk 

Approved as to legal form: 	  
Corey Y. Hoffmann, City Attorney 

2 
c:IUserslkillianIDropboxICurrent ProjectslCity of Blackhawk1Single Family Rehabs 1271 Church S115. Permitting & Entitlements (Local - 
CoBIllEasements1Temporary Construction1130904 27l Church St - Owner Temp Const Easement.docx 

.44 



EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Larkins property located at 271 Church Street, legally described as S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: 
BLACK HAWK Block: 025 Lot: 001 THRU:- Lot: 003 (PT OF E 1/2) OF LT 1 DESC RECPT 
#134604 & IMPS, based upon the City of Black Hawk survey map of Block 25, of the Map of Black 
Hawk, surveyed by Albert Johnson City Surveyor, dated May and June 1866, City of Black Hawk, 
County of Gilpin, State of Colorado. 

3 
c:Userslkillian1DropboxlCurrent ProjectslCity of BlackhawkISingle Family Rehabs1271 Church S15. Permitting & Entitlementslocal - 
CoBH1Easements1Temporary Construction1130904 271 Church St - Owner Temp Cons! Easement.docx 



IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PLAT OF  
A PORTION OF LOT 1 AND LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 25 
CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COUNTY OF GILPIN, STATE OF 
COLORADO 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
10 	0 	5 	10 

( IN FEET ) 
SCALE: 1"=10' 
DATE: 03.06.2014 

DESCRIPTION: 

A PORTION OF LOT 1 AND LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 25, CITY OF BLACK HAWK, BASED UPON THE CITY 
OF BLACK HAWK SURVEY MAP OF BLOCK 25, OF THE MAP OF BLACK HAWK, SURVEYED BY ALBERT 
JOHNSON, CITY SURVEYOR, DATED MAY AND JUNE 1866, LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 7, 
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 72 WEST OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF BLACK HAWK, 
COUNTY OF GILPIN, STATE OF COLORADO, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID BLOCK 25 COMMON WITH THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF THE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED AT RECEPTION NO. 134605, WHENCE THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID BLOCK BEARS, S 7116'29" W, 28.92 FEET, WITH ALL BEARINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 
RELATIVE THERETO; THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE WITH SAID PARCEL, N 18'43'31" W, 34.92 
FEET; THENCE N 66'05'24" E, 100.39 FEET; THENCE S 18'43'31" E, 43.99 FEET; THENCE 
S 7116'29" W, 99.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.09 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: 

CLERK AND RECORDER:  

I NOEL L. POTTER, A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF COLORADO, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE SURVEY 0 THE TRACT AS SHOWN HEREON, WAS 
MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND THAT E ACCOMPANYING MAP ACCURATELY 
AND PROPERLY SHOWS SAID SURVEY TFIE' EOF. ,:oniimuno„ 

,,,,,,,,,,, w` ate: 

NOTES:  

COUNTY SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: 

DEPOSITED THIS 
IN BOOK 	 
AT PAGE 	  

DAY OF 	  , 20 	AT  	.M., 
OF THE COUNTY SURVEYOR'S LAND SURVEY PLATS/RIGHT-OF-WAY SURVEYS 
, RECEPTION NUMBER 	  

C.C.S. CONSULTANTS, INC. HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR INDEPENDENT SEARCH FOR 
EASEMENTS RECORDED/UNRECORDED, ENCUMBRANCES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, OWNERSHIP 
TITLE EVIDENCE OR ANY OTHER FACTS THAT AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE SEARCH 
MAY DISCLOSE. 

THIS LAND SURVEY PLAT COMPLIES WM SECTION 38-51-102,CRS 

1. THIS IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PLAT IS BASED UPON THE APPROVED CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
SURVEY MAP OF BLOCK 25. THIS SURVEY MAP IS RECOGNIZED BY THE CITY OF BLACK 
HAWK AS THE CONTROLLING BOUNDARY INFORMATION. 

2. •=SET NO. 4 REBAR AND CAP OR NAIL AND SHINER LS 26296, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 
3. ANY PERSON WHO KNOWINGLY REMOVES, ALTERS OR DEFACES ANY PUBLIC LAND SURVEY 

MONUMENT OR LAND BOUNDARY MONUMENT OR ACCESSORY COMMITS A CLASS TWO (2) 
MISDEMEANOR PURSUANT TO STATE STATUTE 18-4-508, C.R.S. 

4. NOTICE: ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ANY LEGAL ACTION BASED 
UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY WITHIN THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVERED 
SUCH DEFECT. IN NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY 
BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE OF CERTIFICATION SHOWN HEREON. 

5. THE SURVEY REPRESENTED BY THIS PLAT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A TITLE SEARCH BY C.C.S. 
CONSULTANTS, INC. TO DETERMINE EASEMENTS OR RIGHT OF WAY OF RECORD. 

6. ACREAGE CALCULATIONS ARE BASED UPON THE PERIMETER BOUNDARY AS SHOWN HEREON. 
7. SITE ADDRESS: 271 CHURCH STREET. 

(SIGNED) 	  
COUNTY SURVEYOR 

PREPARED FOR THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

C.C.S. CONSULTANTS, INC.  
4860 Robb Street Suite 206 
Wheat Ridge, Colorado 80033 
Phone: 303.403.4706, Fax: 303.403.0800 

BLOCK 24 

BUILDING LINELINE BELOW 
WOOD DECK ABOVE 

,.,04;100  

...„•104;411.-  

?-\
C\A*- 

 NcRE~E
\(°  

( 
‘ck

t\ 

.ik00(
WP  

oo" STAIRS BELOW 

RIP-RAP S 

041 	 ....-- --- Or' -4 4 	 ....-- 
QUIT CLAIM DEED cliPz.;..42,1  .— 
RECEPTION NO 	

ii4. 	.....- --- ....-- 

134605 	\ •.. 
1 \\*4171":7,  

........., 
\ 000,411,‘, ,..........1 
\ liti-Rts% 
\IFleit 

1.8' 

,titsak 
‘so\-°'-  

BLOCK 26 
oNs`s 

 of  

V-swam....%POINT „ter- 
.,:_11111,ar  .41141,  .,_ 	 44 - 

\ \laipsa  ,    	OF 	-- 
oarliX. 

......,• ar, ■•■111111; BEGINNING 
...° 

IIPS■10.- 

rib 	te.t.t.r.. 
 
 4ii• 	

.0 
ePI 	fp” 

	

31 	
i6.t. 	

.....- 

Al 
 

S 1  \*\"11 re.. 	4.•■• 
tr,,,4, Ato. 

	

§-•C 	..t" 
*ilk 

A VNs!..0.  ut  
1 1 4r 

sr
Arig' .0,- BUILDING 

BLOCK 27 

•- 
• = 

, 

C.C.S. CONSULTANTS, 11111111110 

NOEL L. POTTER P.L.S. .296 

111,0 01,40$ 

3 

PR
OJ

EC
T 

NO
.:  C

C
S

-B
LH

\9
0B

LH
25

\L
O

TS
 2

 A
N

D
 3

\IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
T 

SU
RV

EY
 P

LA
T 



121 MARCHANT STREET – 
HISTORIC 

REHABILITATION GRANT 



Judith A. Dornbrock 
1550 Carter Dr 

Corsicana, TX 75109 
303-518-1566 

Jeanie Magno 
Cindy Linker 
City of Black Hawk 
PO Box 68 
Black Hawk, CO 80422 

March 9, 2014 

RE: 121 Marchant St 

Dear Jeanie, 

This letter is to advise the City of Black Hawk of the pending transfer of ownership of lot 
1 and part of lot 2 BIk 9 City of Black Hawk. (121 Marchant St.) 

My sisters and I will be transferring the property to the Branecki Family Limited Liabilty 
Company,LLC. We would like to remain in line with the same priority for the complete 
rehabilitation/preservation grant 2010.06 (applied for in 2010) 

Thank you so much for all of the assistance you have provided over the years. 

Please let me know if I need to provide anything further. 

Sincerely, 

Let/40.41-44-oag-
ornbrock 

303-518-1566 cell 

Document2 

    

     

     



 RESOLUTION 19-2014, A 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

THE LICENSE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF BLACK 
HAWK AND MARDI GRAS 

CASINO 



1 
 3/19/14 

M:\USERS\BH\RES\FORM.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 
 COUNTY OF GILPIN 
 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 
 Resolution No. _19__-2014 
 
TITLE: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK AND MARDI GRAS CASINO 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The License Agreement between the City of Black Hawk and Mardi Gras 
Casino, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved, and the Mayor is authorized to execute 
the same on behalf of the City. 
 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jeanie M. Magno, CMC, City Clerk 



LICENSE 

THIS LICENSE, is made and entered into this tYLday of  Mca._,,--c_k 	, 2014, by 
and between the CITY OF BLACK HAWK, Colorado whose address is 2015Flak Street, P.O. 
Box 68, Black Hawk, CO 80422 (the "City") and  4FF""jirY (-,441-fi lose address is 

30.0 RAirl 	, Black Hawk, CO 80422 ("Licensee")/ELA-d4 i-bt+1/ 1  L-Le- 

1. PROPERTY LICENSED. The property that is licensed fo- the use and the term 
provided for in this license is described in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated 
by this reference ("Property Licensed"). The Property Licensed for the use described herein is 
subject to all easements and rights-of-way of record. 

2. INSURANCE. Licensee shall obtain for itself, its agents, successors, assigns, 
lessees, licensees and agents, necessary and adequate workman's compensation insurance, 
personal injury insurance, and property damage insurance, with limits commensurate with the 
hazards and risks associated with the use of the Property Licensed, but in no event less than the 
liability limits established by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et 
seq., as now in effect or as hereinafter amended, and a deductible of not less than one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00). Neither Licensee nor its agents, successors and assigns shall commence any 
construction, placement, operation or maintenance of the fixture or structure on the Property 
Licensed until it has obtained all insurance required under this section and shall have filed a 
certificate of insurance or a certified copy of the insurance policy with the City. Each insurance 
policy shall list the City as an additional named insured. 

3. MAINTENANCE. Licensee covenants and agrees to pay all charges for 
maintenance of the Licensed Property, which maintenance shall be provided by the City. The 
City and Licensee agree that the price of said maintenance is $1,000 annually, and shall be paid 
by Licensee within fifteen (15) days of receipt of an invoice from the City. In the event 
maintenance costs increase, the City shall give Licensee at least thirty (30) days notice of said 
increase in the cost of maintenance. 

4. USE. Licensee covenants and agrees that it shall utilize the Property Licensed for 
a charter bus stop, and for no other purpose and not to use the Property Licensed or permit it to 
be used for purposes prohibited by the laws of the applicable United States, State of Colorado, or 
any political subdivision thereof. 

5. RE-ENTRY. Licensee covenants and agrees to permit the City or its duly 
authorized representatives to inspect the Property Licensed and to do such other acts and things 
as it deems necessary for the protection of its interests therein. 

6. NOTICE. Any notice required under this License shall be in writing and mailed 
by certified mail to the respective parties at the address hereinabove given. The Public Works 
Director shall be the representative of the City to accept or give any approval, notice or the like 
provided hereunder. In the event Licensee should change the address hereinabove given during 
the term of this License, Licensee shall notify the City in writing of such change of address: 

3/19/14 
M:lUSERS' B 1-1lFORMSUCENSE- 1 . DOC 



The City: City of Black Hawk 
P.O. Box 68 
Black Hawk, CO 80422 

The rights granted 
roperty Licensed and 

to the benefit of, and 
ssigns of the parties. 

agrees not to assign 
obtaining the written 

.tands and agrees that 
ritten or implied, that 
state, county or local 

Licensee: 

7. NO COVENANT OF TITLE OR QUIET POSSESSION 
herein are without covenant of title or warranty of quiet possession of the 
no water or water rights are granted by this License. 

8. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This License shall insur 
be binding upon, the respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and 

9. ASSIGNMENT OR SUB-LEASE. Licensee covenants an 
this License or to sublet any part of the Property Licensed without first 
consent of the City. 

10. PROPERTY LICENSED TAKEN "AS IS." Licensee unde 
the Property Licensed is licensed "as is." The City makes no warranty, 
the Property Licensed is fit for any purpose or that it meets any federal, 
law, ordinance or regulation applying to the Property Licensed. 

of be liable for any 
arise from the use or 
ry, death, or damage 
malfunctions, faulty 

ed by law, to defend, 
insurers against any 

ver nature (including 
or damage allegedly 
t of or is caused by 
failure to fulfill the 

11. LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION. The City shall 
loss, injury, death or damage to any person or personal property which ma 
condition of the Property Licensed including, but not limited to, loss, inj 
resulting from ice, water, rain, snow, gas, electrical wires, fire, equipmen 
installation, or theft. Licensee hereby expressly agrees, to the extent permit 
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, employees an 
liability, loss, damage, demand, action, cause of action or expense of what 
court costs and attorney fees) which may result from any loss, injury, deat 
sustained by any person, firm, corporation or other entity which arises o 
reason of Licensee's negligent use of the Property Licensed or Licensee' 
terms and conditions of the License. 

12. RESERVATION FOR COUNCIL USE. This License 
conformable to the provisions of all City of Black Hawk regulations insof 
provisions are incorporated herein and made part hereof by this referenc 
any apparently conflicting provisions otherwise contained in the License. 
right to make full use of the Property Licensed as may be necessary 
operation of the public streets and the City retains all rights to operate, m 
remove or relocate any of its facilities located within the Property Licens 
such a manner as it deems necessary 

13. TERMINATION. 

is made under and 
as applicable. Said 
and shall supersede 
he City reserves the 
r convenient in the 
ntain, install, repair, 

at any time and in 

a. This License Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to Licensee. If the City terminates this Lic nse due to a default 

2 
3/19/14 

Al:SUSERS ILFORMSUCENSE-1.DOC 



LICENSEE 

By. 

3 

by Licensee, Licensee shall be responsible for the cost of remove g the striping on the 
Property Licensed. 

14. 	VENUE. For the resolution of any dispute arising hereu u er, venue shall be in 
the courts of Gilpin County, State of Colorado. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith s bscribe the same in 
triplicate. 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, OLORADO 

By: 
David D. Spellman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jeanie Magno, City Clerk 

Titl• 	 ate 

3/19/14 
M:USER BIDFORMSUCENSE-1.DOC 



ATTEST: 

Title 	 Date 

4 
3/19/14 

RHIFORAIS1LICENSE-1.DOC i14:;USER 



RETITLING CURRENT 
STAFF POSITIONS 



CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

SUBJECT:  Retitling current staff positions to more equivalent positions within our survey 
cities. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen a MOTION 
OF APPROVAL for retitling two positions, Project Manager to Senior Civil Engineer and 
Water System Coordinator to Senior Civil Engineer/Water Resources. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

Employee Services worked with the Public Works Director on comprehensive review of all 
Public Works positions as the last comprehensive review was completed ten years ago. The 
Public Works director determined that all but two positions aligned with competitive set job 
descriptions. 

The two positions are submitted for Council's review of title changes and competitive set 
comparables are: 

Current Titles 
Project Manager (PM) 
Water System Coordinator (WSC) 

Proposed Titles 
Senior Civil Engineer 
Senior Civil Engineer/Water Resources 

The major duties and responsibilities for these Black Hawk positions have not changed; 
however, these positions did not align themselves well and were difficult to match to positions 
within our survey cities. Many of these cities have entire departments dedicated to just water 
resources, capital improvements, or development, etc., where our staff performs all of these 
tasks. 

Of the job descriptions available from survey cities, six had positions that more closely 
matched our PM & WSC positions regarding job duties, responsibilities, education, 
experience and licensing. These titles included Civil Engineer, Civil Engineer II, Civil 
Engineer IV and Senior Civil Engineer Water Resources/Engineering. 

Based on the duties, responsibilities, education, experience and licensing the City of Black 
Hawk require, staff is recommending that the title for PM and WSC be changed to Senior 
Civil Engineer & Senior Civil Engineer/Water Resources, respectively. The job descriptions 
will reflect that PEs are required. 

FUNDING SOURCE: 	 Funding Source 

WORKSHOP DATE: 	 N/A 

ORIGINATED BY: 	 Melissa Greiner 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: 	 Melissa Greiner 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
	

N/A 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [ ]Yes [ ]No [ X ]N/A INITIALS 	  

SUBMITTED BY:  

Melissa Grein 
Assistant to the City Manager 

Jac Lewis 
City Manager 


	Agenda.pdf
	Approval of Minutes for March 12, 2014.pdf
	Res. 13, Conditionally Approving C of A for Reconstruction of 201 Church Street.pdf
	Insert from: "Attachment A_ IT Facility CD SUBMISSION dwgs.pdf"
	A000 Coversheet
	LOTS-10-12, BLOCK 24 201 CHURCH STREET
	AB200 As-Built Plans
	AB 400 As-Built Building Sections
	A100 Site Plans & Sections
	A101 Site Details
	A102 Site Details
	A201 Floor Plans
	A300  Building Elevations
	A400 Building Sections
	A401 Wall Sections
	A500 Stair Sections & Details
	A600 Interior Elevations
	A800 Schedules & Details
	201 Church-IT Facility-CIVIL-CD Submittal~2014-02-24.pdf
	13131-C100-Notes
	13131-C200-Plan
	13131-C201-Utility Plan
	13131-C202-Wall Plan
	13131-C300-Details

	1366 ELEC - 201 CHURCH - CD SUBMITTAL.pdf
	1366 E101 - 201 CHURCH - CD SUBMITTAL.pdf
	1366 E201 - 201 CHURCH - CD SUBMITTAL.pdf
	1366 E202 - 201 CHURCH - CD SUBMITTAL.pdf


	Insert from: "Attachment F_Exterior Finishes_Windows-Marvin Clad Ultimate -deonedit.pdf"
	Marvin Double Hung Windows.pdf
	marvin.com
	Marvin Double Hung Windows for New Construction & Remodeling



	Insert from: "Attachment F_Exterior Finishes_Gutter  downspout - deonedit.pdf"
	gutter_half-round_inside_bead_sizes
	gutter_Downspouts Rain Downspout


	Res. 18, Conditionally Approving C of A for Site Work & Landscaping for 301 Chase Street.pdf
	271 Church Street - Temporary Construction Easement.pdf
	121 Marchant Street - Historic Rehabilitaiton Grant.pdf
	Res. 19, Approving License Agreement Between the City and Mardi Gras.pdf
	Retitling Current Staff Positions.pdf

	VuZy13aW5kb3dzL2V4dGVyaW9yLwA=: 
	form22: 
	ctl03$ctl48$ctl04$TextControl: Zip/Postal Code
	ctl03$ctl48$ctl00: 
	SearchString: Keyword
	input0: 




